Cityaf C : S sm
/) P9 Worth Lake Worth Beach, Florida. The Art of Florida Living.
[ A= Z Bea%h 7 North Dixie Highway
FLORIDA Lake Worth, FL 33460
561.586.1600
AGENDA

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH
REGULAR CITY COMMISSION MEETING
CITY HALL COMMISSION CHAMBER
TUESDAY, APRIL 20, 2021 - 6:00 PM

ROLL CALL:

INVOCATION OR MOMENT OF SILENCE: led by Commissioner Christopher McVoy

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: led by Commissioner Herman Robinson

AGENDA - Additions / Deletions / Reordering:

PRESENTATIONS: (there is no public comment on Presentation items)

A. Palm Beach State College presentation given by President Ava L. Parker

COMMISSION LIAISON REPORTS AND COMMENTS:

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION OF NON-AGENDAED ITEMS AND CONSENT AGENDA:

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:
A. Reqular Meeting - March 25, 2021
B. Reqular Meeting - April 6, 2021

CONSENT AGENDA: (public comment allowed during Public Participation of Non-
Agendaed items)

A. Professional Services Agreement (Special Magistrate Services) with Natalie Green
Moore, of NGM Law, P.A.

B. Approval of Settlement with David Aquilino for $45,000 (inclusive of attorney’s fees

and costs)

PUBLIC HEARINGS:

A. Ordinance 2021-01 - Second Reading - Consideration of an ordinance to Chapter 23
‘Land Development Regulations” regarding changes to allow for takeout
establishments by zoning district and to clarify that only one (1) continuance is
permitted for all affected parties to _ensure that the City does not run afoul of
development review time limitations for local governments as set forth in Florida law,
and several minor amendments related to definitions and use review processes

UNFINISHED BUSINESS:

A. Ordinance No. 2021-02 — Continuation of the First Reading — Consideration of the
establishment of a residential planned development including a development of




significant impact, a major site plan, a conditional use, and sustainable bonus
incentives for Golden Road Apartments, which includes 230 residential units

NEW BUSINESS:

A. Agreement with Skyline Contractors for the construction of the Howard Park
Improvements CDBG Project (Last Year’s 2020 Fiscal Year Funding Cycle)

B. Resolution Nos. 15-2021 and 16-2021 — Budget Amendment to the 5-Year CIP Plan
and Utility Bond Reauthorization

C. Recruitment and Hiring Process for new City Manager

D. Resolution No. 17-2021 — FY 2021-2022 Community Development Block Grant
Application

CITY ATTORNEY'S REPORT:

A. Request for Attorney-Client Session for May 4th at 5 PM for the Lake Worth Beach
v. North H. Enterprises, Inc.

B. Sunshine Law

CITY MANAGER'S REPORT:

ADJOURNMENT:

Attachment: Draft Agenda - May 4, 2021

If a person decides to appeal any decision made by the board, agency or commission
with respect to any matter considered at such meeting or hearing, he or she will need a
record of the proceedings, and that, for such purpose, he or she may need to ensure that
a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and
evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. (F.S. 286.0105)



Action:

Vote:

MINUTES
CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH
REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COMMISSION
CITY HALL COMMISSION CHAMBER
THURSDAY, MARCH 25, 2021 - 6:00 PM

The meeting was called to order by Mayor Resch on the above date at 6:00 PM in the City
Commission Chamber located at City Hall, 7 North Dixie Highway, Lake Worth Beach,
Florida.

ROLL CALL: Present were Mayor Betty Resch; and Commissioners Sarah Malega,
Christopher McVoy, Kimberly Stokes and Herman Robinson. Also present were City
Manager Michael Bornstein, City Attorney Christy L. Goddeau and City Clerk Deborah M.
Andrea.

INVOCATION OR MOMENT OF SILENCE: led by Commissioner Herman Robinson.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: led by Commissioner Sarah Malega.

AGENDA - Additions/Deletions/Reordering:

New Business item B, First Amendment to parking enforcement solutions equipment and
related services agreement with IPS Group, Inc. and LWBEU Consent Agenda Item 2,
Agreement with DataProse, LLC for Utility Bill Printing and Mailing Services, were deleted
from the agenda. City Clerk Andrea stated that Presentation C, a Proclamation recognizing
Vietnam Veterans Day was added after the additions/deletions were sent out. Consent Item C,
Task Order No. 6 with Chen Moore and Associates (CMA) for engineering design services for
the District 4 South Palm Park Sea Level Rise Mitigation project, was moved to New Business
Item E.

Motion made by Commissioner Robinson and seconded by Commissioner McVoy to approve
the agenda as amended.

Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch and Commissioners Malega, McVoy, Stokes and
Robinson. NAYS: None.

PRESENTATIONS: (there is no public comment on Presentation items)

A. PBC School Board-Digital Wi-Fi

Mark Howard Chief, Performance Accountability at SDPBC, Adam Miller, Ph.D.,
Director, SDPBC - Educational Technology, Mike Butler, Director of Network Services at
PBC and James Gavrilos, CFRE, President/CEO, Education Foundation of PBC, spoke
about the School District of Palm Beach County’s (SDPBC) Access for All Digital
Inclusion Project whose mission was to grant all students, regardless of zip code, access to
reliable internet service in their neighborhoods. Mr. Miller displayed a heat map that
showed the number of students impacted and how the Wi-Fi Mesh had been created. Mr.
Butler explained how residents had been informed by letters in multiple languages and
gave an update on the Mesh Infrastructure in various areas.

Mayor Resch expressed gratitude for the project.



Pg. 2, Regular Meeting, March 25, 2021

Commissioner Robinson stated that LWB was contributing funds by the donating the pole
attachments and asked if the middle and high schools were included.

Mr. Butler responded that the high school had been connected via fiber for several years
and the middle school was having the fiber built currently.

Commissioner Stokes asked about the timeline.

Mr. Butler replied that it would take four to six weeks to have the fiber installed; the first
areas were being lit for Barton Elementary and would move north from there.

Mr. Gavrilos announced that the new Education Foundation offices would be in the City.
City Manager Bornstein stated that due to the city having its own EU, it participated with
attachments on 44 poles, donating the $64,000 in fees that would normally have been
charged.

Mayor Resch thanked the previous commission for their work on the project.
Commissioner McVoy volunteered to do outreach to other communities.

B. Mayor Resch read the Proclamation declaring April 9, 2021 as The Lord’s Place SleepOut
Homelessness Awareness Day. Diana Stanley, CEO of The Lord’s Place, expressed best
wishes for the future with the new commission. She stated that there were programs
established in the city with the goal to break the cycle of homelessness.

Commissioner Robinson left the meeting at 6:33 PM and returned at 6:34 PM.

C. (added) Mayor Resch read the Proclamation declaring March 29, 2021 as Vietnam
Veterans Day and said that it had been a difficult time for the country.

Commissioner Robinson acknowledged the sacrifices made by the families and the
civilians who had been affected.

COMMISSION LIAISON REPORTS AND COMMENTS:

Commissioner Malega: said that she had attended the Bryant Park and Mango Groves
Neighborhood Association meetings via zoom and that Healthier Lake Worth was looking for
more participants. She announced that there was space for 56 more artists to contribute to the
Unity Wall and the food distribution would become bimonthly in April; she acknowledged
Vice Mayor Amoroso for his participation in the food distribution. She reported that State
Senator Frankel was looking to fund local projects. She requested that the residents give the
commissioners and staff six months to get up to speed and said that she looked forward to
serving.

Commissioner McVoy: asked for patience towards the staff and the commission. He stated
that many residents had expressed appreciation for the progress on the roads, but that some
areas needed more traffic calming. He said that the issue of high utility bills, which combined
the water, sewer and electric, had continued from the past and residents were interested in
renewable energy. He reported that residents with homes that looked good were complaining
that they were being cited rather than those who had unkempt homes.




Pg. 3, Regular Meeting, March 25, 2021

Commissioner Stokes: said that she had met with staff and was working to get informed; the
commissioners would need time to learn about all the issues and departments. She said that
she had attended the College Park blood drive which was very successful. She expressed hope
that the commission would have a response to the gun violence in Atlanta and asked what the
city could do to support those who were affected by racism and other issues.

Commissioner Robinson: congratulated all the commissioners on having been elected by a
large turnout of voters. He stated that working with the SDPBC showed what could be
accomplished by working together. He expressed hope that the Downtown merchants would
be able to participate in the meeting and reported that soccer scholarships would be available
for the soccer program. He stated that the pool issue would be addressed and suggested a
conservation fund for homes that were not energy efficient. He showed the CRA brochure
featuring photographs and descriptions of their recent projects. He wished everyone a Happy
Easter and joyous Passover.

Mayor Resch: thanked all of the volunteers who helped get the new commissioners elected
and staff for their enthusiasm. She said that she had attended the Bryant Park Neighborhood
Association and that the commission would work on the issues that residents had discussed.
She stated that the Gulfstream Hotel was moving forward, which was very exciting; she
requested that the project use as many local residents as possible. She stated that customer
service needed to ramp up to ensure that the phones were answered. She requested that the
city hold a celebration of diversity during the winter and that the commissioners visit the
schools in their districts.

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION OF NON-AGENDAED ITEMS AND CONSENT
AGENDA:

Tammy Panza thanked the commissioners for taking up a thankless job and suggested that city
businesses be listed on the website.

Cliff Kohlmeyer said that something had to be done about the homeless situation.

Todd Townsend requested that the commission not approve the CRA’s proposed project next
to Toojay’s.

Marshall Pass congratulated the commission, urged residents to become involved in their
neighborhood associations and said that the NAPC was there to support the commission.

Deborah Andrea, City Clerk, read the comments submitted by the following individuals:

Matthew Brennan wrote to ask how the new mayor and commissioners planned to address an
uneven code enforcement system.

Deidre Walker-Puryear wrote that the city’s elders should stop being targeted.

Audrey Locker wrote to express concern about the excessive fines being charged to seniors
living at Palm Beach Mobile Home Park.

Noam Brown wrote in opposition to the targeting of lower income residents by code
compliance.



Action:

\Vote:

Pg. 4, Regular Meeting, March 25, 2021

Cara Jennings read her own comment via zoom, congratulating the new commissioners on
their historic win and saying that issues such as code enforcement could not wait for six
months.

City Clerk Andrea read the comments submitted by the following individuals:

Heidi Mehaffey, Esg. on behalf of Holiday Il Mobile Home Park, wrote that those residing at
Holiday Il Mobile Home Park hoped that the new commissioners would stem the unlawful
overreach of code enforcement.

Panagioti Tsolkas wrote that the city needed to stop fining the mobile home park residents.
Reinaldo Diaz wrote that the commission should be an active participant in LOSOM (Lake
Okeechobee System Operating Manual), the policy that dictated how Lake Okeechobee water

was managed.

Mayor Resch asked when the zoning or land use changed at Holiday Mobile Home Park
and wanted to examine the issue further.

City Manager Bornstein replied that some of the statements were incorrect and he would
provide the information to the commission.

Commissioner Malega stated that there was a program called Neighbors Helping
Neighbors that could assist seniors with small code violations.

Commissioner McVoy agreed that the city needed to speak up about Lake Okeechobee.
He asked staff for an economic study about the small businesses on Dixie Highway.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:
There were no minutes on the agenda.

CONSENT AGENDA: (public comment allowed during Public Participation of Non-
Agendaed items)

Motion made by Commissioner McVoy and seconded by Commissioner Malega to approve
the Consent Agenda.

A. Resolution No. 09-2021 — FY 2022 Library Services and Technology Act (LSTA) Grant
Application

B. Amendment #1 with AE Engineering for additional professional CEI Services

C. (moved to New Business E) Task Order No. 6 with Chen Moore and Associates (CMA)
for engineering design services for the District 4 South Palm Park Sea Level Rise
Mitigation project

Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch and Commissioners Malega, McVoy, Stokes and
Robinson. NAYS: None.

PUBLIC HEARINGS:
There were no Public Hearings on the agenda.




Pg. 5, Regular Meeting, March 25, 2021

UNFINISHED BUSINESS:

There were no Unfinished Business items on the agenda.

NEW BUSINESS:

A. Temporary Downtown Sidewalk Cafe Guidelines

Jamie Brown, Public Works Director, explained that the program was brought forward to
help the restaurants extend their frontage to comply with social distancing when restaurants
re-opened. He stated that there were no restrictions and parking issues had arisen
downtown.

City Manager Bornstein stated that the issues were on city streets and asked if the
commissioners wanted to continue or change the program.

Comments/requests summary:

1.

Commissioner Robinson said that he wanted to hear from the merchants before voting
on the issue and that it should be a work session discussion. He expressed concern that
Governor DeSantis had relaxed the guidelines and that there was some abuse of the
usage.

Commissioner Stokes said that more information was needed before deciding and
asked if the merchants could be contacted for their input.

Commissioner McVoy stated that he needed more information before he could vote
and said that there had not been a big outcry about parking.

Commissioner Malega expressed concern about the health and safety of the community
and supported reining to curb the free for all downtown; how do the merchants come
back in compliance with the mandates. She said that a resolution would be necessary
to keep the residents safe.

Mayor Resch stated that people were congregating closely at bars and expressed
concern about restaurants taking all of the parking spaces. She said that staff suggested
extending the barricades, which were mandated by law, until May 31. She
recommended limiting the parking spaces to two per restaurant and then discuss the
issue at the end of May.

Commissioner Stokes said that the guidelines should be enforced, including rules
regarding noise, but would not be able to take a stance on extending them to cafes.

Commissioner Malega stated that if the spaces were set at two per establishment, it
would free up 11 parking spaces immediately.

Mayor Resch asked if there were any public comments.

City Clerk Andrea read the public comment submitted by the following:



Action:

Vote:

Pg. 6, Regular Meeting, March 25, 2021

Joseph Lipovich, owner of Lilo’s Streetfood & Bar, wrote in support of continuing the
current parking lot dining program.

Todd Townsend spoke in favor of a one-story parking garage.

Tammy Panza said that sidewalks were important to keep business in the city and suggested
a community seating area.

8. Mayor Resch asked staff to reach out to the businesses in the Downtown to ask how
they were faring and stated that many restaurants had outside seating.

9. Commissioner Robinson stated that there was a difference in sidewalk depth between
the sides of the streets, that some space was excessive and not used.

10. Commissioner Malega said that staff needed to be given direction.

City Manager Bornstein explained that the city was acting under a State of Emergency
and if the commission wanted to continue the program, limit the area to two spaces per
restaurant or if any other businesses should be included. He said that the program
would go away when the State of Emergency was lifted.

11. Commissioner Stokes requested that staff consolidate data from the merchants and have
work sessions on more pressing matters.

12. Mayor Resch asked if any parameters had been set.

City Manager Bornstein replied that there had not been any parameters as the city had
been trying to assist the restaurants.

Discussion ensued about the necessity for a work session.

Mr. Brown stated that some businesses downtown opposed continuing the program
which made it difficult for their establishments.

Motion made by Commissioner Malega and seconded by Commissioner McVoy to extend the
program until May 31, limiting the area to two parking spots per establishment on the lettered
streets and including all establishments that served food and beverages.

Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch and Commissioners Malega, McVoy, Stokes and
Robinson. NAYS: None.

B. (deleted) Firstamendment to parking enforcement solutions equipment and related services
agreement with IPS Group, Inc.

C. Agreement with Oracle Elevator for the repairs and upgrades to the PBSO Building
elevator

Mr. Brown said that the item was for maintenance of the PBSO offices in a City-owned
facility where the main lobby elevator needed a complete upgrade.

City Manager Bornstein explained that the elevator was being funded by the penny sales
tax.



Action:

Vote:

Pg. 7, Regular Meeting, March 25, 2021

Mayor Resch asked if there were any public comments.
City Clerk Andrea read the public comment submitted by the following:

Cara Jennings said that penny sales tax should fund significant public improvements
instead of maintenance needs.

Comments/requests summary:

1. Commissioner Robinson said that maintenance items should be discussed in the
upcoming budget and suggested that maintenance items be discussed in contract
negotiations.

2. Commissioner McVoy stated that cost sharing should be considered when negotiating
the new contracts with PBSO and PBFR and opposed using penny sales tax to fund the
elevator.

Mr. Brown replied that multiple repairs had been done and PBSO had done many
smaller upgrades to the building, but the burden for larger issues fell to the City.

3. Commissioner Stokes asked about the urgency of the issue.

Mr. Brown replied that the elevator had outlived its usefulness and parts were difficult
to obtain for repairs.

4. Mayor Resch said that there had been so much deferred maintenance and ADA
guidelines had to be complied with. She asked if there was another fund to pay for the
elevator.

City Manager Bornstein responded that there was no other source of funds and the
elevator had to be replaced.

Mr. Brown said that the elevator had to be replaced due to the ADA issues.

Motion made by Commissioner Malega and seconded by Commissioner Robinson to approve
the Agreement with Oracle Elevator at a cost not to exceed $117,182.44.

Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch and Commissioners Malega, McVoy, Stokes and
Robinson. NAYS: None.

D. Resolution 10-2021 -- to approve the CRA refinance of loans with PNC Bank for property
acquisition

City Attorney Torcivia did not read the resolution.

RESOLUTION NO. 10-2021 OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA,
AUTHORIZING THE LAKE WORTH BEACH COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT
AGENCY (“CRA”) TO ISSUE A LOAN IN THE FORM OF A NOTE IN THE AMOUNT
OF UP TO $3,265,000 TO REFINANCE THE OUTSTANDING PRIOR LOANS OF
THE LAKE WORTH BEACH COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY AS



Action:

Vote:

Pg. 8, Regular Meeting, March 25, 2021

DESCRIBED HEREIN; AND PROVIDING FOR REPEAL OF CONFLICTING
RESOLUTIONS AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE

Joan Oliva, CRA Director, explained that the CRA was refinancing previous loans for
purchases at a lower interest rate which would save money and enable the loan to be repaid
a year earlier.

Comments/requests summary:

1. Mayor Resch asked for a list of properties that the CRA had purchased.

City Manager Bornstein said that the requested list of properties had been sent to the
commission.

2. Commissioner McVoy stated that he did not want to rush into a decision and needed to
be convinced why the item should not be tabled for two weeks.

Ms. Oliva replied that the savings at the higher rate would only be $20,000 versus
$50,000.

Commissioner Malega said that she understood the urgency and that saving $50,000
was worthy as the money had already been spent.

3. Commissioner Stokes asked for assurance that restructuring the loan would only affect
how much money was being paid.

Ms. Oliva responded affirmatively.

4. Commissioner Robinson said that the CRA was less accountable for the citizen’s
money.

Mayor Resch asked if there were any public comments.

Richard Stowe requested a list of how the properties were purchased.

Greg Richter said that it was fiscally responsible to refinance the loan.
Motion made by Commissioner Robinson and seconded by Commissioner Malega to approve
Resolution 10-2021 to approve the CRA refinance of loans with PNC Bank for property

acquisition.

Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch and Commissioners Malega, Stokes and Robinson.
NAYS: Commissioner McVoy.

E. (moved from Consent Item C) Task Order No. 6 with Chen Moore and Associates (CMA)
for engineering design services for the District 4 South Palm Park Sea Level Rise
Mitigation project

Brian Shields, Water Utility Director, iterated that the area had experienced severe flooding
and Chen Moore had suggested a stormwater pumping station. He said that they were
looking for funding from the state for a 50% match and the task order would get the city to



Action:

Vote:

Pg. 9, Regular Meeting, March 25, 2021

a shovel ready stage.

Commissioner McVoy expressed concern about spending $600,000 in one area of the city
when many residents throughout the city were affected by sea level rise. He asked if the
city should wait to determine a more equitable distribution and if it fit within the City’s
plan.

Mr. Shields responded that there was a list and the project was most needed and did fit
within the master plan; Chen Moore was the consultant on the overall study regarding
resiliency. He stated that there was a prioritized list.

Mayor Resch announced that it was the time for public comment.

Greg Richter said that there was a sewer line that was affected by the flooding and urged
approval of the project.

City Clerk Andrea read the comment submitted by the following:

Cheryl Raskin wrote on behalf of South Palm Park (SPP) that the award of the agreement
related to sea level rise mitigation was the first step for relief and offered assistance from its
membership.

Comments/requests summary:

1. Commissioner Malega expressed sympathy for the residents in the area and said that
action needed to be taken.

Motion made by Commissioner Malega and seconded by Commissioner Robinson to approve
Task Order No. 6 with Chen Moore and Associates (CMA) for engineering design services for
the District 4 South Palm Park Sea Level Rise Mitigation project.

Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch and Commissioners Malega, McVoy, Stokes and
Robinson. NAYS: None.

LAKE WORTH BEACH ELECTRIC UTILITY:

CONSENT AGENDA: (public comment allowed during Public Participation of Non-Agendaed

items)

Action:

Motion made by Commissioner Robinson and seconded by Commissioner Stokes to approve
the Consent Agenda.

1) Task Order No. 4 with Power Engineers, Inc. to complete a feasibility study and conceptual
design for the Intercoastal Waterway underground distribution line

2) (deleted) Agreement with DataProse, LLC for Utility Bill Printing and Mailing Services

3) Resolution 06-2021 and Local Funding Agreement with the Florida Department of
Transportation for Signalization & Street Lighting Improvements along Dixie Highway
between Lake Avenue and Lucerne Avenue



Pg. 10, Regular Meeting, March 25, 2021

Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch and Commissioners Malega, McVoy, Stokes and
Robinson. NAYS: None.

NEW BUSINESS:

1) Task Order No.3 with Power Engineers, Inc., to provide engineering design and
construction services for the new 138kV Canal Switchyard

Ed Liberty, LWBEU Director, stated that all three new business items were part of the
system hardening and reliability program, the projects were put together by staff and
reported on by Stantec as part of the bond financing. He said that the projects were well
vetted and were in the public domain. He stated that the switchyard was for a second tie-
line to the City, which had outgrown its one tie-line that was insufficient to support the
needs of the City. He explained that the city had reached an agreement with FPL to build
the tie-line, with the city paying to build the facilities to accept the tie-lie; the agreement
saved the city $15 million in costs. He said that the commission was being asked to approve
the construction of the station.

Comments/requests summary:

1. Commissioner McVoy said that he would not be comfortable voting on the issues that
evening.

2. Mayor Resch asked if FPL stopped at the box.

Mr. Liberty replied that FPL would own everything up to the box and the city would
own the box; the city already owned the original tie line. He said that the second tie-
line would provide a loop so that there would not be any outages.

3. Commissioner McVoy asked if the million was for both the engineering and
construction and what the cost would be for the construction

Mr. Liberty replied that the money was for the engineering and design, plus design
oversight, and the cost for construction would be eight million dollars raised through
the bond sale; the money could only be used for the construction.

Commissioner McVoy asked for clarification about why the ground system was not
included.

Mr. Liberty replied that the construction would be done by another company and that
the grounding was already in place. He said that lightning protection would be done
and was part of the static system which would be designed separately.
Mayor Resch asked if there were any public comments.
City Clerk Andrea stated that there were no public comments.
Action:  Motion made by Commissioner Robinson and seconded by Commissioner Malega to approve

Task Order No. 3 to Power Engineers, Inc., to complete the engineering design and
construction package for the new 138kV Canal Switchyard not to exceed $1,138,439.



Vote:

Action:

Vote:

Action:

Vote:

Pg. 11, Regular Meeting, March 25, 2021

Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch and Commissioners Malega, McVoy, Stokes and
Robinson. NAYS: None.

2) Work Order No. 7 with The L.E. Myers Co. for 7th Avenue North Circuits Storm
Hardening & Voltage Conversion construction services

Mr. Liberty said that the station had a single transformer with the poorest ranked circuits
in the City. He said that there was a lot of stress on the system due to the age of the
equipment and the work order was to rebuild the station, replace the poles and increase the
voltage in the area.

Comments/requests summary:

1. Mayor Resch asked if there would be any interruptions to service.

Mr. Liberty replied that there would be interruptions when the system was converted
with notice given to the customers.

2. Commissioner Malega asked if the work could be completed by city staff.

Mr. Liberty replied that the city only had one or two crews available, which would not
be adequate to complete the work nor did the city not have the equipment.

Mayor Resch asked if there were any public comments.

City Clerk Andrea stated that there were no public comments.
Motion made by Commissioner Robinson and seconded by Commissioner Stokes to approve
Work Order No. 7 with The L.E. Myers Co. to complete 7th Ave N substation circuits 0702,
0703, 0704 storm hardening and voltage conversion in the amount not to exceed
$3,576,775.09.

Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch and Commissioners Malega, McVoy, Stokes and
Robinson. NAYS: None.

3) Work Order No. 8 with The L.E. Myers Co. for 4DR01 Circuit Storm Hardening & Voltage
Conversion construction services

Mr. Liberty stated that the conversion was for Palm Beach State College and would cause
no power outages at the college. He said that the intent was for the campus to expand.

Motion made by Commissioner McVoy and seconded by Commissioner Malega to approve
Work Order No. 8 with The L.E. Myers Co. for 4DRO01 Circuit Storm Hardening & Voltage
Conversion construction services.

Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch and Commissioners Malega, McVoy, Stokes and
Robinson. NAYS: None.

CITY ATTORNEY'S REPORT:




Pg. 12, Regular Meeting, March 25, 2021

City Attorney Torcivia requested a 45-minute attorney-client session regarding pending
litigation in the case of the city versus FEMA on April 6, 2021 at 5:00 PM.

CITY MANAGER'S REPORT:

City Manager Bornstein provided the following report:

e Thanked the commission for their comments regarding pacing themselves and the
organization;

e Stated that the new commissioners had received volumes of information and would have
to undergo multiple trainings as well as keeping abreast of the legislative session and the
budget process;

e Said that he would work with the commissioners to develop a work session schedule to
discuss various issues; the pace would be accelerated since the run-off election was over;

e Asked that the commission be patient with staff as they worked to get all the information
to them, including the PBSO contract if the intention was to negotiate;

e Opined that the meeting was very productive, but it would take time to get where the
commission wanted to go;

e Reported that the city was working with PBC and FoundCare to administer the Johnson &
Johnson vaccine via walk-up/drive-through components; he expressed pride in staff for
being responsive to people’s needs during the pandemic.

City Attorney Torcivia stated that each commissioner had been provided with information
about the Sunshine Law and expressed the intent in having a presentation about the Sunshine
Law; the commissioners could talk or text with each other about anything other than LWB
business.

Mayor Resch asked about the all-day training. City Manager Bornstein answered that he would
get the information from the League of Cities regarding training for newly elected officials.

ADJOURNMENT:
Action:  Motion made by Commissioner Malega and seconded by Commissioner Stokes to adjourn the
meeting at 9:37 PM.
Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch and Commissioners Malega, McVoy, Stokes and
Robinson. NAYS: None.
Betty Resch, Mayor
ATTEST:

Deborah M. Andrea, CMC, City Clerk

Minutes Approved: April 20, 2021



MINUTES
CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH
REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COMMISSION
CITY HALL COMMISSION CHAMBER
TUESDAY, APRIL 6, 2021 - 6:00 PM

The meeting was called to order by Mayor Resch on the above date at 6:06 PM in the City
Commission Chamber located at City Hall, 7 North Dixie Highway, Lake Worth Beach,
Florida.

ROLL CALL: Present were Mayor Betty Resch; and Commissioners Sarah Malega,
Christopher McVoy, Kimberly Stokes and Herman Robinson. Also present were City
Manager Michael Bornstein, City Attorney Glen Torcivia and City Clerk Deborah M. Andrea.

INVOCATION OR MOMENT OF SILENCE: led by Commissioner Sarah Malega.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: led by Commissioner Kimberly Stokes.

AGENDA - Additions/Deletions/Reordering:

There were no changes to the agenda. Deborah Andrea, City Clerk, clarified that Presentation
E, regarding the CDBG funding, would only be a presentation without a vote.

PRESENTATIONS: (there is no public comment on Presentation items)

A. Presentation by Ms. Elena Villani, Principal of Highland Elementary School

Principal Villani gave an overview of the school history and the student, teacher and
support staff demographics. She spoke about highlights including the in-house K-5 dual
language program, VPK and Head Start, World Class Music Program, Florida Department
of Environmental Protection Green Apple School and Green School of Excellence. She
listed the partnerships and grants such as the FAU AIT Program, the Guatemalan Mayan
Center Partnership for Afterschool Program, Adopt-a-Family, TeamWork USA, Ventus
Charitable Foundation and Pew Grants and the barriers to success the school faced
including ELA/math/writing/science proficiency, teacher retention and support,
kindergarten and school readiness, the transient population and attendance. She said that
opportunities for growth would be continuing professional development and coaching for
all teachers, continuing oral language and vocabulary development with all students and
aligning interventions with areas of weakness. She requested donations for the students to
earn prizes and treats and vinyl banners promoting their Positive Behavior Matrices,
teacher recognition and appreciation, arranging for artists to paint murals on campus and a
new marquee.

B. Presentation by Dr. Ana Arce-Gonzalez, Principal of South Grade Elementary School

Principal Arce-Gonzalez gave a brief history and background of the school and spoke about
its unique strengths such as its culture and climate — model school gold status, the K-5 dual
language program, PBCSD VPK, opportunities for student affiliations with band, FAU
band camp, PBSO Partners and clubs i.e. student wellness, chorus, band, soccer and board



Pg. 2, Regular Meeting, April 6, 2021

game. She listed the multiple partnerships and grants and enumerated the school’s
strengths including 90% of students were attending in person, the school had attained
Model School Gold Status (PBS), and FY19 NGSS Science results increased three percent
compared to FY21. She spoke about student demographics and stated that their barriers
were the high number of newcomers and migrant students, a transient population,
attendance and loss of instruction due to student migration and the pandemic and teacher
capacity of teaching to the intended rigor of the standard. She said that continuing to
develop capacity in meeting the needs of ELL and SWD students, ensure the right
interventions were in place to increase student gains, continuing oral language
development with all students and increasing student engagement to include experiential
learning were among the opportunities for growth.

C. Presentation by Mary Lindsey regarding the city Library and Little Free Libraries

Mary Lindsay congratulated LWB’s library on 80 years of service on North M Street and
announced that April 5-9 was National Library Week. She showed pictures of the library,
said that half of the residents had a library card and suggested that everyone join the Friends
of the LWB library. She showed a photograph of the section of the Unity Wall that the
library had funded and said that the library had passed 500,000 books.

D. Proclamation denouncing racism against Asian-Americans

Mayor Resch read the proclamation denouncing racism against Asian-Americans and
presented it to members of the Bangladeshi-American Democratic Club.

D. Fiscal Year 2021-2022 Community Development Block Grant Funding (CDBG)

Jerry Kelly, Grants Analyst, explained that the purpose of the Community Development
Block Grant Program was to provide communities with resources to address a wide range
of uniqgue community development needs and that the U. S. Department of Housing and
Urban Development awarded grants to entitlement communities to carry out a wide range
of community development activities. He listed the eligible uses, including roadway and
sidewalk improvements, parks and recreational facilities, community centers and public
facilities; and code enforcement serving an existing CDBG Target Area. He announced
that eligible activities must address one of the three National Objectives, such as benefit
low and moderate income persons, prevention of slums or blight or address community
development needs having an immediate threat to the health or welfare of the community
for which other funding is not available. He iterated that the FY 2021-2022 CDBG funds
were approximately $266,560, subject to availability from HUD and approval of the Board
of County Commissioners, and the city could only submit one application. He displayed a
map of the targeted area and said that there would be a public meeting on Thursday to
discuss three proposed projects. He said that a CDBG item would be brought before the
commission on April 20.

Commissioner Malega asked if any other options would be available other than the
proposed three.

Mr. Kelly answered that it would be the commissioners’ decision and other options could
be considered.



Action:

Vote:

Action:

Vote:

Pg. 3, Regular Meeting, April 6, 2021

Commissioner Stokes asked for clarification of the allowable uses and how the County
determined the city’s share of the funds.

Mr. Kelly responded that the County had wanted only capital improvement projects in the
past and then changed to allow a new application each year for funding.

DESIGNATION OF APPOINTMENTS:

A. Appointment of Vice Mayor and Vice Mayor Pro Tem

Mayor Resch asked Commissioner Robinson if he would be interested to serve as Vice
Mayor as he was the elder statesman on the commission.

Commissioner Robinson responded that he would be honored.

Commissioner McVoy said that he would be willing to serve as Vice Mayor based on his
experience on the commission in the past.

Commissioner Malega said that she would be interested in serving as VVice Mayor Pro Tem.

Motion made by Commissioner Robinson and seconded by Commissioner Malega to appoint
Commissioner Robinson as Vice Mayor.

Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch and Commissioners Malega, McVoy, Stokes and
Robinson. NAYS: None.

Motion made by Vice Mayor Robinson and seconded by Commissioner Malega to appoint
Commissioner Malega as Vice Mayor Pro Tem.

Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor Robinson and Commissioners Malega,
McVoy and Stokes. NAYS: None.

B. Appointment of commissioners to various organizations:

Mayor Resch asked for permission to add the Education Task Force as the sixth
organization with Commissioner Stokes serving as the liaison.

Commissioner Stokes stated that she would be interested.

Commissioner McVoy spoke in support of Commissioner Stokes as Education Task Force
liaison and expressed interest in serving on the TPA.

Mayor Resch said that she would like to be the CRA liaison as did Commissioner Malega.

Commissioner Stokes requested more time to learn about what roles the liaisons would
play.

Commissioner Malega stated that healing was needed between the residents and the CRA
and she had the experience to serve.

Mayor Resch said that she would bring a fresh eye to the CRA.



Action:

Vote:

Action:

Vote:

Action:

Vote:

Action:

Vote:

Action:

Vote:

Pg. 4, Regular Meeting, April 6, 2021

Vice Mayor Robinson said that he would serve as NAPC liaison if Commissioner Malega
was not interested.

Commissioner Malega said that Vice Mayor Robinson should continue to serve.
Mayor Resch asked who would be interested in serving as TCRPC liaison.

Vice Mayor Robinson said that he would be interested.
1. Transportation Planning Authority

Motion made by Commissioner McVoy and seconded by Commissioner Stokes to appoint
Commissioner McVoy to serve as liaison to the Transportation Planning Authority.

Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor Robinson and Commissioners McVoy
and Stokes. NAYS: Commissioner Malega.

Motion made by Commissioner McVoy and seconded by Vice Mayor Robinson to appoint
Commissioner Malega as alternate liaison to the TPA.

Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor Robinson and Commissioners Malega,
McVoy and Stokes. NAYS: None.

2. Palm Beach County League of Cities

Motion made by Commissioner McVoy and seconded by Vice Mayor Robinson to appoint
Mayor Resch to serve as liaison to the Palm Beach County League of Cities.

Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor Robinson and Commissioners Malega,
McVoy and Stokes. NAYS: None.

3. Treasure Coast Regional Planning Council

Motion made by Commissioner McVoy and seconded by Commissioner Stokes to appoint
Vice Mayor Robinson to serve as liaison to the Treasure Coast Regional Planning Council.

Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor Robinson and Commissioners Malega,
McVoy and Stokes. NAYS: None.

4. Community Redevelopment Agency

Motion made by Vice Mayor Robinson and seconded by Commissioner McVoy to appoint
Mayor Resch to serve as liaison to the Community Redevelopment Agency.

Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor Robinson and Commissioners Malega,
McVoy and Stokes. NAYS: None.

5. Neighborhood Association Presidents’ Council



Action:

Vote:

Action:

Vote:

Pg. 5, Regular Meeting, April 6, 2021

Motion made by Vice Mayor Robinson and seconded by Commissioner McVoy to appoint
Commissioner Malega to serve as liaison to the Neighborhood Association Presidents’
Council.

Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor Robinson and Commissioners Malega,
McVoy and Stokes. NAYS: None.

6. Education Task Force

Motion made by Vice Mayor Robinson and seconded by Commissioner McVoy to appoint
Commissioner Stokes to serve as liaison to the Education Task Force.

Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor Robinson and Commissioners Malega,
McVoy and Stokes. NAYS: None.

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION OF NON-AGENDAED ITEMS AND CONSENT
AGENDA:

City Clerk Andrea read the comment submitted by the following:
Catherine Kohlmeyer wrote that the CRA liaison would provide needed oversight.

COMMISSION LIAISON REPORTS AND COMMENTS:

Commissioner Malega: thanked Lauren Bennett and her staff for having an online volunteer
sign up for the food distribution. She announced that there would be a clean up for Royal Palm
Neighborhood Association.

Commissioner McVoy: stated that several commissioners had attended a public health event
to give information about vaccinations. He reported that he had met with staff regarding
growth in the city versus resiliency and carbon footprint. He said that the commission had a
leadership role and were proactive.

Commissioner Stokes: said that she had attended the prayer, which was wonderful and she
had received her vaccination; she urged residents to continue to wear masks and get their
vaccinations. She said that she would be following legislation in Tallahassee.

Vice Mayor Robinson: told residents to speak out against hate speech and said that he looked
forward to upcoming work sessions. He asked residents to fill out applications for the city’s
advisory boards.

Mayor Resch: asked if some work session dates could be set up at the end of the meeting. She
announced that she had received her first vaccine.

Commissioner McVoy left the meeting at 7:35 PM and returned at 7:37 PM.

Action:

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:

Motion made by Vice Mayor Robinson and seconded by Commissioner Stokes to approve the
following minutes:



Vote:

Action:

Vote:

Pg. 6, Regular Meeting, April 6, 2021

A. Regular Meeting - March 2, 2021
B. Special Meeting #1 - March 16, 2021
C. Special Meeting #2 - March 16, 2021
D. Special Meeting - March 25, 2021

Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor Robinson and Commissioners Malega
and Stokes. NAYS: None. ABSENT: Commissioner McVoy.

CONSENT AGENDA: (public comment allowed during Public Participation of Non-
Agendaed items)

Motion made by Vice Mayor Robinson and seconded by Commissioner Malega to approve the
Consent Agenda.

A. Change Order No. 1 with Globaltech, Inc. for Utility Radio System Upgrade Phase 1
project

B. Proclamation declaring April 2021 as Water Conservation Month
C. Proclamation declaring April 2021 as Florida Water Professional Month
D. Change Order 02 to David Mancini & Sons Inc. for the Park of Commerce Phase 1B Project

Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor Robinson and Commissioners Malega
and Stokes. NAYS: None. ABSENT: Commissioner McVoy.

PUBLIC HEARINGS:
There were no Public Hearings on the agenda.

UNFINISHED BUSINESS:
There were no Unfinished Business items on the agenda.

The meeting recessed at 7:37 PM and reconvened at 7:48 PM.

NEW BUSINESS:

A. Agreement for On-Line Bill Pay services with Automated Merchant Systems, LLC

William Waters, Community Sustainability Director, said there an been an 18-month
endeavor to allow for online payments by the end of the fiscal year.

Comments/requests summary:
1. Mayor Resch asked what the user fee would be and if it was currently charged.

Mr. Waters responded that there would be a 2.85% credit card fee and credit cards were
not currently accepted.

City Manager Bornstein said that the city was negotiating the credit card fees.



Action:

Vote:

Pg. 7, Regular Meeting, April 6, 2021
2. Commissioner Malega opined that the fee was very low.

Mayor Resch asked if there were any public comments. No one from the public
commented.

Motion made by Commissioner Malega and seconded by Commissioner McVoy to approve
the Agreement for On-Line Bill Pay services with Automated Merchant Systems, LLC.

Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor Robinson and Commissioners Malega,
McVoy and Stokes. NAYS: None.

B. Ordinance No. 2021-02 — First Reading — Consideration of the establishment of a
residential planned development including a development of significant impact, a major
site plan, a conditional use, and sustainable bonus incentives for Golden Road Apartments,
which includes 230 residential units

Mayor Resch stated that the item was a quasi-judicial hearing to hear the first reading of
Ordinance No. 2021-02 and asked City Attorney Torcivia to read the ordinance.

City Attorney Torcivia read the ordinance by title only.

ORDINANCE NO. 2021-02 AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE
CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, AMENDING THE OFFICIAL ZONING
MAP BY APPROVING THE CREATION OF A RESIDENTIAL PLANNED
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, LOCATED AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF 10TH
AVENUE NORTH AND BOUTWELL ROAD CONSISTING OF APPROXIMATELY
6.39 ACRES AS MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED IN EXHIBIT A, THAT IS
LOCATED WITHIN THE MIXED USE — WEST (MU-W) ZONING DISTRICT WITH
A FUTURE LAND USE DESIGNATION OF MIXED USE — WEST (MU-W) THAT
INCLUDES THE SPECIFIC DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS DESCRIBED IN
EXHIBIT B; APPROVING A DEVELOPMENT OF SIGNIFICANT IMPACT,
APPROVING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT; APPROVING DENSITY AND
HEIGHT BONUS INCENTIVES THORUGH THE CITY’S SUSTAINABLE BONUS
INCENTIVE PROGRAM; APPROVING A MAJOR SITE PLAN FOR THE
CONSTRUCTION OF A 230-UNIT RESIDENTIAL PLANNED DEVELOPMENT;
PROVIDED FOR SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE

Mayor Resch asked if the commissioners had any ex-parte communications to disclose.

Commissioner Malega said that she had not responded to any emails from Mr. Romano
and had met with WGI before her election about general projects.

Commissioner McVoy said that he had corresponded with and spoken to Mr. Romano.
Commissioner Stokes stated that she had not had any conversations with any of the parties.

Vice Mayor Robinson reporting attending a zoom meeting with WGI and receiving emails
from Mr. Romano.

Mayor Resch said that she did azoom meeting with WGI and a site visit as well as receiving



Pg. 8, Regular Meeting, April 6, 2021

many emails from Mr. Romano.

Mayor Resch stated that all those giving testimony in the hearing should stand, raise their
right hands, face the City Attorney and be sworn in.

Those giving testimony were sworn in.

Mayor Resch announced that in addition to the applicant, there was an affected party who
wished to be heard and under the quasi-judicial rules the city would present first, followed
by the applicant and then the affected party, Rodney Romano.

Mayor Resch asked city staff to give the department’s presentation.

Mr. Waters spoke about the regulatory documents under the Strategic Plan including the
Comprehensive Plan (comp plan) and Future Land Use Map (FLUM), the Land
Development Regulations (LDRs), Entitlement Incentive Programs and Guidelines
included by reference such as the Major Thoroughfare and Historic Preservation
Guidelines. He explained the standards that were examined when considering a new
development and said that the intent of a planned development district was to encourage,
through height, density and/or intensity incentives, the use of innovative land planning and
development techniques to create more desirable and attractive development in the city.

Erin Sita, Community Sustainability Assistant Director, discussed the specifics of the 230-
unit multi-family development at the northwest corner of 10th Avenue North and Boutwell
Road commonly known as either Golden Roads or Advantis and said that the Planning and
Zoning Board had recommended approval by a vote of six to one at their March 3, 2021
meeting. She iterated the request to the commission, recommended by staff, for a
Development of Significant Impact, which is required for development with over 100
residential dwelling units, a Residential Planned Development to construct a 230-unit
multi-family development, a Major Site Plan for the development of a new multi-family
building in excess of 7,500 square feet, a Conditional Use Permit to establish a residential
master plan greater than 7,500 square feet and a Sustainable Bonus Program Incentive for
an additional 24 feet of height and an additional density of 6 units per acre. She explained
the conditions of approval.

Mayor Resch asked the applicant to make its presentation.

Lindsay Libes, Director of PLACE Operations for WGI, Yoan Machado, Project Manager
for WGI and Brian Seymour, Attorney, Gunster Law Firm, spoke as the agents for the
applicant. Ms. Libes listed the project team and went over the existing location, existing
FLU and zoning, the existing approved site plan from 2018, and the permitted and
conditional uses for MU-W (mixed-use west). She stated that the proposed development
would be built in one phase of 230 multifamily apartments, a 3875 square foot clubhouse
and 379 parking spaces. She said that the community would be gated and the developer
would immediately build a six-foot high post and panel wall along the north and northeast
portion as requested during the neighborhood meeting on February 25, 2021. She
compared the proposed elements with the maximum allowed and the plans from 2018 to
2021. She said that there had been a full traffic analysis showing that the project met FDOT
and PBC standards and showed renderings of the planned buffers and community. She
announced that the project met all of the rezoning criteria for a residential planned
development, that no waivers nor variances had been requested and discussed the value



Pg. 9, Regular Meeting, April 6, 2021
that would be added to the city.
Commissioner Malega asked what the rents would be for the different sized apartments.

Navish Chawla of WGI, replied that one-bedrooms would be $1275-$1350 and two-
bedrooms from $1450-$1700.

Mayor Resch asked Rodney Romano, the affected party, to make his presentation.

Mr. Romano stated that residents had never agreed with adding so much more traffic to
10th Avenue North nor with so much traffic, density and height for the project. He stated
that the city had created MU-W solely for the project, increasing zoning from eight to 30
units per acre and a 30 foot height limitation and now the successors asked for even more;
he was unable to find the history that allowed for more than a doubling of height for a few
internal amenities. He iterated that every public record reflected their adamant opposition
from the beginning to the traffic concerns, the height and the density. He said that higher
density and height toward 10th Avenue were reasonable as the other buildings were set far
enough away from the single family residential area, but did not understand so much
density had to be packed in. He told the commission that they had ample reason to reject
the application outright for traffic issues alone; even if the County allowed the additional
traffic, further congesting 10th Avenue would not be right nor good for the City.

Mayor Resch asked City Clerk Andrea if there were any public comments.
City Clerk Andrea read the public comments submitted by the following:
Catherine Kohlmeyer wrote that the city needed more affordable housing.

Nick Paliughi wrote that the city should strongly consider affordable housing requirements for
any new developments being proposed.

Matthew Brennan wrote in favor of Golden Road Apartments.

Richard Stowe wrote in opposition to the development due to the projected traffic that would
adversely affect 10" Avenue North.

Peter Pascal wrote that the property should be fenced to address the homeless people camping
there.

Mayor Resch asked if city staff had any questions for the applicant or affected parties.
Ms. Sita replied that staff had no questions.

Mayor Resch asked if the applicant had any questions for city staff or the affected party.
Mr. Seymour questioned Mr. Romano about his qualifications related to property
development, if he was aware that the property had approval for a build out through 2022

and about the allowable uses.

Mayor Resch asked if the affected party had any questions for the applicant or city staff.



Pg. 10, Regular Meeting, April 6, 2021
Mr. Romano waived his right to question.
City Clerk Andrea stated that someone was waiting virtually to comment.

Jeremiah Romano stated that he was an affected party and was sworn in. He voiced his
concerns about adding more residents to the city and increasing the crime rate of one of the
most dangerous cities in the country.

Ms. Sita stated that Mr. Jeremiah Romano did not register in time to be an affected party
so his comment was more of a public comment.

Mayor Resch asked if the commissioners had questions for Rodney Romano and there were
no questions.

Mayor Resch closed the public hearing and asked the commissioners to discuss the request.
Comments/requests summary:

1. Commissioner Malega asked about pricing for the three-bedroom units and if there
were elevators in all buildings or security cameras. She said that safety and security
would be very important for the development and the surrounding areas; she requested
that everyone get a video doorbell and that security cameras be added. She asked about
the landscaping regarding privacy and if some of the trees could be saved as well as if
the three-story buildings could be lowered to two-story.

Ms. Libes replied that there would be eight three-bedrooms renting for more than
$1700. She said that there would be an elevator in the five-story building, but not in
the three-story buildings.

The applicant agreed to installing video doorbells in all units plus adding security
cameras and that the plan could be brought back at second reading with two-story
buildings.

Ms. Sita responded that the northern property line would have pine trees to provide
screening and habitat.

2. Commissioner McVoy asked about the water treatment to protect the outflow to the
canal and said that all of the lights be moved to 2700 to comply with the code.

Ms. Libes said that all stormwater would be held underground and treated on site.

Mr. Seymour stated that the water moved into the tanks and was filtered out and that
Commissioner McVoy could meet with the engineer before the second reading.

Ms. Sita reported that there was no regulation for dark skies, that it was a best practice.

Commissioner McVoy asked if there were any offsite components to the sustainable
bonus.

Ms. Libes responded that there would be a bus shelter on 10" Avenue North, a sidewalk



Pg. 11, Regular Meeting, April 6, 2021

and the dedication of a potential right-of-way to the city at its appraised value.

Commissioner McVoy stated that he was interested in sustainable bonuses that would
benefit the entire city. He asked for the plan to ensure that the permeable materials
would remain permeable.

Ms. Libes responded that the building would be green certified and there would be
electric charging stations. She stated that the permeable material would be replaced
immediately if it corked up.

Mr. Seymour stated that the conditions would stay with the property, no matter who
owned it, SFWMD would oversee the water discharge and the city’s code compliance
would issue a violation.

Ms. Libes said that covered parking could be included for the second reading.

3. Commissioner Stokes asked for clarification around the traffic issues, if the study was
based on the current conditions or the future configuration.

Commissioner Malega left the meeting at 9:28 PM and returned at 9:34 PM.

Mr. Seymour answered that the future configuration was not included in the study; all
of the county regulations were followed.

Commissioner Stokes asked about the sustainable bonus incentives. She said that she
was in favor of adding more housing units to the city, questioned why other types of
housing had not been included and what would prevent the rates from being raised.

Ms. Libes replied that the rental rates were in line with what the county considered to
be workforce housing.

Mr. Seymour stated that the apartments did not have the amenities that would demand
an increase in rates.

Commissioner Stokes requested more shade trees in the parking lots rather than
carports. She asked if there could be more incentives added outside of the community.

Mr. Seymour stated that the goal was to reach workforce housing rents and the
amenities had to be considered to keep the rent from trending up.

Commissioner Stokes encouraged having two-story buildings rather than three-story.
Commissioner McVoy left the meeting at 9:38 PM and returned at 9:40 PM.
4. Vice Mayor Robinson stated that roads developed as people moved to south Florida.
He suggested having a shuttle service from several developments to the downtown to

help with traffic. He asked if there would be manned security or just cameras.

Mr. Seymour responded that there would be monitored cameras, but manned security
could be added if deemed necessary.



Pg. 12, Regular Meeting, April 6, 2021

Motion was made to extend the meeting until 11:00 PM.

5. Commissioner Malega asked if there was a study about how much revenue would be
projected for the EU.

Mr. Waters replied that the Mid with about 230 units would generate approximately
$100,000 a year.

Discussion ensued regarding the feasibility of a shuttle.

6. Mayor Resch asked if the commission was compelled to have the first reading
postponed to allow for the revisions that had been proposed and for the commissioners
to meet with the applicant.

City Attorney Torcivia replied that the first reading could be postponed to a date certain
or that the applicant could bring back revisions for the second reading. He said that the
quasi-judicial hearing could be adjourned and no vote be taken, but no meetings could
take place with the applicant.

Mr. Seymour said that the engineering component was very complicated.

The commission agreed that Commissioner McVoy could meet with the engineer.

Mayor Resch expressed concern about the traffic on 10" Avenue North when
increasing the site from 189 to 230 units.

Mr. Waters answered that the previous project had a commercial component that would
have generated more traffic than the proposed development.

Mayor Resch asked why the original plan with the buildings overlooking water was
changed to overlook parking.

Commissioner Stokes left the meeting at 10:10 PM and returned at 10:13 PM.
Mr. Seymour replied that the clubhouse and pool were located in the center of the site
to allow for each unit to have the same value. He said that he felt that he was up against

a losing battle and they were trying to accommodate the neighbors with the redesigns.

Mayor Resch asked if there was guest parking and if the back buildings could be
lowered to fit better with the surrounding residential area.

Mr. Seymour answered that there would be guest parking, but the parking was
unassigned and that the applicant would look at having two-story buildings in the back
as well as the covered parking and other suggestions from the commission.

7. Commissioner McVoy made suggestions for the canal and other variable native plants.

Action:  Motion made by Vice Mayor Robinson and seconded by Commissioner Malega to continue
the hearing until April 20, 2021.



Pg. 13, Regular Meeting, April 6, 2021

Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor Robinson and Commissioners Malega,
McVoy and Stokes. NAYS: None.

C. Ordinance 2021-01 - First Reading - Consideration of an ordinance to Chapter 23 “Land
Development Regulations” regarding changes to allow for takeout establishments by
zoning district and to clarify that only one (1) continuance is permitted for all affected
parties to ensure that the city does not run afoul of development review time limitations for
local governments as set forth in Florida law, and several minor amendments related to
definitions and use review processes

City Attorney Torcivia read the ordinance by title only.

ORDINANCE 2021-01 - AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH,
FLORIDA, AMENDING CHAPTER 23 “LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS,”
ARTICLE 1, “GENERAL PROVISIONS,” DIVISION 2 “DEFINITIONS,” SECTION
23.1.12 “DEFINITIONS” TO ADD AND CLARIFY USE DEFINITIONS; ARTICLE 2,
“ADMINISTRATION”, DIVISION 2 “PROCEDURES,” SECTION 23.2-16 “QUASI-
JUDICIAL PROCEDURES” TO UPDATE AND CLARIFY PROVISIONS RELATED
TO AFFECTED PARTIES, AND AMENDING DIVISION 1 “GENERALLY,”
SECTION 23.3-6 “USE TABLES” TO ALLOW FOR TAKE OUT ESTABLISHMENTS
BY ZONING DISTRICT AND TO MODIFY THE ZONING DISTRICT AND REVIEW
PROCESS FOR SEVERAL USES; AND ADDING A NEW SECTION 23.4-23 - “TAKE
OUT ESTABLISHMENTS” TO CREATE DEVELOPMENT REVIEW STANDARDS
FOR TAKE OUT ESTABLISHMENT USES; AND PROVIDING FOR
SEVERABILITY, THE REPEAL OF LAWS IN CONFLICT, CODIFICATION, AND
AN EFFECTIVE DATE

Ms. Sita explained that the ordinance addressed changing market conditions, minor
housekeeping modifications and clarified that the intent of the recently adopted affected
party continuance provisions was to allow for one (1) continuance for all affected parties
as consistent with time limitations set forth in Florida law. She summarized the
amendments in each exhibit to add and modify definitions to clarify several existing uses,
to define the new use, “Take-out Establishments”, clarified that only one continuance is
permitted for all affected parties, amended the city’s use tables to allow for take-out
establishments by zoning district, modified the review process for several existing uses and
added a new notation that residential uses, except for single-family and two-family uses,
greater than 7,500 sf would require a conditional use permit approval.

Comments/requests summary:

1. Mayor Resch asked about continuances.
Ms. Sita replied that that an applicant or affected party had the right to request a
continuance which would be granted by right, further requests could be granted by a

Board at its discretion.

Mr. Waters explained that the ordinance clarified that affected parties were granted a
continuance by right and that any other requests would be up to the Board to allow.

Mayor Resch asked if there were any public comments. No one from the public commented.



Action:

Vote:

Action:

Vote:

Pg. 14, Regular Meeting, April 6, 2021

2. Commissioner Stokes said that the language was inconsistent and asked that it be
firmed up.

Ms. Sita said that the word “request” could be removed for the second reading. She
stated that affected parties were attempting to kill a project with multiple continuances,
which was a violation of due process in the Florida Statutes.

3. Commissioner Malega asked if medical offices in exhibit A included medical
marijuana dispensaries.

Mr. Waters said that it did.

4. Commissioner Stokes inquired about takeout establishments as some restaurants had
takeout windows.

Ms. Sita responded that the addition of takeout establishments was to make the
downtown more walkable and to give relief to takeout establishments while
maintaining the character downtown.
Motion made by Commissioner Malega and seconded by Vice Mayor Robinson to approve
Ordinance No. 2021-01 on first reading and to schedule the second reading and public hearing
for April 20, 2021.

Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor Robinson and Commissioners Malega,
McVoy and Stokes. NAYS: None.

D. Task Order No. 7 with Craven Thompson & Associates, Inc. for construction phase
engineering services for the 2-inch Watermain Replacement Phase 5&6 Project

Brian Shields, Water Utility Director, explained that the contractor would be inspecting the
final phases of the project.

Comments/requests summary:
1. Commissioner Malega asked if the affected residents would be notified.
Mr. Shields responded that there would be door hangers for the residents.

Mayor Resch asked if there were any public comments. No one from the public
commented.

Motion made by Commissioner Malega and seconded by Commissioner McVoy to approve
Task Order No. 7 with Craven Thompson & Associates, Inc. for construction phase
engineering services for the 2-inch Watermain Replacement Phase 5&6 Project.

Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor Robinson and Commissioners Malega,
McVoy and Stokes. NAYS: None.

E. Agreement with Amici Engineering Contractors, LLC for construction of the 2-inch
Watermain Replacement Phase 5&6 Project



Action:

Vote:

Action:

Vote:

Action:

\Vote:

Pg. 15, Regular Meeting, April 6, 2021
Motion made by Commissioner McVoy and seconded by Commissioner Malega to approve
Agreement with Amici Engineering Contractors, LLC for construction of the 2-inch
Watermain Replacement Phase 5&6 Project.

Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor Robinson and Commissioners Malega,
McVoy and Stokes. NAYS: None.

F. Third Amendment to Agreement with USP Technologies for Wastewater Odor Control
Chemicals and Services

Mr. Shields explained that the item was a piggyback to the contract with Boynton Beach
to procure chemicals for odor control throughout the collection system.
Comments/requests summary:

1. Commissioner Stokes asked why the price had increased.

Mr. Shields answered that costs related to supply chain issues and deliveries had
increased nationwide and FY 21 was halfway over.

Motion made by Commissioner Malega and seconded by Commissioner Stokes to approve the
Third Amendment to Agreement with USP Technologies for Wastewater Odor Control
Chemicals and Services.

Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor Robinson and Commissioners Malega,
McVoy and Stokes. NAYS: None.

G. First amendment to parking enforcement solutions equipment and related services
agreement with IPS Group, Inc.

Lauren Bennett, Leisure Services Director, reported that the city had gone to bid on parking
meter and related services in 2018.

City Manager Bornstein explained that the parking revenue would cover the increased cost.
Comments/requests summary:
1. Commissioner McVoy asked if user data was collected and used.
Ms. Bennett answered that the data was collected and used.
2. Commissioner Malega asked if there was an additional cost for credit cards.
Ms. Bennett stated that the cost was built in.
Motion made by Commissioner Malega and seconded by Commissioner Stokes to approve the
First amendment to parking enforcement solutions equipment and related services agreement

with IPS Group, Inc.

Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor Robinson and Commissioners Malega,
McVoy and Stokes. NAYS: None.



Action:

Vote:

Action:

Vote:

Pg. 16, Regular Meeting, April 6, 2021

H. Resolution No. 13-2021 — Community Project Funding (CPF) Emergency Operation
Center (EOC) Grant Application

City Attorney Torcivia did not read the resolution.

RESOLUTION NO. 13-2021 OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA,
APPROVES AND AUTHORIZES THE SUBMISSION OF AN APPLICATION FOR
FUNDING UNDER THE FISCAL YEAR 2022 COMMUNITY PROJECT FUNDING:
HOMELAND SECURITY EMERGENCY OPERATION CENTER GRANT PROGRAM
ACCOUNT IN THE AMOUNT OF $2,000,000 FOR CONSTRUCTION OF A
MUNICIPAL EMERGENCY OPERATION CENTER; PROVIDING FOR AN
EFFECTIVE DATE; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES

Jamie Brown, Public Works Director, explained that State Senator Lois Frankel
implemented the Community Project Funding initiative with the caveat that a project had
to be shovel ready or close to shovel ready to receive funding; the new public works/fleet
building was currently in design with an EOC component. He stated that the item required
a resolution to be submitted with the application for the April 9 deadline; $2 M was being
requested with the city being responsible for $500,000 in costs.

Comments/requests summary:
1. Commissioner Malega asked that plans be provided in the future.

Mayor Resch asked if there were any public comments. No one from the public
commented.

Motion made by Commissioner Malega and seconded by Commissioner McVoy to approve
Resolution No. 13-2021 authorizing the submission of an application for funding under the
Community Projects Funding: FY 2022 Homeland Security Emergency Operation Center
Grant account for the construction of the City’s emergency operation center.

Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor Robinson and Commissioners Malega,
McVoy and Stokes. NAYS: None.

Motion made by Vice Mayor Robinson and seconded by Commissioner Malega to extend the
meeting for another hour.

Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor Robinson and Commissioners Malega,
McVoy and Stokes. NAYS: None.

I. Resolution No. 14-2021 — Community Project Funding CRA Small Business Quick Action
Emergency Grant Program Application

City Attorney Torcivia did not read the resolution.

RESOLUTION NO. 14-2021 OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA,
APPROVES AND AUTHORIZES THE SUBMISSION OF AN APPLICATION FOR
FUNDING UNDER THE FISCAL YEAR 2022 COMMUNITY PROJECT FUNDING
FISCAL YEAR 2022 TRANSPORTATION, HOUSING AND URBAN
DEVELOPMENT ACCOUNT IN THE AMOUNT OF $400,000 FOR THE LAKE



Action:

Vote:

Action:

Vote:

Pg. 17, Regular Meeting, April 6, 2021

WORTH BEACH COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY SMALL BUSINESS
QUICK ACTION EMMERGENCY GRANT PROGRAM; PROVIDING FOR AN
EFFECTIVE DATE; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES

Commissioner Malega explained that the item was an ask was for $400,000 city-wide from
Senator Frankel’s CPF funding with the CRA adding $100,000 and overseeing the
distribution.

Motion made by Commissioner McVoy and seconded by Vice Mayor Robinson to approve
Resolution No. 14-2021 authorizing the submission of an application for funding under the
Community Projects Funding: FY Transportation, Housing and Urban Development Grant
account for the Lake Worth Beach CRA Small Business Quick Action Emergency Grant
Program.

Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor Robinson and Commissioners Malega,
McVoy and Stokes. NAYS: None.

J. Agreement with Stantec Consulting Services, Inc for Comprehensive Sustainability
Analysis for the city for the FY 2022 Budget not to exceed $125,119.00

City Manager Bornstein explained that Stantec had done the modeling for the EU’s rate
structure years ago and the scope had expanded to modeling all of the city funds as a
budgeting tool.

Comments/requests summary:

1. Commissioner McVoy said that the modeling was very helpful and was in favor of
continuing. He asked if the EU was included.

City Manager Bornstein answered that the modeling included all funds.
Motion made by Commissioner Malega and seconded by Commissioner McVoy to approve
the Agreement with Stantec Consulting Services, Inc for Comprehensive Sustainability
Analysis for the city for the FY 2022 Budget not to exceed $125,119.00.

Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor Robinson and Commissioners Malega,
McVoy and Stokes. NAYS: None.

K. City of Lake Worth Beach Food Drive
Ms. Bennett said that the item was a joint one with Public Works. She iterated that Special
Events had only two staff members who also had to deal with all city functions and they
were being stretched very thin. She requested changing the distribution to the first and
third Tuesdays of the month.
Comments/requests summary:

1. Commissioner Malega asked what time the distribution had ended that day.

Ms. Bennett replied that distribution had ended at 9:30, earlier than usual.



Action:

Vote:

Pg. 18, Regular Meeting, April 6, 2021

2. Commissioner Stokes said that she would favor continuing the distribution on a weekly
basis if staff could be given relief through the end of the month and looking for more
volunteers. She inquired about the time to put up and take down the tents.

Ms. Bennett said that the tents were very large and took a crew four hours to assemble
and take down the tents.

Mr. Brown stated that set up began at 6:30 AM and staff was on site to break down the
boxes during the distribution.

3. Vice Mayor Robinson asked if walk ups could be accommodated.
Ms. Bennett said that it would be dangerous to have people walking up and would
require additional logistics and staff to add that component. She said that staff and
volunteers were on standby if the commission decided to continue the weekly
distribution.

4. Commissioner McVoy suggested keeping it weekly through the end of April to see if
the demand had fallen.

Motion made by Commissioner Stokes and seconded by Vice Mayor Robinson to continue
weekly distribution through April 30 and then bring the item back.

Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor Robinson and Commissioners Malega,
McVoy and Stokes. NAYS: None.

CITY ATTORNEY'S REPORT:

City Attorney Torcivia requested a 45-minute attorney-client session regarding pending
litigation in the case of the city versus FEMA on April 27, 2021 at 5 PM.

CITY MANAGER'S REPORT:

City Manager Bornstein provided the following report:

e There would be a work session following the regular meeting on April 20 to discuss the
Capital Improvement Plan (CIP), American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) funding and the
penny sales tax;

e There could be a work session following the EU meeting on April 27 or on May 6 to discuss
the Strategic Plan, Comp Plan and strategic processes with the goal of having the
commission ready for the budget work sessions beginning on June 3.

Commissioner Malega asked when the commission would receive the financial information
from last year.

City Manager Bornstein replied that the documents were being prepared for the commission.
Bruce Miller, Financial Services Director, said that he could provide an update.

Commissioner McVoy requested an overview of the large amounts of money coming in and



Pg. 19, Regular Meeting, April 6, 2021

going out in pie chart form.
e City Manager Bornstein submitted his letter of resignation via email, which would go into
effect in sixty days. He said that it had been an honor; he had told his wife he would be

with the city for five years, and it had been nine years.

Commissioner Stokes thanked City Manager Bornstein for all of the positive things that had
been accomplished under his stewardship.

Mayor Resch expressed shock at the resignation and said that there should be a discussion on
replacing the City Manager.

ADJOURNMENT:
Action:  Motion made by Commissioner Malega and seconded by Commissioner McVoy to adjourn
the meeting at 11:28 PM.
Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor Robinson and Commissioners Malega,
McVoy and Stokes. NAYS: None.
Betty Resch, Mayor
ATTEST:

Deborah M. Andrea, CMC, City Clerk

Minutes Approved: April 20, 2021



EXECUTIVE BRIEF
REGULAR MEETING

AGENDA DATE: April 20, 2021 DEPARTMENT: Community
Sustainability/Legal

TITLE:

Professional Services Agreement (Special Magistrate Services) with Natalie Green Moore, of
NGM Law, P.A.

SUMMARY:

This Professional Services Agreement for Special Magistrate Services will provide the City with
an additional special magistrate, who will preside over code enforcement hearings and other
code enforcement hearings and other applicable matters/hearings (including parking citation
hearings) along with the current special magistrates Keith Davis and Myrnabelle Roche.
Services will be provided on a rotating basis or when a magistrate is needed for special hearings.

BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION:

Pursuant to section 2-63 of the City’s Code of Ordinances, the City is required to retain one or
more special magistrates to preside over code enforcement hearings and other applicable
matters. Currently, the City has two special magistrates but it is being recommended that
another special magistrate be contracted with to keep up with Code’s work volume. It is also a
good policy to have more than two special magistrates to avoid conflicts of interest and
scheduling conflicts.

Attached is the proposed Professional Services Agreement for Special Magistrate Services with
Natalie Green Moore of NGM Law, P.A.

MOTION:

Move to approve/disapprove the Professional Services Agreement for Special Magistrate
Services with Natalie Green Moore of NGM Law, P.A.

ATTACHMENT(S):

Fiscal Impact Analysis — N/A
Contract
Resume



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
(Special Magistrate Services)

THIS AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is entered into by and between the City of L.ake Worth, a
Florida municipal corporation (“City”) and Natalie E. Green Moore, Esq., an attorney licensed to
practice law in the State of Florida (“Special Magistrate”), ecffective this day of
, 2021.

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the City is in need of special magistrate services for its code enforcement hearings,
parking hearings, and other related hearings; and

WHEREAS, Special Magistrate has notified the City of her interest to serve as a special
magistrate; and

WHEREAS, the City Attorney reviewed the skill and experience of Special Magistrate and has
determined that Special Magistrate is qualified to provide the special magistrate services to the City; and

WHEREAS, the purpose of this Agreement is to set forth certain terms and conditions for the
provision of the services to be provided by Special Magistrate to the City.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and mutual covenants herein contained, the
sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged by the parties, the City and Special Magistrate agree as follows:

SECTION 1: INCORPORATION OF RECITALS. The foregoing Recitals are incorporated into this
Agreement as true and correct statements. )

SECTION 2: SPECIAL MAGISTRATE’S SERVICES. Special Magistrate shall serve as a special
magistrate for code enforcement hearings and other related hearings. The City will notify Special Magistrate
of such hearings and the dates upon which the City seeks Special Magistrate to serve. This is not an
exclusive contract. The parties agree that Special Magistrate shall serve in an ex officio capacity if Special
Magistrate serves other local governments as a special magistrate, and that such service to other local
governments does not create duties inconsistent with serving as the special magistrate to the City.

SECTION 3: INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR RELATIONSHIP. No relationship of employer or
employee is created by this Agreement, it being understood that Special Magistrate will act hereunder as an
independent contractor and none of the Special Magistrate’s, officers, dircctors, employees, independent
contractors, representatives or agents performing services for Special Magistrate pursuant to this Agreement
shall have any claim under this Agreement or otherwise against the City for compensation of any kind under
this Agreement. The relationship between the City and Special Magistrate is that of independent contractors,
and neither shall be considered a joint venturer, partner, employee, agent, representative or other relationship
of the other for any purpose expressly or by implication.

SECTION 4: TERM AND TERMINATION.

a. Term. The term of this Agreement is for one year with three (3) one (1) year extensions.
The extensions may be exercised by the City Manager on behalf of the City.



b. Termination without cause. Either party may terminate this Agreement at any time with
or without cause by giving not less than thirty (30) days prior written notice of termination.

c. Termination for cause. Either party may terminate this Agreement at any time in the
event that the other party engages in any act or makes any omission constituting a material breach of any
term or condition of this Agreement. The party eclecting to terminate this Agreement shall provide the
other party with written notice specifying the nature of the breach. The party receiving the notice shall
then have three (3) days from the date of the notice in which to remedy the breach. If such corrective
action is not taken within three (3) days, then this Agreement shall terminate at the end of the three 3
day period without further notice or demand.

d. Effect of Termination. Termination of this Agreement shall not affect any rights,
obligations, and liabilities of the parties arising out of transactions which occurred prior to termination.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the parties acknowledge and agree that this Agreement (and all Exhibits
hereto) are subject to budgeting and appropriation by the City of funds sufficient to pay the costs
associated herewith in any fiscal year of the City. Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the
contrary, in the event that no funds are appropriated or budgeted by the City’s governing board in any
fiscal year to pay the costs associated with the City’s obligations under this Agreement, or in the event the
funds budgeted or appropriated are, or are estimated by the City to be, insufficient to pay the costs
associated with the City’s obligations hereunder in any fiscal period, then the City will notify Special
Magistrate of such occurrence and either the City or Special Magistrate may terminate this Agreement by
notifying the other in writing, which notice shall specify a date of termination no earlier than twenty-four
(24) hours after giving of such notice. Termination in accordance with the preceding sentence shall be
without penalty or expense to the City of any kind whatsoever. City shall pay Special Magistrate for all
services provided up to the date of termination.

SECTION 5: COMPENSATION.

a. Payments. The City agrees to compensate Special Magistrate for services provided in the
amount of One Hundred Ninety Dollars ($190.00) per hour. The Special Magistrate shall not charge for
travel time to and from the hearings. However, reasonable expenses, including mileage (IRS rate) and
copy charges (.10 per page), are acceptable.

b. Invoices. Special Magistrate shall render invoices to the City for services that have been
rendered in conformity with this Agreement in the previous month. Invoices will be reviewed and
normally paid within thirty (30) days following the City’s receipt of the Special Magistrate’s invoice.
Invoices shall be submitted to:

City of Lake Worth

Attn: Finance Department
7 N. Dixie Highway

Lake Worth, FL. 33460

With a copy (via mail or email) to:
Torcivia, Donlon, Goddeau & Rubin, P.A.
701 Northpoint Parkway, Suite 209
West Palm Beach, FL 33407



If the City has questions or concerns regarding an invoice, it will notify Special Magistrate regarding the
same within ten (10) days of receiving the invoice. The City will then pay the invoice within thirty (30)
days of resolving the outstanding issues.

SECTION 6: COMPLIANCE. Each of the parties agrees to perform its responsibilities under this
Agreement in conformance with all laws, regulations and administrative instructions that relate to the
parties’ performance of this Agreement.

SECTION 7: DISPUTE RESOLUTION, LAW, VENUE AND REMEDIES. All claims arising out of this
Agreement or its breach shall be submitted first to mediation. The parties shall share the mediator’s fee
equally. The mediation shall be held in Palm Beach County. Agreements reached in mediation shall be
enforceable as settlement agreements in any court having jurisdiction thereof. This Agreement shall be
governed by the laws of the State of Florida. Any and all legal action necessary to enforce the Agreement
will be held in Palm Beach County. No remedy herein conferred upon any party is intended to be exclusive
of any other remedy, and each and every such remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to every
other remedy given hereunder or now or hereafter existing at law or in equity or by statute or otherwise. No
single or partial exercise by any party of any right, power, or remedy hereunder shall preclude any other or
further exercise thereof.

SECTION 8: WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL. TO ENCOURAGE PROMPT AND EQUITABLE
RESOLUTION OF ANY LITIGATION, EACH PARTY HEREBY WAIVES ITS RIGHTS TO A
TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY LITIGATION RELATED TO THIS AGREEMENT.

SECTION 9: AUTHORITY TO PRACTICE. Special Magistrate hereby represents and warrants that
she has and will continue to maintain all licenses and approvals required to conduct her business and
provide the services required under this Agreement, and that she will at all times conduct her business and
provide the services under this Agreement in a reputable manner. Proof of such licenses and approvals
shall be submitted to the City upon request.

SECTION 10: SEVERABILITY. If any term or provision of this Agreement, or the application thereof
to any person or circumstances shall, to any extent, be held invalid or unenforceable, to remainder of this
Agreement, or the application of such terms or provision, to persons or circumstances other than those as
to which it is held invalid or unenforceable, shall not be affected, and every other term and provision of
this Agreement shall be deemed valid and enforceable to the extent permitted by law.

SECTION 11: PUBLIC ENTITY CRIMES. Special Magistrate acknowledges and agrees that a person
or affiliate who has been placed on the convicted vendor list following a conviction for a public entity
crime may not submit a bid, proposal, or reply on a contract to provide any goods or services to a public
entity; may not submit a bid, proposal, or reply on a contract with a public entity for the construction or
repair of a public building or public work; may not submit bids, proposals, or replies on leases of real
property to a public entity; may not be awarded or perform work as a contractor, supplier or sub-
contractor under a contract with any public entity; and may not transact business with any public entity in
excess of the threshold amount provided in Section 287.017, Florida Statutes, for CATEGORY TWO for
a period of 36 months following the date of being placed on the convicted vendor list. The Special
Magistrate will advise the City immediately if it becomes aware of any violation of this statute.




SECTION 12: NOTICE. All notices required in this Agreement shall be sent by certified mail, return
receipt requested, or by nationally recognized overnight courier, and if sent to the CITY shall be sent to:

City of Lake Worth
Attn: City Manager
7 N. Dixie Highway
Lake Worth, FL 33460

and if sent to the SPECIAL MAGISTRATE, shall be sent to:

Natalie E. Green Moore, Esq.
10130 Northlake Boulevard Ste 214-188
West Palm Beach, FL 33412

Email: ngmlaw1@gmail.com

The foregoing names and addresses may be changed if such change is provided in writing to the other

party.

SECTION 13: PUBLIC RECORDS. Special Magistrate shall comply with Florida’s Public Records
Act, Chapter 119, Florida Statutes (§119.0701), and, if determined to be acting on behalf of the City as
provided under section 119.011(2), Florida Statutes, specifically agrees to:

(a) Keep and maintain public records required by the City to perform the service.

(b) Upon request from the City’s custodian of public records or designee, provide the City with a
copy of the requested records or allow the records to be inspected or copied within a reasonable time at a
cost that does not exceed the cost provided in Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, or as otherwise provided by
law.

(c) Ensure that public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records
disclosure requirements are not disclosed except as authorized by law for the duration of this Agreement
and following completion of this Agreement if Special Magistrate does not transfer the records to the

City.

(d) Upon completion of this Agreement, transfer, at no cost, to the City all public records in
possession of Special Magistrate or keep and maintain public records required by the City to perform the
service. If Special Magistrate transfers all public records to the City upon completion of the Agreement,
Special Magistrate shall destroy any duplicate public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt
from public records disclosure requirements. If Special Magistrate keeps and maintains public records
upon completion of the Agreement, Special Magistrate shall meet all applicable requirements for
retaining public records. All records stored electronically must be provided to the City, upon request from
the City’s custodian of public records or designee, in a format that is compatible with the information
technology systems of the City.

IF SPECIAL MAGISTRATE HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE
APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO THE
SPECIAL MAGISTRATE’S DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS
RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT, CONTACT THE CUSTODIAN OF
PUBLIC RECORDS OR DESIGNEE AT: ATTENTION DEBBIE ANDREA,

4



(561) 586-1660 OR DANDREA@LAKEWORTH.ORG OR 7 NORTH DIXIE
HIGHWAY, LAKE WORTH, FL 33460.

SECTION 14: ENTIRETY OF AGREEMENT. The City and Special Magistrate agree that this
Agreement sets forth the entire agreement between the parties, and that there are no promises or
understandings other than those stated herein. None of the provisions, terms and conditions contained in
this Agreement may be added to, modified, superseded or otherwise altered, except by written instrument
executed by the parties hereto.

SECTION 15: WAIVER. Failure of a party to enforce or exercise any of its right(s) under this
Agreement shall not be deemed a waiver of that parties’ right to enforce or exercise said right(s) at any
time thereafter.

SECTION 16: PREPARATION. This Agreement shall not be construed more strongly against either
party regardless of who was more responsible for its preparation.

SECTION 17: COUNTERPARTS. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each
of which shall be deemed an original, and will become effective and binding upon the parties as of the
effective date at such time as all the signatories hereto have signed a counterpart of this Agreement.

SECTION 18: PALM BEACH COUNTY IG. In accordance with Palm Beach County ordinance
number 2011-009, Special Magistrate acknowledges that this Agreement may be subject to investigation
and/or audit by the Palm Beach County Inspector General. Special Magistrate has reviewed Palm Beach
County ordinance number 2011-009 and is aware of her rights and/or obligations under such ordinance.

REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK
SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have made and executed this Professional
Services Agreement as of the day and year sct forth below by the City.

ATTEST: CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH
By: By:

Deborah M. Andrea, City Clerk Betty Resch, Mayor
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND
LEGAL SUFFICIENCY
By:

Glen J. Torcivia, City Attorney
/phr

SPECIAL MAGISTRATE:

By: 3 2
. Green Moore, Esq.



Natalie E. Green Moore

10130 Northlake Boulevard e Ste 214-188
West Palm Beach, FL 33412561 900-5258
e-mail: ngmlaw1@gmail.com

BAR MEMBERSHIP

Admitted to the Florida Bar in 2013
Admitted to the Bar of the United States District Court for the Southern District of Florida in 2014

EDUCATION

Juris Doctor, Nova Southeastern University Shepard Broad Law Center, Ft. Lauderdale, FL (2012)
*  Evening Law Student Association, Member
*  Phi Alpha Delta Law Fraternity, Member

Master of Arts, University of Florida, Gainesville, FL
e Public Administration Certificate
*  McNair Graduate Fellowship Scholar

Bachelor of Arts, University of Florida, Gainesville, FL
*  Political Science Major
*  National Merit Achievement Scholar
*  Freshman and Sophomore Honors Program

EXPERIENCE

Managing Partner, The Law Office of Natalie Green Moore, P.L., West Palm Beach, FL (2014-present)

. Practicing in the areas of Land Use, Government and Administrative Law, Real Estate, Probate,
Estate Planning, Foreclosure, and Family Law

Special Deputy- Florida Department of Economic Opportunity- South Florida Appeals Office (202 1-present)
o Conduct appellate hearings and issue written determination in state reemployment cases.
Special Magistrate-Palm Beach County Government, Palm Beach County, FL (2018-present)
* Hearing judge for violations of county zoning and land use ordinances for the County’s Planning
& Zoning Department.
Code Administrator, City of Riviera Beach Florida Police Department, Riviera Beach, FL (2001-2017)
*  Managed City’s Code Enforcement Division.
*  Reviewed site plan and variance applications for conformance with law enforcement objectives
and protocols
*  Drafted authorizing ordinances and administered City’s Nuisance Abatement Process (civil
prosecution of select criminal violations) for the Police Department.
*  Drafted authorizing ordinances and oversaw City’s transition to Special Magistrate process for
hearing of code enforcement cases.
*  Successfully administered City’s first code enforcement foreclosures
*  Drafted authorizing ordinances and implemented the City’s Foreclosure Registry Process for
vacant property maintenance and enforcement.
*  Increased compliance and collection of outstanding code enforcement fines for non-compliance.



Director, Neighborhood Programs Division, City of Hollywood, Florida
*  Managed and implemented Neighborhood Master Planning process for City of Hollywood and the
citywide neighborhood entryway signage project.
*  Managed and administered City’s Code Enforcement Division
* Implemented Special Magistrate Process for administering monthly code
enforcement hearings

Supervising Planner, City of Hollywood, Hollywood, FL
*  Conducted monthly Board of Appeals hearings for variances and special exceptions.
*  Presented staff recommendation on behalf of City upon review of variance and special exception
applications.
Associate Planner, City of Hollywood, Hollywood, FL
*  Reviewed and approved building plans and occupational licenses for conformance with City’s
Planning and Zoning Ordinances

PROFESSIONAL ORGANIZATIONS AND VOLUNTEER WORK

*  Labor and Employment Relations Association (LERA)- Southeast Florida Chapter - Founding
Member and Executive Board Member

*  Palm Beach County Bar Association — Member
¢ Cunningham Bar Association - Member



EXECUTIVE BRIEF
REGULAR MEETING

AGENDA DATE: April 20, 2021 DEPARTMENT: Legal/Risk

TITLE:
Approval of Settlement with David Aquilino for $45,000 (inclusive of attorney’s fees and costs)

SUMMARY:

This is a request to settle a lawsuit filed by David Aquilino for injuries he sustained in August
2015 while riding his bicycle on North J Street. If approved, the Plaintiff will execute a general
release in favor of the City.

BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION:

This claim arises out of an accident that occurred on August 24, 2015, when Mr. Aquilino fell off
his bicycle after hitting a pothole while trying to avoid a pothole on North J Street (near 5™
Avenue North). As a result of the fall, Mr. Aquilino sustained injuries to his shoulder, which
required surgery. Mr. Aquilino’s medical bills totaled over $65,000 (with potential future care
needed) and with out of pocket costs of roughly $20,000. The roadway was repaired by City
staff and ultimately reconstructed as part of the Neighborhood Road Program.

Mr. Aquilino filed his lawsuit on August 2, 2019 against the City and within the applicable statute
of limitations. The City was represented by Roberts, Reynolds, Bedard & Tuzzio, PLLC, in the
lawsuit, which incurred approximately $43,000 in attorney’s fees and costs in defending the City.

MOTION:
Move to approve / not approve settlement with David Aquilino in exchange for a general release.

ATTACHMENT(S):
Fiscal Impact



FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS

A. Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact:
Fiscal Years 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
Capital Expenditures 0 0 0 0 0
Operating Expenditures 45,000 0 0 0 0
External Revenues 0 0 0 0 0
Program Income 0 0 0 0 0
In-kind Match 0 0 0 0 0
Net Fiscal Impact 0 0 0 0 0
No. of Addn’l Full-Time
Employee Positions 0 0 0 0 0
B. Recommended Sources of Funds/Summary of Fiscal Impact:
Account Account Project Fy21l Current Agenda Balance
Number Description Number Budget Balance Expenditure
520-1330- | Ins/Deduct/Non- 550,000 511,471 45,000 466,471
513.45-60 Covered Losses




EXECUTIVE BRIEF
REGULAR MEETING

AGENDA DATE: April 20, 2021 DEPARTMENT: Community Sustainability

TITLE:

Ordinance 2021-01 - Second Reading - Consideration of an ordinance to Chapter 23 “Land
Development Regulations” regarding changes to allow for takeout establishments by zoning
district and to clarify that only one (1) continuance is permitted for all affected parties to ensure
that the City does not run afoul of development review time limitations for local governments as
set forth in Florida law, and several minor amendments related to definitions and use review
processes

SUMMARY:

Consideration of Ordinance 2021-01 amending Chapter 23 “Land Development Regulations” of
the City's Code of Ordinances as follows:

. Article 1, Section 23.1-12 - Definitions

. Article 2, Section 23.2-16 Quasi-judicial Procedures

. Article 3, Section 23-3.6 — Use Tables

. Article 4, [NEW SECTION] Section 23.4-23 — Take Out Establishments

BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION:

The subject amendments to the City’s Land Development Regulations (LDR) were drafted to
respond to changing market conditions related to an increased demand for take-out services
during the Covid-19 emergency and to address several minor amendments to definitions and
use review processes. The amendments also include changes related to a new continuance for
affected parties that was adopted in 2020 to allow an affected party time to hire legal counsel or
a professional services consultant, and as related to neighborhood concerns and new evidence.
Per Florida Statute 166.033, local governments have 180 days to actively process applications
for development. Therefore, the subject amendments clarify that the intent of Ordinance 20202-
14 was to allow only one (1) continuance for all affected parties as consistent with time limitations
set forth in Florida law and not one (1) continuance per each affected party. The amendments
are summarized below by topic:

Take-out Establishment Use: The proposed amendments will create new definitions and
development standards related to take-out uses and to identify where such uses are allowed by
zoning district in the use table.

Quasi-judicial Procedures (Continuances): The proposed amendments will provide clarity
on the maximum number of continuances for affected parties as consistent with time limitations
set forth in Florida law.

Minor Amendments: The proposed amendments are related to the modification and addition
of new and existing definitions for heavy equipment rental, truck rental and medical office uses
for clarity, and to update review processes for uses in the use table related to museums, art



schools, and art and photography galleries, and to clarify in the use table that residential uses
over 7,500 sf are conditional uses.

At the March 3, 2021 advisory board meeting, the Planning & Zoning Board discussed the
amendments and recommended unanimously for the City Commission to approve the proposed
amendments. At the March 10, 2021 advisory board meeting, the Historic Resources
Preservation Board discussed the amendments and also recommended unanimously for the
City Commission to approve the proposed amendments.

At the April 6, 2021 City Commission meeting, the City Commission voted unanimously (5-0
vote) to approve the subject ordinance on first reading with the request to clarify language
regarding continuances in quasi-judicial proceedings, including that one affected party
continuance is by-right. These requested changes are reflected in the attached ordinance.

MOTION:
Move to approve/disapprove Ordinance No. 2021-01 on second reading.

ATTACHMENT(S):

Ordinance 2021-01
Use Table Exhibit
PZB/HRPB Staff Report



O 0o NOYULDS WN -

A B DDA BADDEPEDDDWWWWWWWWWWNNNNNNNNNMNNNRPRRRRRRRRR
oo NOOTULEdWNRPRPOOOONOOTULPEWNPEPRPOOONOULLPAEWNPEFRPOOONOUPEAWNEO

2021-01

ORDINANCE 2021-01 - AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LAKE
WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, AMENDING CHAPTER 23 “LAND
DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS,” ARTICLE 1, “GENERAL
PROVISIONS,” DIVISION 2 “DEFINITIONS,” SECTION 23.1.12
“DEFINITIONS” TO ADD AND CLARIFY USE DEFINITIONS; ARTICLE
2, “ADMINISTRATION”, DIVISION 2 “PROCEDURES,” SECTION 23.2-
16 “QUASI-JUDICIAL PROCEDURES” TO UPDATE AND CLARIFY
PROVISIONS RELATED TO AFFECTED PARTIES; AND AMENDING
DIVISION 1 “GENERALLY,” SECTION 23.3-6 “USE TABLES” TO
ALLOW FOR TAKE OUT ESTABLISHMENTS BY ZONING DISTRICT
AND TO MODIFY THE ZONING DISTRICT AND REVIEW PROCESS FOR
SEVERAL USES; AND ADDING A NEW SECTION 23.4-23 - “TAKE OUT
ESTABLISHMENTS” TO CREATE DEVELOPMENT REVIEW
STANDARDS FOR TAKE OUT ESTABLISHMENT USES; AND
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY, THE REPEAL OF LAWS IN
CONFLICT, CODIFICATION, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, as provided in Section 2(b), Article VIII of the Constitution of the State
of Florida, and Section 166.021(1), Florida Statutes, the City of Lake Worth Beach (the
“City”), enjoys all governmental, corporate, and proprietary powers necessary to conduct
municipal government, perform municipal functions, and render municipal services, and
may exercise any power for municipal purposes, except as expressly prohibited by law;
and

WHEREAS, as provided in Section 166.021(3), Florida Statutes, the governing
body of each municipality in the state has the power to enact legislation concerning any
subject matter upon which the state legislature may act, except when expressly prohibited
by law; and

WHEREAS, the City wishes to amend Chapter 23 Land Development
Regulations,” Article 1 “General Provisions,” Division 2 “Definitions,” Section 23.1.12
definitions, to add and modify definitions to clarify several existing uses and to define the
new use, “Take-out Establishments;” and

WHEREAS, the City wishes to amend Chapter 23 Land Development
Regulations,” Article 2 “Administration,” Division 2 “Procedures,” Section 23.2-16 Quasi-
judicial Procedures, to clarify that only one continuance is permitted for all affected parties
to ensure that the City does not run afoul of development review time limitations for local
governments as set forth in Florida law; and

WHEREAS, the City wishes to amend Chapter 23, Article 3 “Zoning Districts,”
Division 1 “Generally,” Section 23.3-6 Use Tables to allow for take-out by zoning district
and modify required review process by zoning district for severale; and

WHEREAS, the City wishes to amend Chapter 23, Article 4 “Development
Standards,” to establish a new section, Section 23.4-23 — Take-out Establishments to
establish supplementary development standards for these uses; and



50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77
78
79
80
81
82
83
84
85
86
87
88
89
90
91
92
93
94
95
96
97

Pg. 2, Ord. 2021-01

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Board, in its capacity as the local planning
agency, considered the proposed amendments at a duly advertised public hearing; and

WHEREAS, the Historic Resources Preservation Board, in its capacity as the local
planning agency, considered the proposed amendments at a duly advertised public
hearing; and

WHEREAS, the City Commission has reviewed the proposed amendments and
has determined that it is in the best interest of the public health, safety, and general
welfare of the City to adopt this ordinance.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE
CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, that:

Section 1: The foregoing “WHEREAS” clauses are ratified and confirmed as
being true and correct and are made a specific part of this Ordinance as if set forth herein.

Section 2: Chapter 23 Land Development Regulations,” Article 1 “General
Provisions,” Division 2 “Definitions,” Section 23.1.12 definitions related to new and
existing uses is hereby amended by adding the words shown in underlined type and
deleting the words struck-through as indicated in Exhibit A.

Section 2: Chapter 23 Land Development Regulations,” Article 2
“‘Administration,” Division 2 “Procedures,” Section 23.2-16 Quasi-judicial Procedures
related to affected parties, is hereby amended by adding the words shown in underlined
type and deleting the words struck-through as indicated in Exhibit B.

Section 4: Chapter 23 Land Development Regulations,” Article 3 “Zoning
Districts,” Division 1 “Generally,” Section 23.3-6 Use Tables related to review process by
zoning district for take-out establishments and several existing uses, including truck/van
rentals, museums, school of the arts, and art and photography gallery; is hereby amended
by adding the words shown in underlined type and deleting the words struck-through as
indicated in Exhibit C.

Section 8: Chapter 23 “Land Development Regulations,” Article 4
“‘Development Standards,” related to the establishment of a new section, Section 23.4-23
— Take Out Establishments, is hereby amended by adding the words shown in underlined
type and deleting the werds-struck through as indicated in Exhibit D.

Section 10:  Severability. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or
portion of this Ordinance is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of
competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct, and
independent provision, and such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining
portions thereof.

Section 11: Repeal of Laws in Conflict. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in
conflict herewith are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict.




98

99
100
101
102
103
104
105
106
107
108
109
110
111
112
113
114
115
116
117
118
119
120
121
122
123
124
125
126
127
128
129
130
131
132
133
134
135
136
137
138
139
140
141
142
143
144
145

Pg.3, Ord. 2021-01

Section 12:  Codification. The sections of the ordinance may be made a part of
the City Code of Laws and ordinances and may be re-numbered or re-lettered to

accomplish such, and the word “ordinance” may be changed to “section”, “division”, or
any other appropriate word.

Section 13: Effective Date. This ordinance shall become effective 10 days after
passage.

The passage of this ordinance on first reading was moved by Commissioner
Malega, seconded by Vice Mayor Robinson and upon being put to a vote, the vote was
as follows:

Mayor Betty Resch AYE
Vice Mayor Herman Robinson AYE
Commissioner Sarah Malega AYE
Commissioner Christopher McVoy AYE
Commissioner Kimberly Stokes AYE

The Mayor thereupon declared this ordinance duly passed on first reading on the
6" day of April, 2021.

The passage of this ordinance on second reading was moved by
, seconded by , and upon being put to a vote,
the vote was as follows:

Mayor Betty Resch

Vice Mayor Herman Robinson
Commissioner Sarah Malega
Commissioner Christopher McVoy
Commissioner Kimberly Stokes

The Mayor thereupon declared this ordinance duly passed on the day of
, 2021.

LAKE WORTH BEACH CITY COMMISSION

By:

Betty Resch, Mayor
ATTEST:

Deborah Andrea, CMC, City Clerk



146
147
148
149
150
151
152
153
154
155
156

157
158
159
160
161
162
163
164
165
166
167
168
169
170
171
172
173
174
175
176
177
178
179
180
181
182
183
184
185
186

Pg. 4, Ord. 2021-01

EXHIBIT A
Chapter 23

CODE OF ORDINANCES ARTICLE 1 “GENERAL PROVISIONS”

*%%
Division 2 - Definitions
*%k%

Sec. 23.1-12. - Definitions.

Equipment Rental and Leasing: A business that involves the leasing and rental of medium and
heavy duty equipment, medium and heavy duty construction equipment, and medium and heavy
duty commercial and construction vehicles.

*k%k

Medical office: A facility operated by one or more licensed practitioners that provides a single
category of services including but not limited to general and specialty medical care, dental care,
chiropractic care, and vision care, psychotherapy or related care, and medical care related to
the treatment of disabilities under the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), and shall not
include bed patient care or overnight accommodations.

*k%k

Restaurants — Take-out: A full service restaurant with indoor dining where both the “take-out”
or “pick-up” use area is greater than 25% and less than 50% of the use area accessible to
customers, and where the waiting area is located indoors only. Take-out restaurants with a “take-
out” or pick-up” use area greater than 50% shall be classified as a take-out establishment.

*k%k

Take-out establishments: A food service or retail business with a dedicated “take-out” or “pick-
up” use area that is greater than 25% of the total use area accessible to customers, and/or where
the designate waiting area is located outdoors.

*k*k

Truck/Van Rentals: A vehicle rental/leasing business that includes the rental of moving vans and
trucks, or commercial trucks or vans considered commercial business or service vehicles less
than 8,000 lbs. to consumers. Rental stock of trucks and van rentals shall be not be considered
to be the parking, storing or keeping commercial vehicles.




187
188
189
190
191
192
193
194
195
196
197

198

199
200
201
202
203
204
205
206
207
208
209
210
211

212
213
214
215
216

217
218
219
220
221
222
223
224
225
226
227
228
229
230
231

232

Pg.5, Ord. 2021-01
EXHIBIT B

Chapter 18

CODE OF ORDINANCES ARTICLE 2 “ADMINISTRATION”

*k%k

Division 2 - Procedures

*kk

Sec. 23.2-16. - Quasi-judicial procedures.

e)

f)

9)

*kk

Affected parties. Affected parties, as defined in section 23.1-12 (Definitions), (1) shall

be allowed to present evidence, to produced witnesses, and to cross-examine
witnesses produced by others; (2) may appeal final decisions of staff, HRPB, planning
and zoning board, or city commission; and (3) may file suit to enforce the provisions
of this article should the city fail or decline to do so. Notwithstanding the foregoing;
however, in any suit brought by an affected party, the applicable circuit court shall
determine whether the affected party has the requisite standing to bring suit. An
affected party who wishes to participate as a party in the quasi-judicial hearing must
fill out a city form and deliver it to the Department of Community Sustainability at least
five (5) days before the hearing. Failure to follow the process shall be deemed a
waiver and the affected party will not be allowed to participate in the quasi-judicial
hearing.

Deliberation. After the presentations, and at the conclusion of any continuances, the
decisionmaking body shall deliberate on the application. Once the decisionmaking
body begins its deliberations no further presentations or testimony shall be permitted
except at the sole discretion of the decisionmaking body. The decisionmaking body's
decisions must be based upon competent substantial evidence in the record.

Continuance. The decisionmaking body may, on its own motion continue the hearing
to a fixed date, time and place. Alse; Tthe applicant eraffectedparty shall also have
the right to one (1) continuance. Affected parties, whether individually or collectively,
shall also have the right to one continuance and irrespective of the number of affected
parties, only one (1) continuance may be granted. The continuance can be for no
longer than thirty-one (31) days, provided the request is to address neighborhood
concerns or new evidence, to hire legal counsel or a professional services consultant,
or the apphicantor affected party is unable to be represented at the hearing. No more
than one (1) continuance may be granted for all affected parties. The decisionmaking
body will continue the hearing to a fixed date, time and place if applicable. However,
all subsequent continuances shall be granted at the sole discretion of the
decisionmaking body. Notwithstanding the foregoing, a continuance shall not be
granted if to do so would delay a decision on an appeal from the HRPB regarding a
certificate of appropriateness beyond the ninety-day requirement specified in section
23.2-17.




Pg. 6, Ord. 2021-01

233 EXHIBIT C
234

235 Chapter 23
236

237 LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS ARTICLE 3 “ZONING DISTRICTS”
238

239  Division 1 “Generally”

240 *k%k

241

242  Sec. 23-3.6 — Use Tables.

243

244  Under separate cover

245



246
247
248
249
250
251
252
253
254
255
256
257
258
259
260
261
262
263

264
265

266
267
268
269
270

271
272
273
274
275

276
277
278
279
280

281
282

Pg.7, Ord. 2021-01
EXHIBIT D

Chapter 23

LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS ARTICLE 4 “DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS”

*k%k

[New Section] Sec. 23.4-23. -Take Out Establishments

a)

The following development standards shall apply to take-out establishments, take-

b)

out restaurants or establishments with a “take-out” or “pick-up” window or outdoor
waiting area. “Take-out” establishments located in the Downtown (DT) zoning district
are not permitted to be located in the portion of buildings with frontage or access
(window or door) onto Lake Avenue or Lucerne Avenue. The location requirement
in the DT zoning district shall not apply to full service restaurants with indoor dining
provided that both the “take-out” or “pick-up” use area is less than 25% of the total
use area accessible to customer and the designated waiting area is located inside.

Take-out establishments shall not be movable such as a mobile stand, food truck or

c)

kiosk.

“Take-out" or "pick-up" windows or service openings to the exterior, excluding

d)

entrance doors into the business, shall not be located on a building facade that faces
a_public right-of-way, unless they are designed in a manner _consistent with the
building’s _architectural style and to be an aesthetic asset to the building and
neighborhood.

Designated customer waiting areas, located outside of a take-out establishment and

e)

within a public right-of-way, shall require a right-of-way permit from the appropriate
authority and shall not impact ADA accessibility. Waiting areas shall not extend
beyond the facade width of the take-out establishment in the public right-of-way as
permitted or shall not extend beyond the site’s property lines.

Exterior covered/lidded refuse bin/s shall be provided in a designated location/s that

is screened from the public right-of-way and adjacent properties in so far as feasible.
The refuse bins shall be available outside of the take-out establishment during hours
of operation and shall be removed when the business is closed unless otherwise
approved by the Development Review Official.

*kk



Section 23.3-6 Use tables. Note: amended text is shown below as underlined for new text and stricken text for delete text. Uses or sections with modified text are also highlighted.

TYPE/USE SF-R SF-TF14  |MH-7 ME-20 ME-30 ME-40 MUElake IMUE1st [MU-EFederalMUE10th | MU-FH MU-DH MUW Lake |15 ¢ TOD-W NC BAC Al I-POC P PROS con
& Lucerne & 2nd Edges |Hwy & 6th & 10th
Note: P is Permitted by Right, A is Administrative Use Permit (staff level review), and C is Conditional Use Permit (board level review). All residential uses except for single family and two-family greater than 7,500 sf shall require a conditional use approval.
RESIDENTIAL
*k*k
MU-E
MU-E Lake |MU-E 1st Federal MU-E 10th MU-W Lake
TYPE/USE SF-R SF-TF 14 MH-7 MF-20 MF-30 MF-40 coeis DT MU-FH MU-DH TOD-E TOD-W NC BAC Al I-POC P PROS CON
& Lucerne |& 2nd Edges|Hwy & 6th & 10th
Note: P is Permitted by Right, A is Administrative Use Permit (staff level review), and C is Conditional Use Permit (board level review).
Commercial [
*k*k
Medium Intensity Specialty Uses - -Use less than 7,500 sq. ft [SF-R SF-TF 14 MH-7 MF-20 MF-30 MF-40 MU-E MU-E 1st MU-E MU-E DT MU-FH MU-DH MU-W TOD-E TOD-W NC BAC Al I-POC P PROS CON
and/or medium intensity impact uses. Lake & & 2nd Edges|Federal Hwy |10th & 6th Lake & 10th
Lucerne
*k*k
Take-out Establishments | | | | | | | | | |Q A |A |Q |A |A | | |
*kk
Truck/Van Rentals I I I I I I I I I I I I I c I I I I I lc I I I
*kk
Low Intensity Specialty Uses - Use area less than 2,500 sq. ft [SF-R SF-TF 14 MH-7 MF-20 MF-30 MF-40 MU-E MU-E 1st MU-E MU-E DT MU-FH MU-DH MU-W TOD-E TOD-W NC BAC Al I-POC P PROS CON
and low intensity impact uses. Lake & & 2nd Edges|Federal Hwy |10th & 6th Lake & 10th
Lucerne
*k*k
Take-out Establishments A A A A A A
*k*k
MU-E
MU-E Lake |MU-E 1st Federal MU-E 10th MU-W Lake
TYPE/USE SF-R SF-TF 14 MH-7 MF-20 MF-30 MF-40 cceia DT MU-FH MU-DH TOD-E TOD-W NC BAC Al 1-POC P PROS CON
& Lucerne |& 2nd Edges|Hwy & 6th & 10th
Note: P is Permitted by Right, A is Administrative Use Permit (staff level review), and C is Conditional Use Permit (board level review).
INSTITUTIONAL
High Intensity Institutional Uses—Use area greater than 7,500 sq. ft. and/or high intensity impact uses.
*k*k
Museums I I I I I I |c I |c I |c I [ ¢ | I I I I |c I |c |c |c
*k*k
School of the Arts I I I I I I I I I I I I | ¢ [ I I I I |c I |c I I
*k*k
MU-E
MU-E Lake |MU-E 1st Federal MU-E 10th MU-W Lake
TYPE/USE SF-R SF-TF 14 MH-7 MF-20 MF-30 MF-40 ccera DT MU-FH MU-DH TOD-E TOD-W NC BAC Al 1-POC P PROS CON
& Lucerne |& 2nd Edges|Hwy & 6th & 10th
Note: P is Permitted by Right, A is Administrative Use Permit (staff level review), and C is Conditional Use Permit (board level review).
CULTURAL & ARTISANAL ARTS | | | | | |
High Intensity Artisanal Uses—Use area greater than 7,500 sq. ft. and/or high intensity impact uses.
*k*k
Art or Photography Gallery | C € C C C C € € €
*k*k

Page 1



City of .
Lake Worth City Of Lake Worth
BeaC Department for Community Sustainability

Planning, Zoning and Historic Preservation Division
1900 Second Avenue North - Lake Worth - Florida 33461- Phone: 561-586-1687

DATE: February 22, 2021

TO: Members of the Planning & Zoning and Historic Resources Preservation Boards

FROM: William Waters, Director Community Sustainability

MEETING: March 3, 2021 & March 10, 2021

SUBJECT: PZB/HRPB 21-03100001 (Ordinance 2021-01): Consideration of an ordinance to Chapter 23 “Land

Development Regulations” regarding changes to allow for takeout establishments by zoning
district and to clarify that only one (1) continuance is permitted for all affected parties to ensure
that the City does not run afoul of development review time limitations for local governments as
set forth in Florida law, and several minor amendments related to definitions and use review
processes.

BACKGROUND/ PROPOSAL:

The subject amendments to the City’s Land Development Regulations (LDR) were drafted to respond to changing
market conditions related to an increased demand for take-out services during the Covid-19 emergency and to
address several minor amendments to definitions and use review processes. The amendments also include
changes related to a new continuance for affected parties that was adopted in 2020 to allow an affected party time
to hire legal counsel or a professional services consultant, and as related to neighborhood concerns and new
evidence. Per Florida Statute 166.033, local governments have 180 days to actively process applications for
development. Therefore, the subject amendments clarify that the intent of Ordinance 20202-14 was to allow only
one (1) continuance for all affected parties as consistent with time limitations set forth in Florida law and not one
(1) continuance per each affected party.

A summary of each component in the draft ordinance is also provided.

The proposed amendments for and the following sections of the LDR in Chapter 23 of the City’s Code of
Ordinances:

e Article 1, Section 23.1-12 - Definitions

e Article 2, Section 23.2-16 Quasi-judicial Procedures

e Article 3, Section 23-3.6 — Use Tables

e Article 4, [NEW SECTION] Section 23.4-23 — Take Out Establishments

Take-out Establishment Use: The proposed amendments will create new definitions and development standards
related to take-out uses and to identify where such uses are allowed by zoning district in the use table.

Quasi-judicial Procedures (Continuances): The proposed amendments will provide clarity on the maximum
number of continuances for affected parties as consistent with time limitations set forth in Florida law.



Minor Amendments: The proposed amendment are related to the modification and addition of new and existing
definitions for heavy equipment rental, truck rental and medical office uses for clarity, and to update review
processes for uses in the use table related to museums, art schools, and art and photography galleries, and to
clarify in the use table that residential uses over 7,500 sf are conditional uses.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends that the Planning and Zoning Board and Historic Resources Preservation Board recommend that
the City Commission adopt PZB/HRPB 21-03100001 (Ordinance 2021-01).

POTENTIAL MOTION:

| move to RECOMMEND/NOT RECOMMEND TO THE CITY COMMISSION TO ADOPT the proposed LDR text
amendments included in PZB/HRPB 21-03100001 (Ordinance 2021-01)

Attachments
A. Draft Ordinance 2021-01



EXECUTIVE BRIEF
REGULAR MEETING

AGENDA DATE: April 20, 2021 DEPARTMENT: Community Sustainability

TITLE:

Ordinance No. 2021-02 — Continuation of the First Reading — Consideration of the establishment
of a residential planned development including a development of significant impact, a major site
plan, a conditional use, and sustainable bonus incentives for Golden Road Apartments, which
includes 230 residential units

SUMMARY:

Golden Road Apartments/Advantis is a 230-unit multi-family project being proposed by WGI on
behalf of Prospect Real Estate Group, LLC. The subject site is comprised of seven parcels
totaling 6.39 acres located on the northwest corner of Boutwell Road and 10th Avenue North as
depicted in Exhibit A of the ordinance. The subject project is located outside of the CRA’s
boundaries.

The Applicant, WGI on behalf of Prospect Real Estate Group, LLC., is requesting approval of
the following:

1) Residential Planned Development to construct a 230-unit multifamily development.

2) Development of Significant Impact to construct a residential development in excess of 100
units.

3) Major Site Plan for the development of a new multifamily development greater than 7,500
square feet.

4) Conditional Use Permit to establish a residential master plan greater than 7,500 square
feet.

5) Sustainable Bonus Incentive Program for an additional density, intensity and height.

If approved, the City’s official zoning map will also be amended to reflect the establishment of
the residential planned development.

BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION:

The new proposed development, also referred to as Golden Road Apartments or Advantis,
consists of five residential buildings and a clubhouse/mailroom building. The project proposes
a total of 230 multi-family units. Of the 230 units, 104 units will be one-bedroom units, 117 units
will be two-bedroom units, and nine units will be three-bedroom units that will be constructed in
one phase.

The applicant held a meeting with adjacent property owners on February 25, 2021. As a result
of that meeting, the applicant agreed to provide a wall along a portion of the north and northeast
property lines in lieu of a fence. The applicant notified staff of the agreement on February 26,
2021 via email. On March 3, 2021, the Planning and Zoning Board (PZB) recommended the
project be approved by the City Commission with conditions outlined in Exhibit C of the
ordinance (6-1 vote). These conditions of approval included the wall in lieu of the fence as
requested by adjacent property owners. There was no public comment at the March 3™ meeting



and there were no requests for affected party status associated with this project prior to the
meeting.

The applicant submitted revised plans on March 18, 2021 to address specific conditions of
approval that needed to be addressed prior to the first City Commission hearing. The revised
plans are included in the attachments and were reviewed by staff for consistency with the
conditions of approval and the City’s Code of Ordinances.

On March 29, 2021, Mr. Rodney Romano filed as an affected party.

At the April 6, 2021 City Commission meeting, the commission voted unanimously (5-0 vote) to
continue the first reading of the application to April 20, 2021 with the request that the applicant
would bring back additional information and changes, including reducing the height of two
buildings (Building D and Building E) along the north property line to two stories, information on
the stormwater system, covered parking with solar panels, traffic impacts on 10" Avenue North
and additional shade trees.

The applicant is scheduled to meet with the affected party, Mr. Romano, prior to the second
reading to discuss project revisions, including the height reduction of the buildings along the
northern property line. Revised back-up materials will be provided under separate cover either
prior to or at the April 20, 2021 meeting by the applicant.

MOTION:

Move to approve/disapprove Ordinance No. 2021-02 on first reading and to schedule the second
reading and public hearing for May 4, 2021.

ATTACHMENT(S):

Ordinance 2021-02

PZB Staff Report

Zoning Map

Development Plans

Supplemental Supporting Documents
Site Photos



O o0 NOYULDS WN B

AR DAEDADEDWWWWWWWWWWNNNNNNNNNNRRPRRPRRERRPRPR
O U BWNRPOOVCOINOOTUNDNWNRPROOVLOMNNOOTURNRWNRPROLONOOTUD WNEPRO

2021-02

ORDINANCE NO. 2021-02 AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COMMISSION
OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, AMENDING THE
OFFICIAL ZONING MAP BY APPROVING THE CREATION OF A
RESIDENTIAL PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, LOCATED AT
THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF 10™ AVENUE NORTH AND
BOUTWELL ROAD CONSISTING OF APPROXIMATELY 6.39 ACRES
AS MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED IN EXHIBIT A, THAT IS
LOCATED WITHIN THE MIXED USE - WEST (MU-W) ZONING DISTRICT
WITH A FUTURE LAND USE DESIGNATION OF MIXED USE — WEST
(MU-W) THAT INCLUDES THE SPECIFIC DEVELOPMENT
STANDARDS DESCRIBED IN EXHIBIT B; APPROVING A
DEVELOPMENT OF SIGNIFICANT IMPACT; APPROVING A
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT; APPROVING DENSITY AND HEIGHT
BONUS INCENTIVES THORUGH THE CITY’S SUSTAINABLE BONUS
INCENTIVE PROGRAM; APPROVING A MAJOR SITE PLAN FOR THE
CONSTRUCTION OF A 230-UNIT RESIDENTIAL PLANNED
DEVELOPMENT; PROVIDED FOR SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS AND
AN EFFECTIVE DATE

WHEREAS, the City Commission of the City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida,
pursuant to the authority granted in Chapters 163 and 166, Florida Statutes, and the Land
Development Regulations, as adopted by the City of Lake Worth Beach, is authorized
and empowered to consider petitions relating to zoning and land development orders;
and

WHEREAS, Chapter 23, Article 3, Division 6. — Planned Development of City of
Lake Worth Beach’s Land Development Regulations allows for the creation of planned
development districts to incentivize innovative development through the utilization of
incentive programs and flexible dimensional and use requirements that are defined within
and occur in conformity with an approved master development plan; and

WHEREAS, Prospect Real Estate Group, LLC (the applicant), has petitioned the
City of Lake Worth Beach (the City) for creation of a Residential Planned Development
District to allow for the approval of a 230-unit multi-family development on a site located
at the northwest corner of 10" Avenue North and Boutwell Road (PCNs 38-43-44-20-01-
026-0010; 38-43-44-20-01-004-0030; 38-43-44-20-01-004-0060; 38-43-44-20-01-004-
0080; 38-43-44-20-01-004-0120; 38-43-44-20-01-004-0130; and 38-43-44-20-01-004-
0010) as further described in Exhibit A (the Property) within the MU-W Zoning District and
the MU-W Future Land Use designation, and if approved, shall constitute an amendment
to the City’s official zoning map; and

WHEREAS, the Applicant requests use of the City’s Sustainable Bonus Incentive
Program to allow for additional height and density to be considered in conjunction with
the Applicant’s request for approval for a major site plan for the construction of a



48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77
78
79
80
81
82
83
84
85
86
87
88
89
90
91
92
93
94
95

Pg. 2, Ord. 2021-02

residential planned development currently known as “Golden Road Apartments” that will
contain 230 dwelling units to be constructed on this site;

WHEREAS, on March 3, 2021, the Lake Worth Beach Planning and Zoning Board
(P&Z Board) considered the subject application for a Residential Planned Development
District, Development of Significant Impact, Major Site Plan, Conditional Use Permit, and
Sustainable Bonus Incentive Program and recommended that the City Commission
approve the creation of this residential planned development district; and

WHEREAS, the City Commission has considered all of the testimony and evidence
and has determined that the Residential Planned Development District, Development of
Significant Impact, Major Site Plan, Conditional Use Permit, and Sustainable Bonus
Incentive Program, including the development regulations and conditions, meets the
requirements of the Land Development Regulations, Section 23.3.25.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE
CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, that:

Section 1. Recitals. The foregoing recitals are true and correct and are hereby

affirmed and ratified.

Section 2. The Residential Planned Development District located within the MU-W

Zoning District with a future land use designation of MU-W, as described more particularly
in Exhibit A, is hereby approved. This approval includes the approval of the following
elements to be known as the Master Development Plan: (a) Residential Planned
Development (b) Development of Significant Impact (c) Major Site Plan (d) Sustainable
Bonus Incentive Program (e) Conditional Use Permit; (f) district development standards
(Exhibit B) (g) conditions of approval (Exhibit C); (h) required plans including the site
plan, architectural plan, landscape plan, and civil & drainage plans dated 3/17/2021; (i)
supplemental supporting documents, as well as all agreements, provisions and/or
covenants which shall govern the use, maintenance, and continued protection of the
residential planned development and any of its common areas or facilities. The applicant
is bound to all elements and requirements of the Master Development Plan.

Section 3. The City’s zoning maps shall be updated to reflect the changes to the

property described in Exhibit A.

Section 4. Repeal of Laws in Conflict. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict

herewith are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict.

Section 5.  Severability. If any provision of this ordinance or the application thereof is

held invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, the invalidity shall not affect other
provisions of the ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision or
application, and to this end the provisions of this ordinance are declared severable.

Section 6.  Effective Date. This ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days after

its final passage.



Pg. 3, Ord. 2021-02

96 The passage of this ordinance on first reading was moved by :
97 seconded by and upon being put to a vote, the vote was as follows:
98
99 Mayor Betty Resch
100 Commissioner Sarah Malega
101 Commissioner Christopher McVoy
102 Commissioner Kimberly Stokes
103 Commissioner Herman Robinson
104
105 The Mayor thereupon declared this ordinance duly passed on first reading on the
106 6™ day of April, 2021.
107
108
109 The passage of this ordinance on second reading was moved by
110 , seconded by , and upon being put to a vote,
111 the vote was as follows:
112
113 Mayor Betty Resch
114 Commissioner Sarah Malega
115 Commissioner Christopher McVoy
116 Commissioner Kimberly Stokes
117 Commissioner Herman Robinson
118
119
120 The Mayor thereupon declared this ordinance duly passed on the day of
121 , 2021.
122
123 LAKE WORTH BEACH CITY COMMISSION
124
125
126 By:
127 Betty Resch, Mayor
128 ATTEST:
129
130
131

132 Deborah M. Andrea, CMC, City Clerk
133



Pg. 4, Ord. 2021-02
Exhibit A

DEPARTMENT FOR COMMUNITY SUSTAINABILITY, PLANNING, ZONING AND HISTORIC PRESERVATION DIVISION
PROPERTY DESCRIPTION FOR PZB CASE No. 20-01400047

The subject site is comprised of seven parcels totaling 6.39 acres. The site is located west of the 10™" Avenue North and Boutwell
Road intersection and is currently vacant. The subject properties PCNs are 38-43-44-20-01-026-0010; 38-43-44-20-01-004-0030;
38-43-44-20-01-004-0060; 38-43-44-20-01-004-0080; 38-43-44-20-01-004-0120; 38-43-44-20-01-004-0130; and 38-43-44-20-
01-004-0010. A zoning map of the subject site is provided below.

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION:

Applicant Yoan Machado of WGI
Owner Lake Worth Investment Group, LLC
General Location West of the 10™" Avenue North and Boutwell Road intersection

38-43-44-20-01-026-0010; 38-43-44-20-01-004-0030; 38-43-44-20-01-004-
Existing PCN Numbers 0060; 38-43-44-20-01-004-0080; 38-43-44-20-01-004-0120; 38-43-44-20-01-
004-0130; 38-43-44-20-01-004-0010

Existing Land Use Vacant

Zoning Mixed Use — West (MU-W)

Future Land Use .
Mixed Use — West (MU-W)

Designation

location

Lake Worth Zoning Map - Golden Roads
Beach

PR Department for Community Sustainability

A@) 070340106
- —

' &= Highlighted Parcel



134

Exhibit B

DEPARTMENT FOR COMMUNITY SUSTAINABILITY, PLANNING, ZONING AND HISTORIC PRESERVATION DIVISION

DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS FOR PZB CASE No. 20-01400047

Pg. 5, Ord. 2021-02

Residential Planned

Base Zoning Development with .
Development Standard L . Provided
District Sustainable Bonus
Incentive Program (SBIP)
Lot Size (min) Greater or equal to
5,000 sf 278,340 sf (6.39 acres)
In square feet (sf) 217,800 sf (5 acres)
Lot Width (min) 50’ 50’ 230’
Front
. 20 20 28’
(min)
Rear
Setbacks ) 15’ 15’ 18’
(min)
Side
. 10 10 20
(min)
Impermeable Surface
. 65% 65% 61%
Coverage (maximum)
Structure Coverage
50% 50% 21%
(max)
Pervious Landscaped
. . 900 sf 900sf 3,216 sf
Area in Front Yard (min)
1-bed: 600 sf 1-bed: 600 sf 1-bed: 665 sf
Living Area (min) 2-bed: 750 sf 2-bed: 750 sf 2-bed: 881 sf
3-bed: 900 sf 3-bed: 900 sf 3-bed: 1,171 sf
Parking 379 379 379

Density (max)

30 du/acre (191

37.5 du/acre (239 units)

36 du/acre (230 units)

units)
Bldg | — 34’8”
Bldg Il — 34’8”
Building Height (max) 30 feet 81.25 feet Bldg Il - 52’
Bldg Il Hybrid — 54’
Clubhouse —24’4”
Floor Area Ratio (FAR)
1.30 2.25 0.74

(max)




Pg. 6, Ord. 2021-02
Exhibit C

DEPARTMENT FOR COMMUNITY SUSTAINABILITY, PLANNING, ZONING AND HISTORIC PRESERVATION DIVISION
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR PZB CASE No. 20-01400047

PB County Fire:

135 1. Fire department access shall be no less than 20 feet.

136

137 Electric Utilities:

138 1. Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the following actions shall be completed:

139 a. Provide the voltage requirements of the existing six buildings proposed on the site and indicate
140 whether they will be single-phase or three-phase. Buildings “A” and “C” must be three-phase
141 since a single-phase transformer cannot handle the load of the proposed five-story buildings.
142 b. Indicate whether other services will be needed for the project such as irrigation, lift station,

143 lighting, gates, etc. and where these services will be.

144 c. Identify the location for the padmount transformers and the meter centers for each building.
145 The transformer locations must be accessible to our vehicles, and must have 8-ft minimum

146 clearance in the front of them and three-foot minimum clearance on the sides and rear, including
147 landscaping.

148 d. Provide the load calculations for all buildings, the electrical riser diagrams for all buildings, and
149 the construction plans showing the water, sewer, drainage, paving, landscaping, and lighting for
150 the project.

151 2. Prior to the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy, the following actions shall be completed:

152 a. Provide a 10-foot wide utility easement for all of the electric lines, transformers and other

153 equipment that will need to be installed to provide power to this project.

154 b. The customer will be responsible for installing all schedule-40 gray conduit that will be needed by
155 Lake Worth Beach for this project for its primary cable. This conduit must be installed at a 42”
156 minimum depth. Pad specs will be given to the customer to show the proper orientation of

157 conduit at the padmount transformers.

158

159 Community Services Landscaping:

160 1. Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the following actions shall be completed:

161 a. The private lift station shall be screened by shrubs and/or opaque fencing or walls. Show the
162 required screening on plans.

163

164 Planning and Zoning:

165 1. Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the following actions shall be completed:

166 a. Thelight tone shall be changed from 4000 K to 3000 K. The photometric plan submitted with the
167 building permit package shall reflect this change.

168 b. All traffic requirements outlined in the Palm Beach County Traffic Division’s TPS letter shall be
169 completed.

170 c. Per LDR Section 23.4-4(e)(3)(B), the required landscape screening shall be labeled on the site
171 plan in front of the portion of chain link fencing that is visible from 10*" Avenue North. Said
172 landscaping shall be maintained at a minimum height of 24 inches. Chain link gates visible from
173 the right of way are not permitted.

174 d. Note on the landscape plans that shrubs planted in landscape areas between parking and

175 vehicular use areas with chain link fencing shall have a minimum planting depth of 24 inches at

176 installation and shall be maintained at no less than 4 feet in height to provide a continuous



177
178
179
180
181
182
183
184
185
186
187
188
189
190
191
192
193
194
195
196
197
198
199
200
UrBBd Design:
202
203
204
205
206
207
208
209
PuBli®Works:
211

212
213
214
215
216
217
218
219
220
221
222

1.

2.

Pg. 7, Ord. 2021-02

landscape screen. This shall not apply to areas with an opaque fence that provides full
screening of the parking and vehicular use area.
Prior to a Certificate of Occupancy, the following actions shall be completed:

a. The project site shall be separately recorded if unified through a unity of title process. A
recorded unity of title form or plat shall be provided to the City.

b. Per LDR Section 23.4-4(e)(1)(C), the portion of fencing along the east property line that is
adjacent to Keast Lane shall be setback 30 inches with a landscape screen installed that is
maintained at a minimum height of 24 inches.

c. Asdepicted on the site plan, a wall not to exceed six feet in height shall be installed along the
north property line and along the portion of the east property line from the northeast corner of
the lot to the northern edge of Keast Lane.

All signage shall be applied for on a separate building permit and shall comply with LDR Section 23.5-1,
Signage.

All ground level mechanical equipment shall be continuously screened with shrub hedging or opaque
fencing or walls.

Per the site plan, the development proposes 61,675 square feet of semi-pervious surface to meet the
maximum impermeable surface requirement. Therefore, prior to the issuance of a building permit,
documentation shall be provided to staff showing the percolation rate of the semi-pervious paving
material to ensure that has a percolation rate that is at least 50% rate to the ground percolation rate.
Also include a paver maintenance plan to ensure that it will maintain its permeability over time.

a. Note that if the semi-pervious material is converted to impervious surface area at any time, the
project would exceed the code’s maximum impermeable surface coverage allowance and thus,
the Applicant would need to apply for a Planned Development amendment.

Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the applicant shall apply for a Minor Site Plan amendment to
update the fenestration on the south facade of Building Type IIl — Hybrid.
a. The western portion of the main front elevation along 10" Avenue North still resembles an end
of a building with too much solid versus fenestration. Work with staff through the Minor Site
Plan amendment process to improve the vertical mass of the building.
Prior to the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy, the building elevation shall be updated to reflect the
changes approved under the Minor Site Plan amendment.

Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the following actions shall be completed:

a. The applicant shall contact the Lake Worth Drainage (LWDD) District’s Engineering Department
and obtain any required permit(s), if necessary, and furnish to the City. Prior to the issuance of a
building permit, the applicant shall contact the South Florida Water Management District’s
(SFWMD) Engineering Department and obtain any required permit(s), if necessary.

b. The applicant shall ensure that the dumpster enclosure meets the specifications of the Public
Services Department.

c. The applicant shall complete the right of way permit from Palm Beach County for the
construction of improvements on 10" Avenue North.

d. The applicant shall submit an Erosion Control plan and indicate the BMP’s and NPDES compliance
practices.

Prior to the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy, the following actions shall be completed:



223
224
225
226

227
228
229

230
231
232
233
234
235
236
237
238
239
240
241
242
243
244
245
246
247
248
249
250
251
252
253
254
255
256
257
258

259
260
261
262

Pg. 8, Ord. 2021-02
a. The applicant shall ensure the entire surrounding off-site infrastructure inclusive of the roadway,
sidewalk, curbing, stormwater system piping and structures, valve boxes, manholes, landscaping,
striping, signage, and other improvements are in the same condition as prior to construction
b. The applicant shall fine grade and sod all disturbed areas with bahia sod.

c. The applicant shall broom sweep all areas of the affected right of way and remove of all silt and
debris collected as a result of construction activity.
3. Theissuance of any permits shall comply with all provisions of the Lake Worth Municipal Code and all

other applicable standards including but not limited to the Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT),
Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD), and City of Lake Worth Public Works Construction
Standards and Policy and Procedure Manual.

Utilities Water & Sewer:
1. Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the following actions shall be completed:
a. Paving/Grading/Drainage:

i. The master drainage plan (including phase Il) shall address management of stormwater runoff
in the green spaces surrounding the apartments as well as the secondary access road. This
shall be supported with signed and sealed Drainage Calculations including statement
regarding floodplain management provisions for water quality and quantity shall be provided
to the City.

ii. The City’s drainage policy is that project site must contain the 3-yr 1-hour storm event on site,
this equates to 2.6” of rainfall. Other regulating agency policy’s still apply and the design
must meet the most stringent of these requirements.

iii. The final grading plan shall include cross sections from the paved area/buildings to the end of
property boundary for each property line and each cross section change.

b. Water and Sewer:

i. The watermain & forcemain tie-in locations must be designed and coordinated with the
future pipeline extensions planned in 10 Ave N.

ii.  Water Utilities must be centered or arrange in a dedicated utility easement. Minimum size of
dedicated easements is 15-foot.

iii.  The utility plan and the proposed landscaping shall pair well with the underground utility
infrastructure as well as underground storage. There are locations where gumbo limbo trees
are proposed in a tree island that is shared with fire hydrant, due to the root structure of this
tree it is not recommended. Fire lines and water service line shall be well planned to avoid
interaction with growing root systems.

c. Provide copies of the required SFWMD and LWDD permits
d. Reserved capacity fees for water and sewer shall be paid in full per phase plan.

Lake Worth Drainage District (LWDD):
1. Priorto the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy, the following actions shall be completed:

a. The property owner shall install rip-rap rubble along the entire length of the project along the
LWDD’s E-4 Canal.



City of
Lake Worth
Beac DEPARTMENT FOR COMMUNITY SUSTAINABILITY

Planning Zoning Historic Preservation Division
1900 2NP Avenue North

Lake Worth Beach, FL 33461

561-586-1687

DATE: February 24, 2021

TO: Members of the Planning and Zoning Board

FROM: Alexis Rosenberg, Senior Community Planner and Andrew Meyer, Senior Community Planner
THRU: William Waters, AIA, NCARB, LEED, AP BD+C, ID, SEED, Director for Community Sustainability
MEETING: March 3, 2021

SUBJECT: PZB Project Number 20-01400047: A request by WGI, an engineering and land development firm,

on behalf of Prospect Real Estate Group, LLC for consideration of a Residential Planned Development,
Development of Significant Impact, Major Site Plan, Conditional Use Permit, and Sustainable Bonus Incentive
Program to allow the construction of 230-unit multi-family development at the northwest corner of 10" Avenue
North and Boutwell Road, within the Mixed Use — West (MU-W) zoning district. The subject properties PCNs are
38-43-44-20-01-026-0010; 38-43-44-20-01-004-0030; 38-43-44-20-01-004-0060; 38-43-44-20-01-004-0080; 38-
43-44-20-01-004-0120; 38-43-44-20-01-004-0130; and 38-43-44-20-01-004-0010.

PROJECT DESCRIPTION:
The Applicant, WGI on behalf of Prospect Real Estate Group, LLC., is requesting approval of the following:
1.) Residential Planned Development to construct a 230-unit multifamily development.
2.) Development of Significant Impact to construct a residential development in excess of 100 units.
3.) Major Site Plan for the development of a new multifamily development in excess of 7,500 square feet.
4.) Conditional Use Permit to establish a residential master plan greater than 7,500 square feet.
5.) Sustainable Bonus Incentive Program for an additional density, intensity and height.

The subject site is comprised of seven parcels totaling 6.39 acres. The site is located west of the 10" Avenue
North and Boutwell Road intersection and is currently vacant. The site was previously approved for a Major Site
Plan and Sustainable Bonus Incentive Program, known as Golden Roads, which consisted 189 multi-family
apartments. The new proposed development, also referred to as Golden Roads, consists of five residential
buildings and clubhouse/mailroom building. The project proposes a total of 230 multi-family units. Of the 230
units, 104 units will be one-bedroom units, 117 units will be two-bedroom units, and nine units will be three-
bedroom units.

There are 379 parking spaces provided on site with a portion of the parking side-loaded to the south building and
the remaining parking spaces are located interior to the site. Of the 379 parking spaces, 280 spaces will be
standard spaces, 82 spaces will be compact spaces, and 13 spaces will be provided in the form of bicycle racks.
Additionally, the development proposes electric vehicle charging stations that will service 15 spaces.



PZB No. 20-01400047
Page |2

Staff Recommendation:

Staff has reviewed the documentation and materials provided by the applicant for consistency with applicable
guidelines and standards found in the City of Lake Worth Zoning Code and Comprehensive Plan. The proposed
development meets the criteria of the Comprehensive Plan and LDRs. Therefore, staff recommends that the
Board approve the Residential Planned Development, Development of Significant Impact, Major Site Plan,
Conditional Use Permit, and Sustainable Bonus Incentive Program with conditions of approval to the City
Commission.

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION:

Applicant Yoan Machado of WGI

Owner Lake Worth Investment Group, LLC

General Location West of the 10" Avenue North and Boutwell Road intersection

Existing PCN 38-43-44-20-01-026-0010; 38-43-44-20-01-004-0030; 38-43-44-20-01-

Numbegrs 004-0060; 38-43-44-20-01-004-0080; 38-43-44-20-01-004-0120; 38-
43-44-20-01-004-0130; 38-43-44-20-01-004-0010

Existing Land Use Vacant

Zoning Mixed Use — West (MU-W)

Future Land Use

. . Mixed Use — West (MU-W)
Designation

LOCATION MAP:

{ae wortn Location Map - Golden Roads
R Department for Community Sustainability

U
. o r’l\\\‘:’“
Kidwin‘l'_n \

= 10thAve N - x.
ke e
o] |

b~ 7 i
024+




PZB No. 20-01400047
Page |3

BACKGROUND:

The project site is located west of the 10" Avenue North and Boutwell Road intersection. Based on Palm Beach
Property Appraiser’s records and City records, all seven parcels have remained vacant and do not have any active
business licensees linked to the site. Additionally, a search performed on February 10, 2021 indicated that there
are no open code compliance violations linked to the properties.

ANALYSIS:

Consistency with the Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan

The subject site has a Future Land Use (FLU) designation of Mixed Use — West (MU-W). Per Policy 1.1.1.6, the
MU-W FLU is intended to provide for a mixture of residential, office, service, and commercial retail uses within
specific areas west of 1-95. The preferred mix of uses area-wide is 75% residential and 25% non-residential. The
proposed residential development is a high-density residential use in this district where there is a significant
amount of existing non-residential uses. The addition of these units and would further the policy objective of
increasing residential development within the zoning district. Therefore, the proposal is consistent with the
intent of the MU-W FLU.

The City’s Strategic Plan focuses on fostering safer neighborhoods, encouraging community pride, building a
vibrant and diverse economy, planning for the future, and enhancing the natural, historic, and cultural
environment of the City. Pillar Il.LA, and Pillar 11.B of the Strategic Plan state that the City shall diversify housing
options and continue crime reduction and prevention in achieving a safe, livable and friendly community. Golden
Roads proposes a multi-family residential development that is consistent with Pillar 1l.A and Pillar II.B. Further,
the proposal is consistent with Pillar IV.A of the Strategic Plan which states that the City shall achieve economic
and financial sustainability through a versatile and stable tax base.

Based on the analysis above, the proposed development is consistent with the goals, objectives, and polices of
the City of Lake Worth Beach’s Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan.

Consistency with the City’s Land Development Regulations

Per Section 23.3-25, planned developments are intended to encourage innovative land planning and
development techniques through incentives to create more desirable and attractive development within the City.
The Department of Community Sustainability is tasked to review planned development applications in
accordance with the City’s LDRs, to assess compliance with the findings for granting planned developments
(analyzed in the following sections) and to provide a recommendation for whether the application should be
approved, approved with conditions, or denied.

Mixed Use — West (MU-W): Per LDR Section 23.3-18(a), the MU-W zoning district is intended to provide for the
establishment and expansion of office and commercial uses, including moderate intensity and higher intensity
commercial, hotel/motel, and medium-density multi-family residential development along the City’s western
thoroughfares. The proposed residential development is consistent with the intent of the MU-W district.

The table below shows the proposed site features and its compliance with the Code, factoring in the Sustainable
Bonus incentives, Planned Development incentives, and the Comprehensive Plan maximums:



PZB No. 20-01400047
Page |4

Residential Planned
Development with
Sustainable Bonus Provided
Incentive Program
(SBIP)

Development Base Zoning
Standard District

Lot Size (min) Greater or equal to

In square feet (sf) 5,000 sf 217,800 sf (5 acres) 278,340 f (6.39 acres)
Lot Width (min) 50’ 50’ 230’
Front (min) 20’ 20’ 28’
Setbacks | Rear (min) 15’ 15’ 18’

Side (min) 10’ 10’ 20’
Impermeable S'urface 65% 65% 61%
Coverage (maximum)

Structure Coverage 50% 50% 21%
(max)
Pervious Landscaped
Area in Front Yard 900 sf 900sf 3,216 sf
(min)
1-bed: 600 sf 1-bed: 600 sf 1-bed: 665 sf
Living Area (min) 2-bed: 750 sf 2-bed: 750 sf 2-bed: 881 sf
3-bed: 900 sf 3-bed: 900 sf 3-bed: 1,171 sf
Parking 379 379 379

30 du/acre (191 37.5 du/acre (239

Density (max) 36 du/acre (230 units)

units) units)
Bldg | —34’8”
Bldg Il —34’8”
Building Height (max) 30 feet 81.25 feet Bldg Ill = 52’
Bldg Ill Hybrid — 54’
Clubhouse —24’4”
Floor Area Ratio (FAR) 1.30 5 95 0.74

(max)

Landscaping: The development proposal has been reviewed for landscaping and complies with the City’s
landscape regulations in LDR Section 23.6-1. The site provides perimeter landscaping and as well as landscaping
internal to the site. Staff has conditioned that all ground-level mechanical equipment be properly screened with
landscaping and all monument signs be landscaped at the base of the sign. The landscape plan can be viewed in
Attachment B.

Signage: This application is proposing one monument sign on the south end of the site facing 10" Avenue North.
A condition of approval has been created stating that all proposed signage shall be applied for on a city building
permit and shall comply with the sign code, LDR Section 23.5-1.

Lighting: The applicant has not submitted a photometric plan. Therefore, staff has conditioned the applicant to
provide a photometric plan at least 14 days prior to the first City Commission hearing showing the location and
dimensions of all exterior lighting to be installed on the site. Note that all lighting fixtures shall be compatible
with the architectural style of the building and all lighting shall be shielded so as to not trespass upon



PZB No. 20-01400047
Page |5

neighboring residential properties or districts in excess of 12.57 lumens when measured from the property
line. Further, all lighting shall comply with lighting code regulations in LDR Section 23.4-3. If using LED lighting,
a warm light tone not to exceed 3000 K is required and all fixtures shall be dark skies compliant.

Density: The base zoning district allows a maximum density of 30 units per acre. Based on Policy 1.2.3.4(3) of the
City’s Comprehensive Plan, residential planned developments may obtain a 25% bonus on density, intensity and
height over the base outlined in Table 1 of the City’s Comprehensive Plan. Therefore, 30 units per acre plus 25%
equals a maximum density of 37.5 units per acre (239 units). The proposed residential planned development
proposes a density of 36 units per acre (230 units) which is less than the maximum density allowed on this
property.

Height: The base zoning district allows a maximum building height of 30 feet. Per LDR Section 23.3-18(c)(2)(B),
blocks fronting 10" Avenue North may obtain an additional 35 feet in height under the City’s Sustainable Bonus
Incentive Program. Additionally, Policy 1.2.3.4(3) of the City’s Comprehensive Plan states that residential
planned developments may obtain a 25% bonus on density, intensity and height over the base outlined in Table 1
of the City’s Comprehensive Plan. Therefore, 30 feet plus 35 feet plus 25% equals a maximum height of 81.25
feet. The highest building height proposed for this project is 54 feet which is less than the maximum allowed
building height for this property.

Floor Area Ratio (FAR): The base zoning district allows a maximum FAR of 1.30. Per LDR Section 23.3-18(c)(7)(D),
an additional 0.5 of FAR shall be granted under the City’s Sustainable Bonus Incentive Program. Additionally,
Policy 1.2.3.4(3) of the City’s Comprehensive Plan states that residential planned developments may obtain a 25%
bonus on density, intensity and height over the base outlined in Table 1 of the City’s Comprehensive Plan.
Therefore, 1.30 plus 0.5 plus 25% equals a maximum allowed FAR of 2.25. The project proposes a total FAR of
0.74 which is less than the maximum allowed FAR for this property.

Impermeable Surface Coverage: The project as proposed complies with the City’s maximum impermeable
surface allowance of 65%. The site plan proposes approximately 137,293 square feet of impervious surface area
and 61,675 square feet of semi-pervious surface area. Per LDR Section 23.1-12, two square feet of semi-
pervious surface shall be equivalent to one square foot of impervious surface for the purpose of calculating
development regulations. Therefore, of the 61,675 square feet of semi-pervious surface area, 30,837 square
feet counts towards impermeable surface coverage resulting in a total impermeable surface area of 168,130
square feet (61%).

Major Thoroughfare Design Guidelines / Urban Design: The project generally complies with the City’s Major
Thoroughfare Design Guidelines. The Development Review Official has recommended the following action to
further enhance the buildings’ architecture, which has been include as a staff recommended condition of
approval:
e Add glazing/fenestration to the front facade of the west side of Building Type Ill — Hybrid as the plans
currently show the facade as a large expanse of blank wall above the second floor.

Waivers Requested:

The application is not requesting any deviations from the Code as part of this request.

Residential Urban Planned Development:

The intent of this section is to encourage, through incentives, the use of innovative land planning and
development techniques to create more desirable and attractive development in the City. Incentives include but
are not limited to:




PZB No. 20-01400047
Page |6

1. Relaxing or waiving of height, setback, lot dimensions, and lot area requirements;
2. Allowing an increase in density or a decrease in minimum living area per dwelling unit; and
3. Permitting uses or a mixture of uses not normally permitted in the underlying zoning district.

The proposed project is a residential planned development for the construction of 230 multi-family units. The
criteria below lists the requirements of all residential planned developments.

Section 23.3-25(c) — Residential Planned Development District

1. Location. RPDs may be created in any residential district.

Staff Analysis: The proposed subject site is located within the MU-W zoning district. Per LDR Section 23.3-18(b),
multi-family residential uses may be established subject to the provisions of LDR Section 23.3-11, Medium
Density Multi-Family Residential (MF-30). Because the MF-30 zoning district is a residential district, the
application complies with this criterion. Meets Criterion.

2. Minimum area required. The minimum area required for a residential planned development district west of I-
95 shall be 5 acres.

Staff Analysis: This residential planned development will be situated on a lot of 6.39 acres, which is over the
required minimum area. Meets Criterion.

3. Permitted uses. Within any residential planned development, any use permitted in the underlying zoning
district is permitted.

Staff Analysis: The project will be solely residential, containing 230 multi-family units. Per the City’s Use Table,
LDR Section 23.3-6, multi-family is permitted by right in the MU-W zoning district. Meets Criterion.

4. Required setbacks. Required setbacks shall be as provided in these LDRs for the zoning district in which the
planned development is to be located.

Staff Analysis: The project complies with the minimum required setbacks of the base zoning district, MU-W.
Meets Criterion.

5. Parking and loading space requirements. Parking and loading spaces for all uses within a residential planned
development district shall be provided as required. No off-street parking shall be located within a required
setback area.

Staff Analysis: The proposed project has not requested to waive or reduce any of the requirements associated
with parking. However, parking is located within the required side setback area of 10 feet. In lieu of the side
setback of 10 feet, the applicant is proposing to provide a 6ft fence with a 5 ft landscape buffer with trees along
the property line. Staff has proposed an additional landscape related condition of approval to ensure adequate
screening of the parking areas.

6. Landscaping. Landscaping, tree protection, screening and buffering shall be provided as required by section
23.6-1. However, additional landscaping, screening, and buffering may be required to provide additional privacy
and protection for residents within a planned development district and adjacent property owners.


https://library.municode.com/fl/lake_worth_beach/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH23LADERE_ART6ENRE_S23.6-1LARE
https://library.municode.com/fl/lake_worth_beach/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH23LADERE_ART6ENRE_S23.6-1LARE

PZB No. 20-01400047
Page |7

Staff Analysis: Landscape screening and buffering are provided along the perimeter of the site to meet the
landscape buffering requirements. The project proposes a 10-foot landscape buffer along 10™" Avenue North and
a five-foot landscape buffer around the perimeter subject site. A meandering path is also provided along 10
Avenue North providing additional buffering along the public right of way. Meets Criterion.

7. Signs. Signs may be erected pursuant to the provisions in Section 23.5-1.

Staff Analysis: This application is proposing one monument sign on the south end of the site facing 10" Avenue
North. A condition of approval has been created stating that all proposed signage shall be applied for on a city
building permit and shall comply with the sign code, LDR Section 23.5-1. Meets Criterion.

Development of Significant Impact (DSI):

A development of significant impact (DSI) is a commercial, office, or industrial development of 100,000 or
more gross square feet of enclosed building area, including renovations of existing structures when a change to
a more intensive use is anticipated, or a residential development of 100 or more dwelling units, including
renovations of existing structures when a change to a more intensive use is anticipated. The project proposed
gualifies as a DSI because it exceeds 100 dwelling units.

Per LDR Section 23.2-35, a proposed DSI and any amendments to an approved DSl shall be reviewed and
approved in accordance with the procedures and requirements for a Conditional Use Permit except that the
City Commission shall be the decision maker and not the Planning and Zoning Board or the Historic Resources
Preservation Board. The Conditional Use Permit criteria is outlined in the conditional use analysis within this
report on page 10.

Master Development Plan (Major Site Plan):

A master site plan is required in conjunction with a residential planned development. The review criteria
below is intended to promote safety and minimize negative impacts of development on its neighbors by
establishing qualitative requirements for the arrangements of buildings, structures, parking areas, landscaping
and other site improvements.

Section 23.2-31(c): Qualitative Development Standards

1. Harmonious and efficient organization. All elements of the site plan shall be harmoniously and efficiently
organized in relation to topography, the size and type of plot, the character of adjoining property and the type
and size of buildings. The site shall be developed so as to not impede the normal and orderly development or
improvement of surrounding property for uses permitted in these LDRs.

Staff Analysis: The Applicant states that the site is designed harmoniously and provides a residential use along a
corridor that is a majority non-residential, thus providing the residential mix that the MU-W district anticipates.
The Applicant also states that the modern contemporary architecture style is harmonious with nearby modern
style redevelopment such as the Woodsprings Suites Hotel and the Wyndham Hotel. Meets Criterion.

2. Preservation of natural conditions. The natural (refer to landscape code, Article 6 of these LDRs) landscape
shall be preserved in its natural state, insofar as practical, by minimizing tree and soil removal and by such other
site planning approaches as are appropriate. Terrain and vegetation shall not be disturbed in a manner likely to
significantly increase either wind or water erosion within or adjacent to a development site. Natural detention
areas and other means of natural vegetative filtration of stormwater runoff shall be used to minimize ground and
surface water pollution, particularly adjacent to major waterbodies as specified in Part Il, Chapter 12, Health and
Sanitation, Article VIII, Fertilizer Friendly Use Regulations. Fertilizer/pesticide conditions may be attached to


https://library.municode.com/fl/lake_worth_beach/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH23LADERE_ART6ENRE
https://library.municode.com/fl/lake_worth_beach/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH12HESA

PZB No. 20-01400047
Page |8

development adjacent to waterbodies. Marinas shall be permitted only in water with a mean low tide depth of
four (4) feet or more.

Staff Analysis: The Applicant states that the site will not be disturbed in such a manner as to significantly increase
either wind or water erosion on or adjacent to the subject site. Further, the site will be managing drainage on-
site. Meets Criterion.

3. Screening and buffering. Fences, walls or vegetative screening shall be provided where needed and practical to
protect residents and users from undesirable views, lighting, noise, odors or other adverse off-site effects, and to
protect residents and users of off-site development from on-site adverse effects. This section may be interpreted
to require screening and buffering in addition to that specifically required by other sections of these LDRs, but
not less.

Staff Analysis: Landscape screening and buffering are provided along the perimeter of the site to meet the
landscape buffering requirements. The project proposes a 10-foot landscape buffer along 10™" Avenue North and
a five-foot landscape buffer around the perimeter subject site. A meandering path is also provided along 10
Avenue North providing additional buffering along the public right of way. Meets Criterion

4. Enhancement of residential privacy. The site plan shall provide reasonable, visual and acoustical privacy for all
dwelling units located therein and adjacent thereto. Fences, walks, barriers and vegetation shall be arranged for
the protection and enhancement of property and to enhance the privacy of the occupants.

Staff Analysis: The proposed development staggers the building orientation of each building and locates a
majority of the residential buildings in the center of the site to promote privacy for its residents. As mentioned
above, the site also provides landscape buffering around the perimeter of the property. Meets Criterion.

5. Emergency access. Structures and other site features shall be so arranged as to permit emergency vehicle
access by some practical means to all sides of all buildings.

Staff Analysis: Emergency access is provided to all buildings. There is also secondary emergency access provided
at the southeast portion of the site. Meets Criterion.

6. Access to public ways. All buildings, dwelling units and other facilities shall have safe and convenient access to
a public street, walkway or other area dedicated to common use; curb cuts close to railroad crossings shall be
avoided.

Staff Analysis: Pedestrian pathways are provided on the site separate from the vehicular circulation to assist in
safe and efficient circulation. Further, the site plan proposes a meandering path along 10" Avenue North that
connects to the sidewalk along 10™ Avenue North to the pedestrian pathways internal to the site. Meets
Criterion.

7. Pedestrian circulation. There shall be provided a pedestrian circulation system which is insulated as completely
as reasonably possible from the vehicular circulation system.

Staff Analysis: As stated above, the site provides safe pedestrian circulation interior to the site. Meets Criterion.

8. Design of ingress and egress drives. The location, size and numbers of ingress and egress drives to the site will
be arranged to minimize the negative impacts on public and private ways and on adjacent private property.



PZB No. 20-01400047
Page |9

Merging and turnout lanes traffic dividers shall be provided where they would significantly improve safety for
vehicles and pedestrians.

Staff Analysis: As stated, vehicular access to the site is provided off of 10" Avenue North. A security gate is
located about 210 feet into the property. While the applicant attempted to gain an access point from Keast Lane
to the northeast, Keast Lane is privately-owned right-of-way and the owner was not willing to allow an access
point to the site from Keast Lane. Meets Criterion.

9. Coordination of on-site circulation with off-site circulation. The arrangement of public or common ways for
vehicular and pedestrian circulation shall be coordinated with the pattern of existing or planned streets and
pedestrian or bicycle pathways in the area. Minor streets shall not be connected to major streets in such a way as
to facilitate improper utilization.

Staff Analysis: The site plan shows that the site’s vehicular and pedestrian circulation connects to the existing
street pattern and pedestrian walkways. Meets Criterion.

10. Design of on-site public right-of-way. On-site public street and rights-of-way shall be designed for maximum
efficiency. They shall occupy no more land than is required to provide access, nor shall they unnecessarily
fragment development into small blocks. Large developments containing extensive public rights-of-way shall
have said rights-of-way arranged in a hierarchy with local streets providing direct access to parcels and other
streets providing no or limited direct access to parcels.

Staff Analysis: There are no on-site public rights-of-way. The application includes a 15 foot right-of-way
dedication along 10" Avenue North for future road-widening projects. Meets Criterion.

11. Off-street parking, loading and vehicular circulation areas. Off-street parking, loading and vehicular
circulation areas shall be located, designed and screened to minimize the impact of noise, glare and odor on
adjacent property.

Staff Analysis: Landscape buffers are provided along the front of the property to screen the parking area from
10" Avenue North. Additionally, landscape buffers are proposed around the perimeter of the property to
provide screening from the parking areas that are not already screened by buildings. Meets Criterion.

12. Refuse and service areas. Refuse and service areas shall be located, designed and screened to minimize the
impact of noise, glare and odor on adjacent property.

Staff Analysis: The site plan proposes the dumpster on the west side of the property enclosed by an opaque wall.
This application has been conditioned so that prior to the issuance of a building permit, the Applicant shall ensure
that all dumpster and refuse areas are screened with opaque fencing or walls that comply with LDR Section 23.4-
4 and provide an exterior landscape screen of shrub hedging or other continuous decorative landscaping that is a
minimum height of 24 inches at installation and shall be maintained at no less than % of the total height of the
enclosure. Meets Criterion as Conditioned.

13. Protection of property values. The elements of the site plan shall be arranged so as to have minimum negative
impact on the property values of adjoining property.

Staff Analysis: The proposed project will revitalize the vacant site, constructing 230 multi-family units, and
further add to the City’s tax base. Meets Criterion.



PZB No. 20-01400047
Page |10

14. Transitional development. Where the property being developed is located on the edge of the zoning district,
the site plan shall be designed to provide for a harmonious transition between districts. Building exteriors shall
complement other buildings in the vicinity in size, scale, mass, bulk, rhythm of openings and character.
Consideration shall be given to a harmonious transition in height and design style so that the change in zoning
districts is not accentuated. Additional consideration shall be given to complementary setbacks between the
existing and proposed development.

Staff Analysis: The subject site is within the MU-W zoning district and surrounded by MU-W zoned properties to
the north, east, and south. To the west is the E-4 Keller Canal and a commercial plaza located in Unincorporated
Palm Beach County. The project proposes a development that is consistent with the MU-W zoning district and
the development incentives in the City’s Comprehensive Plan. Meets Criterion.

15. Consideration of future development. In finding whether or not the above standards are met, the review
authority shall consider likely future development as well as existing development.

Staff Analysis: With future development in mind, the proposed development meets the intent of the MU-W
zoning district and is consistent with intent of the MU-W future land use designation. Meets Criterion.

Section 23.2-31(1): Community Appearance Criteria

1. The plan for the proposed structure or project is in conformity with good taste, good design, and in general
contributes to the image of the city as a place of beauty, spaciousness, harmony, taste, fitness, broad vistas and
high quality.

Staff Analysis: Staff has reviewed the application and determined that the proposal complies with the Major
Thoroughfare Design Guidelines and is in conformity with good taste, good design, and contributes to the image
of the City. Meets Criterion.

2. The proposed structure or project is not, in its exterior design and appearance, of inferior quality such as to
cause the nature of the local environment or evolving environment to materially depreciate in appearance and
value.

Staff Analysis: The application has been reviewed by the City’s Site Plan Review Team (SPRT) and has been
determined to not be of inferior quality that would cause harm to the nature of the local environment or
materially depreciate in appearance and value. Meets Criterion.

3. The proposed structure or project is in harmony with the proposed developments in the general area, with
code requirements pertaining to site plan, signage and landscaping, and the comprehensive plan for the city, and
with the criteria set forth herein.

Staff Analysis: The proposal is consistent with the City’s Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan, the City’s LDRs
and Major Thoroughfare Design Guidelines. The Applicant states that the site is designed harmoniously and
provides a residential use along a corridor that is a majority non-residential, thus providing the residential mix
that the MU-W district anticipates. The Applicant also states that the modern contemporary architecture style is
harmonious with nearby modern style redevelopment such as the Woodsprings Suites Hotel and the Wyndham
Hotel. Meets Criterion.

4. The proposed structure or project is in compliance with this section and 23.2-29, as applicable.


https://library.municode.com/fl/lake_worth_beach/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH23LADERE_ART2AD_DIV3PE_S23.2-29COUSPE

PZB No. 20-01400047
Page |11

Staff Analysis: The project’s compliance with the community appearance and conditional use criteria is detailed
below. Meets Criterion.

Conditional Use Permit:

Conditional uses are those uses that are generally compatible with the other uses permitted in a district, but
that require individual review of their location, design, structure, configuration, density and intensity of use,
and may require the imposition of conditions pertinent thereto in order to ensure the appropriateness and
compatibility of the use at a particular location and to prevent or minimize potential adverse impacts to the
surrounding area. The project proposal includes a conditional use request to establish a residential master plan
greater than 7,500 square feet.

Section 23.2-29(d): General findings relating to harmony with LDRs and protection of public interest

The proposed project is consistent with the general findings relating to harmony with the LDRs and protection of
public interest, as follows:

1. The conditional use exactly as proposed at the location where proposed will be in harmony with the uses
which, under these LDRs and the future land use element, are most likely to occur in the immediate area where
located.

Staff Analysis: The site contains a zoning designation of MU-W. Based on the intent of the MU-W zoning district,
uses most likely to occur in the district are office and commercial uses, including moderate intensity and higher
intensity commercial, hotel/motel, and medium-density multi-family residential development along the City’s
western thoroughfares. The proposed residential development is consistent with the intent of the MU-W district.
Therefore, the proposed residential planned development is compatible and harmonious with the existing and
anticipated surrounding uses. Meets Criterion.

2. The conditional use exactly as proposed at the location where proposed will be in harmony with existing uses
in the immediate area where located.

Staff Analysis: The existing uses in the surrounding area are as follows:

Direction Future Land Use Zoning District Current Use
North MU -W MU -W Single-family residence
(adjacent)
South

Under construction — Future

th MU -W MU -W
(across 10 Wyndham Hotel
Ave N)
East MU -W MU -W Vacant lots, office, and gas
(adjacent) station
West N/A General Commercial (GC) - E-4 Keller Canal and a
(adjacent) Unincorporated PBC commercial plaza

Per the Palm Beach County Property Appraiser, the site is surrounded by a mixture of commercial and residential
uses. To the north of the site is a single-family residence, and to the east are a mixture of vacant lots, office
space, and a gas station. To the south of the site, across 10" Avenue North, is the future site of the Wyndham
Hotel which is currently under construction. To the west, is the E-4 Keller Canal and a commercial plaza that is



PZB No. 20-01400047
Page |12

located in Unincorporated Palm Beach County. The proposed use of multi-family residential has been found to
be consistent with the surrounding commercial and residential uses. Meets Criterion.

3. The conditional use exactly as proposed will not result in substantially less public benefit or greater harm than
would result from use of the Property for some use permitted by right or some other conditional use permitted
on the Property.

Staff Analysis: The approval of this conditional use will bring more residents to the City and contribute to the
City’s tax base. Therefore, the development is not anticipated to result in less public benefit than a use permitted
by right. Meets Criterion.

4. The conditional use exactly as proposed will not result in more intensive development in advance of when such
development is approved by the future land use element of the comprehensive plan.

Staff Analysis: Based on the table on pages four, the project proposes a density, height, and floor area ratio (FAR)
that is less than the maximum development potential the code allows on this lot. Therefore, the project is not
anticipated to be a more intensive development than what the Comprehensive Plan anticipates. Meets
Criterion.

Section 23.2-29(e): Specific standards for all conditional uses

1. The proposed conditional use will not generate traffic volumes or movements, which will result in a
significant adverse impact or reduce the level of service provided on any street to a level lower than would
result from a development permitted by right.

Staff Analysis: Based on the Palm Beach County Traffic Concurrency Letter, the Palm Beach County Traffic
Division has determined that the proposal meets the Traffic Performance Standards of Palm Beach County. The
conditions imposed by the Palm Beach County Traffic Division have been satisfied based on the site plan.
Additionally, per the Florida Department of Transportation’s Trip Generation Table, 8™ Edition, a 230-unit
apartment complex is anticipated to generate 143 PM peak trips. Multi-family residential has a lower trip
generation rate than single-family residential, which is a by right use. A project with 150-single-family homes
would generate 152 PM peak trips. Therefore, the proposal is anticipated to generate less trips than a use
permitted by right. The Applicant’s Traffic Study can be viewed in Attachment C. Meets Criterion.

2. The proposed conditional use will not result in a significantly greater amount of through traffic on local
streets than would result from a development permitted by right and is appropriately located with respect to
collector and arterial streets.

Staff Analysis: Per the Palm Beach County Traffic Concurrency Letter, the Palm Beach County Traffic Division
has determined that the proposal meets the Traffic Performance Standards of Palm Beach County. Therefore,
the traffic generated from the proposed development is not anticipated to generate a significant amount of
through traffic on local streets than would result from a development permitted by right. Meets Criterion.

3. The proposed conditional use will not produce significant air pollution emissions, to a level compatible with
that which would result from a development permitted by right.



PZB No. 20-01400047
Page |13

Staff Analysis: Staff does not anticipate the proposed 230-unit multi-family development to produce significant
air pollution emissions that are greater than that of a development permitted by right. The proposed residential
use does not pose a pollution hazard to the nearby properties. Meets Criterion.

4. The proposed conditional use will be so located in relation to the thoroughfare system that neither extension
nor enlargement nor any other alteration of that system in a manner resulting in higher net public cost or earlier
incursion of public cost than would result from development permitted by right.

Staff Analysis: The proposal includes a 15-foot right of way dedication for future road-widening projects.
However, the project is not anticipated to cause a higher net public cost or earlier incursion of public cost than
what would result from a development permitted by right. Meets Criterion.

5. The proposed conditional use will be so located in relation to water lines, sanitary sewers, storm sewers,
surface drainage systems and other utility systems that neither extension nor enlargement nor any other
alteration of such systems in a manner resulting in higher net public cost or earlier incursion of public cost than
would result from development permitted by right.

Staff Analysis: The applicant will be utilizing existing City utility lines. No adverse impact to infrastructure or
public utilities is anticipated to occur as a result of this request. Meets Criterion.

6. The proposed conditional use will not place a demand on municipal police or fire protection service beyond the
capacity of those services.

Staff Analysis: The proposed development is not anticipated to place a demand on municipal police or fire
protection service beyond the capacity of those services. In attempt to reduce the crime potential at this
location, the Applicant has proposed perimeter security fencing with a vehicular gate placed about 210 feet into
the property which will prevent the stacking of automobiles in the public right of way. Meets Criterion.

7. The proposed conditional use will not generate significant noise, or will appropriately mitigate anticipated
noise to a level compatible with that which would result from a development permitted by right. Any proposed
use must meet all the requirements and stipulations set forth in section 15.24, Noise control.

Staff Analysis: Unreasonable noise, which is defined in Section 15.24-1, is prohibited in the City when:
e Equal to or greater than 65 dba between 11:00 p.m. and 8:00 a.m., Sunday through Thursday
o Greater than 85 dba between 8:00 a.m. and 11:00 p.m., Sunday through Thursday
e Equal to or greater than 65 dba between 12:00 a.m. and 8:00 a.m., Friday through Saturday
e Equal to or greater than 85 dba between 8:00 a.m. and 12:00 a.m., Friday through Saturday

The requested use is for a 230-unit multi-family residential project. The use is not anticipated to cause
unreasonable noise during the hours listed above. Therefore, the multi-family residential project is anticipated to
generate noise levels that are compliant with Section 15.24. Meets Criterion.

8. The proposed conditional use will not generate light or glare which encroaches onto any adjacent property in
excess of that allowed in Section 23.4-3, Exterior lighting.

Staff Analysis: The Applicant has not submitted a photometric plan. Therefore, staff has conditioned the
Applicant to provide a photometric plan at least 14 days prior to the first City Commission hearing showing the
location and dimensions of all exterior lighting to be installed on the site. Note that all lighting fixtures shall be


https://library.municode.com/HTML/10091/level3/PTIICOOR_CH23LADERE_ART4DEST.html#PTIICOOR_CH23LADERE_ART4DEST_S23.4-10OREPA

PZB No. 20-01400047
Page |14

compatible with the architectural style of the building and all lighting shall be shielded so as to not trespass
upon neighboring residential properties or districts in excess of 12.57 lumens when measured from the
property line. Further, all lighting shall comply with lighting code regulations in LDR Section 23.4-3. If using
LED lighting, a warm light tone not to exceed 3000 K is required and all fixtures shall be dark skies compliant.
Meets Criterion as Conditioned.

Sustainable Bonus Incentive Program

The proposal includes a Sustainable Bonus Incentive Program to obtain additional height and additional density
from the base zoning district, MU-W. Per Policy 1.2.3.4(3) of the City’s Comprehensive Plan, residential planned
developments may obtain a 25% bonus on density, intensity and height over the base outlined in Table 1 of the
City’s Comprehensive Plan. Therefore, 30 units per acre plus 25% equals a maximum density of 37.5 units per
acre (239 units). The proposed residential planned development proposes a density of 36 units per acre (230
units) which is 39 units greater than what the base zoning district allows. The Sustainable Bonus value is $10 per
square foot of additional density. Because the average unit size is 949.6 square feet, the total required
Sustainable Bonus value for this project is $494,750 (949.6 sf x 39 units x $10). Based on the Applicant’s
Sustainable Bonus Spreadsheet in Attachment C, the Applicant will obtain Florida Green Building Certification for
all proposed buildings prior to the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy. Florida Green Building Certification
counts towards 50% of the total Sustainable Bonus value (5247.375). The remaining $247.375 in sustainable
features are being met through a 15-foot right of way dedication, a public sidewalk along 10" Avenue North, on-
site amenities including a pool and deck area, fitness room, cabana, tot lot, and a dog park, and lastly, a school
bus shelter is being provided on site along 10" Avenue North. As mentioned, a detailed break-down of the
Sustainable Bonus features are outlined in the spreadsheet in Attachment C.

Public Support/Opposition:

Staff has not received any letters of support or opposition.

CONCLUSION:

The proposed request for a Residential Planned Development, Development of Significant Impact, Major Site
Plan, Conditional Use Permit, and Sustainable Bonus Incentive Program is consistent with the purpose, intent and
requirements of the Comprehensive Plan, underlying zoning district, and surrounding areas, subject to
compliance with staff’'s proposed conditions of approval. Therefore, staff recommends that the Board
recommend approval of the proposed request with the conditions below:

PB County Fire:
1. Fire department access shall be no less than 20 feet.

Electric Utilities:
1. Priorto the issuance of a building permit, the following actions shall be completed:

a. Provide the voltage requirements of the existing six buildings proposed on the site and indicate
whether they will be single-phase or three-phase. Buildings “A” and “C” must be three-phase
since a single-phase transformer cannot handle the load of the proposed five-story buildings.

b. Indicate whether other services will be needed for the project such as irrigation, lift station,
lighting, gates, etc. and where these services will be.

c. Identify the location for the padmount transformers and the meter centers for each building.
The transformer locations must be accessible to our vehicles, and must have 8-ft minimum



PZB No. 20-01400047
Page |15

clearance in the front of them and three-foot minimum clearance on the sides and rear, including
landscaping.

d. Provide the load calculations for all buildings, the electrical riser diagrams for all buildings, and
the construction plans showing the water, sewer, drainage, paving, landscaping, and lighting for
the project.

2. Prior to the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy, the following actions shall be completed:

a. Provide a 10-foot wide utility easement for all of the electric lines, transformers and other
equipment that will need to be installed to provide power to this project.

b. The customer will be responsible for installing all schedule-40 gray conduit that will be needed by
Lake Worth Beach for this project for its primary cable. This conduit must be installed at a 42”
minimum depth. Pad specs will be given to the customer to show the proper orientation of
conduit at the padmount transformers.

Community Services Landscaping:
1. Conditions of approval that must be met at least 14 days prior to the first City Commission hearing:

a. Show all ground level mechanical equipment such as A/C Condensers on landscape plans. All
ground level mechanical equipment including private lift stations must be screened by shrubs
and/or opaque fencing or walls. Show the required screening on plans.

b. Landscape is required at the base of the entrance sign. Show this on the landscape plan or
provide a separate sign plan which shows the required landscape.

c. The dumpster enclosure shall be screened with landscaping in a manner consistent with the code
requirements.

d. Shrubs located in landscape areas between parking and vehicular use areas and a chain link fence
shall be maintained a minimum of height of no less than 4 ft to provide screening of parking and
vehicle use areas from adjacent properties.

Planning and Zoning:
1. Conditions of approval that must be met at least 14 days prior to the first City Commission hearing:

a. A complete signed and sealed plan set shall be submitted to the City’s Planning and Zoning
Division at least 14 days prior to the first City Commission reading. Said plans shall be revised to
depict the following:

i. Show the location and screening method of all mechanical equipment, including AC
equipment, on the site plan. Per LDR Sec. 23.6-1(c)(3)(h), all ground level mechanical
equipment shall be screened with shrub hedging or opaque fencing or walls. Chain link or
other similar type open fencing shall not be permitted. If the mechanical equipment will
be located on the roof, provide a roof diagram with the mechanical equipment location
labeled. Note that per LDR Section 23.4-21(1), all roof-mounted equipment visible.
Materials used for screening purposes shall be compatible with the architectural style,
color, and materials of the principal building from adjacent property or an adjacent
street shall be screened from view. The minimum height of such screening shall be
equal to the highest point of the systems/equipment.

ii. Per LDR Section 23.4-4(e)(1)(C), along side and rear property lines adjacent to roadways,
fencing shall be setback a minimum of 30 inches and require a landscape screen that
shall be maintained at a minimum height of 24 inches. Therefore, the portion of fencing
along the east property line that is adjacent to Keast Lane shall be setback 30 inches with



PZB No. 20-01400047
Page |16

the required landscape screening. Show the new fence placement and screening on the
revised plan set.

iii. Per LDR Section 23.4-4(e)(3)(B), chain link fencing visible from all rights of way shall have
a landscape screen of shrub hedging or other continuous decorative landscaping on the
side of the fence facing the public right-of-way that is a minimum height of 24 inches at
installation and shall be maintained at no less than 3/4 of the total height of the fence.
Therefore, the portion of chain link fencing that is visible from 10™" Avenue North shall
have the required landscape screening. Show said landscaping on the revised plan set.

iv. Note on the landscape plans that shrubs planted in landscape areas between parking
and vehicular use areas with chain link fencing shall have a minimum planting depth of
24 inches at installation and shall be maintained at no less than 4 feet in height to
provide a continuous landscape screen. This shall not apply to areas with an opaque
fence that provides full screening of the parking and vehicular use area.

v. lIdentify a designated ride share parking space or drop-off/pick-up area outside of the
gate.

vi. The landscape plan shall be updated to address the landscape comments and the

required screening of the dumpster and refuse. These areas are required to be screened
with opaque fencing or walls with an exterior landscape screen of shrub hedging or other
continuous decorative landscaping that is a minimum height of 24 inches at installation
and shall be maintained at no less than % of the total height of the enclosure.

vii. Provide a photometric plan showing the location and dimensions of all exterior lighting
to be installed on the site. Note that all lighting fixtures shall be compatible with the
architectural style of the building and all lighting shall be shielded so as to not trespass
upon neighboring residential properties or districts in excess of 12.57 lumens when
measured from the property line. Further, all lighting shall comply with lighting code
regulations in LDR Section 23.4-3. If using LED lighting, a warm light tone not to exceed
3000 K is required and all fixtures shall be dark skies compliant.

Provide a statement indicating how package and mail delivery will function on the property. Staff
may require the parking area for package and mail delivery services to be identified on the site
plan if needed for clarity. Currently, a clubhouse/mailroom is identified on the site plan within
the gate. Another mail facility is identified on the first floor of the building outside gate on the
architectural plans, but not the site plan.

2. Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the following actions shall be completed:

a.

All traffic requirements outlined in the Palm Beach County Traffic Division’s TPS letter shall be
completed.

3. Prior to a Certificate of Occupancy, the following actions shall be completed:

a.

The project site shall be replatted in accordance with the procedures and regulations outlined in
LDR Section 23.5-2. All platting shall be finalized prior to construction. Note that per LDR Section
23.3-5(h)(4)(D), "if a zoning change is involved, certification from the department for community
sustainability shall be furnished to the city clerk indicating that the change requested has been
approved and is in effect, and that the size of lots and other features shown on the plat conform
to all zoning requirements. Signing of the final plat by the city clerk shall constitute such
certification.”

An application to replat the property is shall be submitted to the City’s Planning and Zoning
Division.



PZB No. 20-01400047
Page |17

4. All signage shall be applied for on a separate building permit and shall comply with LDR Section 23.5-1,
Signage.

5. Perthe site plan, the development proposes 61,675 square feet of semi-pervious surface to meet the
maximum impermeable surface requirement. Therefore, prior to the issuance of a building permit,
documentation shall be provided to staff showing the percolation rate of the semi-pervious paving
material to ensure that has a percolation rate that is at least 50% rate to the ground percolation rate.
Also include a paver maintenance plan to ensure that it will maintain its permeability over time.

a. Note that if the semi-pervious material is converted to impervious surface area at any time, the
project would exceed the code’s maximum impermeable surface coverage allowance and thus,
the Applicant would need to apply for a Planned Development amendment.

Urban Design:
1. Conditions of approval that must be met at least 14 days prior to the first City Commission hearing:

a. Front main building - Building Type llI-H — the floor plans of the residential units on the west side
of the structure do not match the colored elevations or the renderings. The colored elevations
and renderings show a large slider and a smaller accent window. The floor plans only show what
are likely two smaller accent windows. The plans should be updated for consistency and clarity.

b. The front facade on the west side of the Building Type IlI-H remains a large expanse of blank wall
above the second floor, additional fenestration is required. Plans should be updated for
consistency with this condition.

Public Works:
1. Priorto the issuance of a building permit, the following actions shall be completed:

a. The applicant shall contact the Lake Worth Drainage (LWDD) District’s Engineering Department
and obtain any required permit(s), if necessary, and furnish to the City. Prior to the issuance of a
building permit, the applicant shall contact the South Florida Water Management District’s
(SFWMD) Engineering Department and obtain any required permit(s), if necessary.

b. The applicant shall ensure that the dumpster enclosure meets the specifications of the Public
Services Department.

c. The applicant shall complete the right of way permit from Palm Beach County for the
construction of improvements on 10" Avenue North.

d. The applicant shall submit an Erosion Control plan and indicate the BMP’s and NPDES compliance
practices.

2. Prior to the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy, the following actions shall be completed:

a. The applicant shall ensure the entire surrounding off-site infrastructure inclusive of the roadway,
sidewalk, curbing, stormwater system piping and structures, valve boxes, manholes, landscaping,
striping, signage, and other improvements are in the same condition as prior to construction

b. The applicant shall fine grade and sod all disturbed areas with bahia sod.

c. The applicant shall broom sweep all areas of the affected right of way and remove of all silt and
debris collected as a result of construction activity.
3. The issuance of any permits shall comply with all provisions of the Lake Worth Municipal Code and all

other applicable standards including but not limited to the Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT),
Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD), and City of Lake Worth Public Works Construction
Standards and Policy and Procedure Manual.



PZB No. 20-01400047
Page |18

Utilities Water & Sewer:

1. Conditions of approval that must be met at least 14 days prior to the first City Commission reading:
a. Paving/Grading/Drainage:

i. The drainage plan shall address management of stormwater runoff in the green spaces
surrounding the apartments. This shall be supported with signed and sealed Drainage
Calculations including statement regarding floodplain management provisions for water
quality and quantity shall be provided to the City.

ii. The City’s drainage policy is that project site must contain the 3-yr 1-hour storm event on site,
this equates to 2.6” of rainfall. Other regulating agency policy’s still apply and the design must
meet the most stringent of these requirements.

iii. The final grading plan shall include cross sections from the paved area/buildings to the end of
property boundary for each property line and each cross section change.

b. Water and Sewer:

i. The watermain & forcemain tie-in locations must be designed and coordinated with the future
pipeline extensions planned in 10™" Ave N.

ii. Water Utilities must be centered or arrange in a dedicated utility easement. Minimum size of
dedicated easements is 15-foot.

iii.  The utility plan and the proposed landscaping shall pair well with the underground utility
infrastructure as well as underground storage. There are locations where gumbo limbo trees
are proposed in a tree island that is shared with fire hydrant, due to the root structure of this
tree it is not recommended. Fire lines and water service line shall be well planned to avoid
interaction with growing root systems.

2. Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the following actions shall be completed:
a. Provide copies of the required SFWMD and LWDD permits
b. Reserved capacity fees for water and sewer shall be paid in full per phase plan.

Lake Worth Drainage District (LWDD):
1. Prior to submitting a LWDD permit, and prior to the issuance of a city building permit, the following
actions shall be completed:

a. The outfall connection into the E-4 Canal shall be constructed and stabilized with rip-rap rubble
for 25 feet on the center of the RCP outfall pipe. The depiction of the rip-rap rubble indicates 20
feet. Revise to 25 feet on the Civil Engineering Plans.

b. The canal bank shall be stabilized with rip-rap rubble for the length of the project. Show rip-rap
rubble detail along the length of the project.

c. All other requirements from the LWDD shall be met.

Board Actions:

| MOVE TO RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF PZB PROJECT NUMBER 20-0140047 with staff recommended conditions
for a Residential Planned Development, Development of Significant Impact, Major Site Plan, Conditional Use
Permit, and Sustainable Bonus Incentive Program to construct a 230-unit multifamily development at the subject
site. The project meets the applicable criteria based on the data and analysis in the staff report.

| MOVE TO RECOMMEND DENIAL OF PZB PROJECT NUMBER 20-01400047 for a Residential Planned
Development, Development of Significant Impact, Major Site Plan, Conditional Use Permit, and Sustainable Bonus



PZB No. 20-01400047
Page |19

Incentive Program to construct a 230-unit multifamily development at the subject site. The project does not
meet the applicable criteria for the following reasons [Board member please state reasons.]

Consequent Action:

The Planning & Zoning Board will be making a recommendation to the City Commission on the Residential
Planned Development, Development of Significant Impact, Major Site Plan, Conditional Use Permit, and
Sustainable Bonus Incentive Program.

ATTACHMENTS:
A. Zoning Map
B. Site Plan Package
C. Supplemental Supporting Documents
D. Site Photos



City of

Beac|
FLORIDA™

BoutwellRd g

. 10th Ave N oo -

L Y

-

Lake worth Zoning Map - Golden Roads

Department for Community Sustainability

Zoning
Bl -POC
Bl MF-20
MU-W
I r
&= Highlighted Parcel



Plotted: 3/18/2021 1:55:36 PM Saved: 3/17/2021 1:29:19 PM

Garrett Kiesel P:12100\2156.03 Golden Rd Apartments Ent\PLAN\CAD\215601-PLAN-SITE.dwg ----

SINGLE FAMILY
RESIDENCE SINGLE FAMILY
6' HT. WALL Z: MU-W RESIDENCE
30" SETBACK FROM FLU: MU-W Z: MU-W
AC UNIT TYP,, PROPERTY LINE FLU: MU-W
y / < N88°08'01"W 297.9g' /~ACUNITTYP, 6 HT. WALL
20' SIDE S.B. 18' REAR S.B. =S ————— '
/ e o N PROPERTY LINE
T . T ¢ 20' SIDE S.B.
/ // N BLDG E, TYPE | ’F
L 3 STORY (36'-4" MAX HT) | SINGLE FAMILY
BLDG D, TYPE | |
£ / AN 24 UNITS 3 STORY (364" MAX HT) I oo
’ ol 6' X 6' BIKE RACK ) AT 2 24 UNITS | '
7 < )
RIP RAP : FLU: MU-W
(4 RACKS) TYP,, | % '
BENCH in
RUBBLE 20'S.B Yy ’ N o
‘ (TYry /// B. =
255 / y O] LN Bk
! | [N o
\ %]
e =] |
/ / / J Lf - 5' BUFFER
A / —18/STD. TYP. T SINGLE FAMILY| 61N GLE FAMILY
&/ /5 BUFFER ' S
/ I — Z: MUW || 2 qUw RESIDENCE
y: /— T.OB. B | ‘ FLU: MU-W || £, ML]-W Z: MU-W
EOW | {}ﬁ _F — i FLU: MU-W
e L 1 [C PT. TYP. -,
6' HT. VINYL CHAIN LINK FENCE 30" , 4 STW ~— _
SETBACK FROM PROPERTY LINE 167 CMPT. TYP- 20 = p— 4on X J
| TRANSFORMER DRIVE | 2000 | SB7°S7S2'E N7°STSIW oy oo
/1 & STD. TYP. TYP. 1IN 100.00 _L 100.00 LANE
BLDG C, TYPE Il ]
/ / 5 STORY (57-6" MAX HT)
SEMI PERVIOUS 80 UNITS
CANAL E-4 LWDD PAVERS, TYP. ‘ | ¢' X 6' BIKE RACK
200" RIW |}— SEMI PERVIOUS
PB. 5, PG. 79 / / \ [ (4 RACKS) TYP, B PAVERS, TYP
16' CMPT. TYP. v y R
/ | u TOT LOT
I)
PROPOSED o ﬂﬁ MPT|TYP. ] % SINGLE FAMILY
EOW / i RESIDENCE
.O.W. / 5/ ‘ : b Z: MU-W
/ DRIVE 2 | DRFYE FLU: MU-W
< = 12'
/ / S ey i ” = M
o < 16 JTYP. ' PT.TYP. 18' STD. TYP—>
&
PROPOSED / $ 4'sTD. TYP xpooll R )
5
T.0.B. % o / 4 =
o ' \ 20' CMPT. TYP.
- éSI B | !
/ I = sHADE — | | U
fHEEZT /18 STD. TYP. 20°DRIVE, o ompr. TYP. | STRUCTURE | & : 9 $r[r
NONINY scuer.Tve, ] M| i VACANT
—— 10 UE. 4 4 > Z: MU-W VACANT
| STORY (24' BLDG B, TYPE Il 30 FLU: MU-W
4 STD. T I
. : T. TYR. MAX HT) 3 STORY (36'-4"|  DRIVE
o 9' STD TYP<):I | 20DRIVE 3,875 5F. MAX HT) ’EE_SEMI PERVIONS
/ TR PRIVE 18 sTD. TYP. 24 UNITS : PAVERS, TYP.
&/ [ | e
" 1 L}
y | oA sip. — 6 HT. VINYL CHAIN LINK FENCE
OMPACTOR , 30" SETBACK FROM PROPERTY LINE
SH C 5 SW el — {6 X6 BIKERAC | o
; // e — ] (4 RACKS) TYP,, | py]
6' HT. CHAIN . e N T8 CMPT. TYP o
/ =20 DR'VE{—;,L 9'STD. TYR. 10' UE. ™\ y 18'S[D. TYP |1 @
LINK FENCE g 18 STD.TYP. O PRIVATE LIFT
: e (] f RIS 20 oo IR > =
B / RAMP 7 l F 16' CMPﬂTYP.' 4 9'STD TYP. \ A _% STATION
/ £ X X X X | \ P OFFICE
' ppv— X3———X% X _ ' \ = Z: MU-W
9' HT. N88°07'39"W 277.8]' WHEELSTOP, 20' DRIVE o FLU: MU-W
—=> , 9‘
WALL 5 BUFFER .- TYP. 18' STD. TYP. S
9' STD. TYP. \
6' HT. VINYL CHAIN LINK FENCE SEMI PERVIOUS —— w ) Lq
30" SETBACK FROM PROPERTY LINE PAVERS, TYP. 9'STD \S— |
' ¢L‘ = 5' BUFFER
UNINCORPORATED PBC 18'STD. TYP. 18 STD. TYP. ¢ 6' X 6' BIKE RACK Wi
COMMERCIAL (4 RACKS) TYP., P
SHOPPING PLAZA | 20 DRIV I [ S,
Z: CG G J\T | o
FLU: CH/8 : 5 M’IN.I‘T—FERNARO—lNI'DA : &ﬁ
CALL BOX/ 7 N\ Ros T —
KNOX BOX il T TRANSFORMER __,]L W
20" ’ 20" STABILIZED SURFACE
BLDG A, TYPE lll-H i
4 5 STORY (58'-6" |
5 — — MAX HT) 4 Lﬂ
S — L] 78 UNITS |
g | R45'
~ f | I ’
° R25 N | GAS STATION
: Z: MU-W
S 1/ LEASING OFFI | F
gl 4' S/W : -
= I | AND MAIL RODN | L( FLU: MU-W
< 4 T CMPT- TYP. | IST FLOOR ONLY |
o
2 IRl 922! | 2900 S F. |
2 I 6' X,6' BIKE RACK | ’
| (4 '(ACKS) TYP, ; |
ATRY SIGN LOCATION SIGN FACE . 12 S0 F 5 BUFFER o 15'910' BUS : i r( 6' HT. VINYL CHAIN LINK FENCE
o ot AN PACE - Q.FT. ' : . 4 /_ 30" SETBACK FROM PROPERTY LINE
. i
+ - 'i | 10'BUFFER — m} (GATE W/ KNOX BOX)
o ) "w - = ‘ *
) | |28N\ERONT S.B. J N88\ 07'39"W  230.00' I' 15' R?Wl DEDICATION
! Al
150' DRIVEWAY SEPARATION \i‘\;kl\\
. i
-_— @@
¢« - e
St
- _ I (80' ULT. ROW)
T

BOUTWELL ROAD

LOCATION MAP

ﬁl:
P
g SITE

KEAST LN.

|

ﬁ7loTHAVENUE\

1 BOUTWELL ROAD

0 25 50 100

SCALE: 1" = 50'

SITE DATA

APPLICATION NAME GOLDEN ROAD APARTMENTS
PROJECT NO. 17-01400001
EXISTING LAND USE DESIGNATION MU-W
PROPOSED LAND USE DESIGNATION MU-W
EXISTING ZONING DESIGNATION MU-W
PROPOSED ZONING DISTRICT R-PD / MU-W
SECTION / TOWNSHIP / RANGE 20/44/43

PROPERTY CONTROL NUMBER(S)

EXISTING USE
PROPOSED USE

GROSS SITE AREA
NET SITE AREA

38-43-44-20-01-026-0010, 38-43-44-20-01-004-0080

38-43-44-20-01-004-0030, 38-43-44-20-01-004-0120
38-43-44-20-01-004-0060, 38-43-44-20-01-004-0010
38-43-44-20-01-004-0130
VACANT
APARTMENT HOMES

PROPOSED GROSS FLOOR AREA

BUILDING LOT COVERAGE
BUILDING HEIGHT
IMPERVIOUS
PERVIOUS

GREEN SPACE

PAVERS (50% APPLICABLE FOR PERVIOUS CALCS)

TOTAL UNITS

| BEDROOM

2 BEDROOM

3 BEDROOM
PARKING REQUIRED

| BEDROOM (104 UNITS @ 1.5 SP/UNIT)
2 BEDROOM (117 UNITS @ 1.75 SP/UNIT)
3 BEDROOM (9 UNITS @ 2 SP/UNIT)

HANDICAPPED REQUIRED (INCL. IN TOTAL)

RIDE SHARE REQUIRED (INCL. IN TOTAL)

PARKING PROVIDED
STD SPACES
CPMT SPACES
BIKE RACKS

HANDICAPPED PROVIDED (INCL. IN TOTAL)

RIDE SHARE PROVIDED (INCL. IN TOTAL)
ELECTRONIC VEHICLE PARKING (INCL. IN TOTAL)

278,340 SF / 6.39 AC.
275,058 SF / 6.31 AC.
207,614 SF
58,339 SF/ 1.34 AC. (21%)

MAX 30' (2 STORIES)*
168,130 SF/ 3.86 AC. (61%)
106,928 SF / 2.45 AC. (39%)
76,091 SF
61,675 SF (30,837 SF)

230 UNITS
104 UNITS
[17 UNITS
9 UNITS
379 SP.
156 SP.
205 SP.

18 SP.

8 SP.

| SP.

379 SP.

284 SP. (75%)

82 SP. (22%)
52 RACKS (13 SP.) (3%)
8 SP.
| SP.
I5 SP.

* - ADDITIONAL 35' OF HEIGHT UNDER SUSTAINABLE BONUS INCENTIVE PROGRAM (SBIP)
(NOT TO EXCEED 6 STORIES) FOR BLOCKS FRONTING 10TH AVENUE NORTH.
THIS ALLOWS FOR THE INCREASE IN BUILDING HEIGHT FROM THE STANDARD
MAXIMUM REGULATION OF 2 STORIES TO TWO 5-STORY BUILDING AND THREE

3-STORY BUILDINGS.

- ALL MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT TO BE SCREENED IN ACCORDANCE TO CODE

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS

P Iy

DISTRICT | DENSITY | oo |DEPTH| coyeg | FRONT| SIDE | = - |REAR
REQUIRED [MAX 30 DU/AC.*| MIN.75' | N/A | 50% | 28 | 20| 20 | 18
PROPOSED| 35.99 DU/AC. | 230’ 807" | 21% | 28 | 20| NA | 18

*.25% INCREASE IN DENSITY, INTENSITY, AND HEIGHT FOR PROJECTS ONE HALF ACRE OR
MORE PER SUSTAINABLE INCENTIVE BONUS PROGRAM.

LEGEND

AC. = ACRES

C = COMPACT PARKING SPACE

D.E. = DRAINAGE EASEMENT
DRO = DEVELOPMENT REVIEW

OFFICERS

D.U. = DWELLING UNITS
ESMT. = EASEMENT
EV. = ELECTRONIC VEHICLE

CHARGING STATION SPACE

EX. = EXISTING

EXT.

= EXTERIOR UNIT

FLU = FUTURE LAND USE
INT. = INTERIOR UNIT

L.A.E. = LIMITED ACCESS

EASEMENT

O/S = OPEN SPACE TRACT

P.B. = PLAT BOOK
PDE = PUBLIC DRAINAGE EASEMENT
PDR = PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT

(P) = POSTAL PARKING

REGULATIONS
PG. = PAGE
R = RADIUS

RS = RIDE SHARE
S/W = SIDEWALK
S.B. = SETBACK

S.F. = SQUARE FEET

TYP = TYPICAL
U.E. = UTILITY EASEMENT

R.O.W. = RIGHT-OF-WAY

=
A 33
[ ] T J
C
£ 23
© - O
g 2%
(@]
E =z
(L]
2 o9
8 Q<
=88
?%d
28Z
“ 00
T .o
a o8
29
[72]
S o
o
N
>|m|m
molo
%)
pd
o
2
|
o |
=
[ |
Z|=s
C_Dml<£
[ o} e
on=
||
o2
QlEID
QZLK
oﬁ
N[N
o
EIRS
(sp)
5|9|9
—|oN
A )
O.\—N
Z
= pred (@) > T
O | w oy
~ o
B~ S
%P 139
& > >
§ : “23 m
= o e
N | Z | 2| O | w
o m < L —
< o) 1 T <
(@) ) o (@] (m)
@) >
(14 <
—
2 o
L 1T
0 E
(7))
—

SHEET:
SP-1




Diliana Niagolova P: \2100\2156.03 Golden Rd Apartments Ent\LA\Drawings\Landscape\LP_2156.03.dwg pdf Plotted: 3/17/2021 11:26:22 AM Saved: 3/17,/2021 11:25:04 AM

Golden Road Apartments

LOCATION MAP

Know what's below.
Call before you dig.

V4
Vol
5 SITE

10TH AVENUE

BOUTWELL ROAD

N.T.S.

PREPARED BY:

Wwwel

2035 Vista Parkway, West Palm Beach, FL 33411

Phone No. 866.909.2220 www.wginc.com
Cert No. 6091 - LB No. 7055

LANDSCAPE PLANS

CITY OF LAKE WORTH, FL

OVERALL SHEET KEY MAP

:

/

/

I
T g e N A ‘ﬂ
N IR B e i 2L
\
| 4945 B

S - |

e i — o o e e e e e e e e e e e e

———————————————7&——
/

L= ====

NORTH

PREPARED FOR:

LANDMARK RESIDENTIAL MANAGEMENT, LLC
4890 W. KENNEDY BOULEVARD, SUITE 240
TAMPA, FL 33609

N.T.S.

SHEET INDEX

SHEET NO. SHEET TITLE

LP-1.01 LANDSCAPE PLAN

LP-1.02 LANDSCAPE PLAN

LP-1.03 LANDSCAPE PLAN

LP-2.01 LANDSCAPE DETAILS

LP-3.01 LANDSCAPE SPECIFICATIONS

CODE COMPLIANCE CHART - PERIMETER LANDSCAPE REQUIREMENTS (ADJ. TO VEHICULAR USE AREAS)

LANDSCAPE REQUIRED

LANDSCAPE PROVIDED

(A) 10'R.O.W .BUFFER (SOUTH P.L.)
175'LF @ 1 TREE / 25' LF = 7 TREES
HEDGE (24" TALL @ INSTALLATION)

TREES =7 TREES

5' PERIMETER BUFFER
276'LF @ 1 TREE / 20" LF = 14 TREES
HEDGE (24" TALL @ INSTALLATION)

TREES = 14 TREES

5' PERIMETER BUFFER
278'LF @ 1 TREE / 20' LF = 14 TREES
HEDGE (24" TALL @ INSTALLATION)

12 TREES + 6 PALMS @ 3:1 = 14 TREES

470'LF @ 1 TREE / 20' LF = 24 TREES
HEDGE (24" TALL @ INSTALLATION)

21 TREES + 9 PALMS @ 3:1 = 24 TREES

5' PERIMETER BUFFER
920" LF @ 1 TREE / 20' LF = 46 TREES
HEDGE (24" TALL @ INSTALLATION)

©
@ 5' PERIMETER BUFFER
®

41 TREES + 15 PALMS @ 3:1 = 46 TREES

CODE COMPLIANCE CHART - INTERIOR LANDSCAPE REQUIREMENTS (BUILDING LANDSCAPE AREA)

LANDSCAPE REQUIRED

LANDSCAPE PROVIDED

BUILDING A: 3,690 SF
1 SHRUB / 5 SF = 738 SHRUBS
BUILDING B: 2,339 SF
1 SHRUB / 5 SF = 468 SHRUBS
BUILDING C.: 3,696 SF
1 SHRUB / 5 SF = 740 SHRUBS
BUILDING D: 2,163 SF
1 SHRUB / 5 SF = 433 SHRUBS
BUILDING E: 2,163 SF
1 SHRUB / 5 SF = 433 SHRUBS
CLUBHOUSE: 1,399 SF
1 SHRUB / 5 SF = 280 SHRUBS

BUILDING A:

SHRUBS = 1,144 SHRUBS
BUILDING B:

SHRUBS = 616 SHRUBS
BUILDING C.:

SHRUBS = 1,374 SHRUBS
BUILDING D:

SHRUBS = 498 SHRUBS
BUILDING E:

SHRUBS = 467 SHRUBS
CLUBHOUSE:

SHRUBS = 410 SHRUBS

LANDSCAPE REQUIRED

CODE COMPLIANCE CHART - INTERIOR LANDSCAPE REQUIREMENTS

LANDSCAPE PROVIDED

VUA LANDSCAPE AREA:
117,992 SF * 20% = 23,598 SF

TREES/PALMS:
23,598 SF @ 1 TREE / 125 SF = 189 TREES

VUA LANDSCAPE AREA:
24,811 SF

NON-VUA LANDSCAPE AREA: 32,643 SF

TREES/PALMS: 32,643 SF

1 SMALL TREE / 225 SF = 148 SMALL TREES OR
1 MEDIUM TREE / 400 SF = 83 MEDIUM TREES OR
1 LARGE TREE / 625 SF = 53 LARGE TREES

TOTAL TREES REQUIRED:
189 TREES + 53 LARGE TREES = 242 TREES TOTAL

TOTAL PROVIDED:
212 TREES + 90 PALMS @ 3:1 = 242 TREES

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT OF RECORD
TIFFANY D MAY, PLA
FL # LA6667274

Digitally signed by Tiffany Delynn May
LA6667274 State of Florida

WGINO.: 2156.03
LANDSCAPE PLANS
RESUBMITTAL



NS
PR

Diliana Niagolova P:\2100\2156.03 Golden Rd Apartments Ent\LA\Drawings\Landscape\LP_2156.03.dwg ———— Plotted: 3/17,/2021 11:26:27 AM Saved: 3/17/2021 11:25:04 AM

SHEET KEY MAP NTS. -
S €
83
_—
SCALE: 1" = 20'-0" NORTH c ow
c 28
o) ~
m =
{ R g ; ZO
T m
Know what's BELOW. 9_', 8 —I'
CALL before you dig 8 ﬁ —
2]
| =28
Call 811 two business %“ (9} S
days 2 8 =
before digging X< © +
\_ 7 nﬂf ZO 8
©
MATCHLINE A, SEE SHEET LP-1.02 '
_ _ o _ _ - v - o
?/‘\v @%} ';’I}“‘%‘-\\.’vddi'- l I N . SOD I I IS S S B I I I S IS I I D I S ?_ I I DD D D D D D S D . I I IS IS I = .;.‘-_. c@)i
4 34_\}#“& S i B (W ". ¢ ‘ N . | | | PRIVATE LIFT STATION I
— = Qeeclad 2 17X L7 T T ] TR s 753 XX v 5 FS 2. = . A N \
‘-’ e L ) STV Am"”umW ¢ 2, fvn“:-ﬂ - ——\ N\ SOD , SP2
, e B e B o o o o s o : N 2
~ Y- SV VRS LA & 7 , | L
— l | g /SB\
& N & 1 T
/
% /5P2\ /s8\ /CE\ f i’, | | \ | =7
6' HT. FENCE 3 /sp2 “ﬁl ) | ' \
/
\_2 //50\ \146/ : \_3 / \_5 / © 5' LANDSCAPE BUFFER { | , \ \ W
2/ ES , = e N .
) | \ 7 6' HT. FENCE
’i); Tx UNDERGROUND } | M;K_
5 | STORAGE TO BE \ sopl | >
LI | COORDINATED 7| Bz — | Tl-/'
5 WITH LANDSCAPE g ll\fl ﬁ — - B
| DESIGN PRIOR TO o 5 L\J W,/ | > i i
CES | CONSTRUCTIO X U |
NSTRUCTION N g
35 l IMPLEMENTATION . f% l@ RAns] ﬁ I g PROPERTY LINE
| 77 h —
e &7 Gy - T\
| LA
5' LANDSCAPE BUFFER (- 4
ST |£< — X , ,’ _h_x/?
I? g , LI | [ : JH;
| - 7k : | ! |
>
TDF I | | <
" %
2 i SOD | l + Z
CLD -|-{ Il ; 4 %
72 ‘ ,/4 =
| AN ¥
SB f f § |
5 H | | g 0% 5 ,'<:E E
|14 g
|‘:€ [ : g alsi=
l l g - & [mlm
| g QDD
| 4 Ll
| )_‘__/ < |Of—
4 O~
| : N oo
VAN
-IJ | | l + /} Ol— |
I ! | | B-Li/
c . | I l Zl S| Z| 2|8
| P o
TDF . | P_)(/I = &
39 15" U.E. | N 9
— )
5' LANDSCAPE BUFFER 8
T : o A © E al:
9 | | | 5' ol z | «
| ’ f "{_ a | 2 <§( =
CES , | , < 3|z|x|x
49 O = ) )
; | | j:fl &)
| ; , > LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT OF RECORD
| | , _‘_) /E TIFFANY D MAY, PLA
| | : l ¢
| , | LEASING | 9
| | | o OFFICE | ‘ 20' STABILIZED SURFACE
|
ROOT BARRIER, TYP. : ; , BIKE RACK. TYP Il /‘}
I
| I I \E , Digitally signed by Tiffany Delynn May LA6667274
, | | / , State of Florida
DN: cn=Tiffany Delynn May LA6667274 State of
| , , | — , Florida, o=Printed copies of the document are not
| ; | CLDN[ <1 ; e
| | | M A -+ e orenminben
authentication codes,
0 ' | & | e
| I l ceE \'36 | —
MC l | I 1 |
9 | 1 (B
ENTRY SIGN OP : : %]
v ] | | ITK
YT R , B 7))
10 A\ | SOD — SIW =
I | | W 2 <
cE | SRR ; —ga
| | | | . BUS [ = E
CES . | mnal RN SHELTER [-<2X/ - =
S8/ T = v O <
. W ] <7 =7
547 | | SIW o LLI
o — D — M < - %:
Q E O
< D
o O %
X < <
20' VISIBILITY TRIANGLE, TYP. Z L
51 (® 10' LANDSCAPE | W ¢
BUFFER | 0
<
| | - ]
80' R/W l O
| | )
I0TH AVENUE | |
' l
' |
l |
| | SHEET:
l |
| | LP-1.01




P:\2100\2156.03 Golden Rd Apartments Ent\LA\Drawings\Landscape\LP_2156.03.dwg ———— Plotted: 3/17/2021 11:26:32 AM Saved: 3/17/2021 11:25:04 AM

Niagolova

Diliena

SHEET KEY MAP NS,

. 35
/ ™
I / TR I - d 8
NORTH // /b £ B
) —tren O = W0
A = @® - O
. il o 2 EN
a ) /( ; ] g ; ZO
p : © m
Know what's BELOW. 7 f::,:_.w‘ AL j 9_', 8 —I'
CALL before you dig / Ly ﬁ & £ T_.— 6 8 ﬁ ~
LA R 233
Call 811 two business é" 8 Lg
days s 8 Z
before digging | X< © +
\ T S8
T 2
5o
| < (c%
S
o
1Y
MATCHLINE B, SEE SHEET LP-1.03
BIKE RACK TRANSFORMER, TYP. | 7 ” I \ e 3
pi S
7o l}{ BN Q \ SOD
SP2
BIKE RACK ; N
EO.W. ==ci] = §* Y > /v
b; B /SP2\ s \N 1 :} (® 5' LANDSCAPE BUFFER
naall ‘ 1 ‘ \ I
| = N\ . :
, ‘ h >|=z|=
LEE e S CESN—TARY, » {%| sop || EE
PROPOSED T.O.B. N \6"/ a |
((—u: ‘ 3, & | |
"D H § | | ) UNDERGROUND
= = SIW § ; | _ STORAGE TO BE
PROPOSED E.O.W. . PD < \ + | | f COORDINATED
| > NNAN ) ; WITH LANDSCAPE
R o | ,’ DESIGN PRIOR TO
CONSTRUCTION
" | IMPLEMENTATION
|
] BIKE RACK, TYP
cL 2
3 7 5
BN 2
~ CE >
< 2 %
~ Sy
X SIEIE
¢ ===
al==
o |m|m
oDD
%11%]%
] (|
Ol
@ 5' LANDSCAPE BUFFER L Kl ~
S
O~
AN ) o)l
\ .
OF
w ( o~
’ I ™ p
> o
ROOT BARRIER, TYP. s | 9| F g
' f m 1
U~ o | & S
¥ * A X7 i : g
, **m;l&‘\\.‘xﬁ;w: X (e / & %
¥ N T % SINL | | 4, AT
ﬂ N i l (Eli% 5' LANDSCAPE BUFFER (E) 6225,
2 R e THHEE
| / 7P\ , LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT OF RECORD
L o \ 12 / | TP TIFFANY D MAY, PLA
L ! < -P? 6' HT. FENCE
i \11/ | LA '
| &
/CLD\ 4
L \22/
m igitally si d by Tiffe )
W EflgFE’ié/aslgne y Tiffany Delynn May LA6667274 State

DN: cn=Tiffany Delynn May LA6667274 State of Florida,
o=Printed copies of the document are not considered
signed and sealed and all SHA-1 authentication code

must be verified on any electronic copies., ou=The item
ha: electronically signed and sealed using a SHA-1

CLUBHOUSE

s been
AN D MAI L uthentication codes, email=Tiffany.May@wginc.com,
c=US
ROO M ate: 2

N

\ .
N -
SO
SOD
I NN I I NN N S — I NN NN I S NN NN NI S S —

MATCHLINE A, SEE SHEET LP-1.01

PRIVATE LIFT STATION

GOLDEN ROAD APARTMENTS
LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA
LANDSCAPE PLAN

SHEET:
LP-1.02




Diliana Niagolova P:\2100\2156.03 Golden Rd Apartments Ent\LA\Drawings\Landscape\LP_2156.03.dwg ———— Plotted: 3/17,/2021 11:26:38 AM Saved: 3/17/2021 11:25:04 AM

PROPERTY LINE

PD
CENZ
44
CES
50
BENCH
Q
Q
<
~
& -~
;’ 6' HT. FENCE 41
J

/ / ,
[

PROPOSED T.O.B.

’ |
CLD / * ' !
PROPOSED E.O.W. S\ 28 715 U-E-w/m' UE
\ i / I |
|

Sp2 /sB\ |
3 ¢ N
o AT
1 I\ 2/,
. | '
./
° SOD | |
| l

SOD

L]
I
;

mc\28 / cH
15 o\ 2
sP2\ % /!
AR
MCN\® /]
8 Jces\
o\ %/
17

A |
8

SOb M————

4' SIW

7[\|

SHEET KEY MAP

NORTH

Know what's BELOW.
CALL before you dig

Call 811 two business

days
before digging

6' HT. WALL

=l ILDING D
. TIT\T:
! !

j I Y \% L‘!
IN.28 /cio\ " |

66 J/roF

24

+

+
= l ”
S|
v sP2\| |

8 /RN /Nl +

v\22/ N .
8 i =

I

MATCHLINE B

PN

MJ_T |
US S| —JL,BUILDINGC

S O
[ | é\:\_ [ | =

" SEE SHEET LP-1.02

e T T s E
L e %& W owvrts By
o wﬂi‘%%f“_au%%:y”;% e

L7

]

NATIVE NATIVE
TREES/PALMS SHRUBS/GROUNDCOVERS
DESCRIPTION QTY. |PERCENT| | DESCRIPTION QTY. |PERCENT
NATIVE TREE/PALM VARIETIES 410 | 96% NATIVE SHRUB/GC VARIETIES 5928 88%
NON-NATIVE TREE/PALM VARIETIES | 17 4% NON-NATIVE SHRUB/GC VARIETIES | 843 | 12%
TOTAL:| 427 | 100% TOTAL: 6,771| 100%
DROUGHT TOLERANT DROUGHT TOLERANT
TREES/PALMS SHRUBS/GROUNDCOVERS
DESCRIPTION QTY. |PERCENT| | DESCRIPTION QTY. |PERCENT
DROUGHT TOLERANT VARIETIES 427 | 100% DROUGHT TOLERANT VARIETIES 6,771| 100%
NON-DROUGHT TOLERANT VARIETIES | 0 0% NON-DROUGHT TOLERANT VARIETIES | 0 0%
TOTAL:| 427 | 100% TOTAL: 6,771| 100%

o

=

|
l
l
l
l

4' SIW

l
l
l
l
l
l
l

PLANT SCHEDULE

L L

5' LANDSCAPE BUFFER (B)

e

Qv
]

20\ X

G

D
2'

| AC UNIT, TYP.

TRANSFORMER, TYP.

6' HT. WALL

¥ 5' LANDSCAPE BUFFER ()
/58\

% \_1 /

I

KEAST LANE

TREES QTY COMMON NAME
CL 8 Pitch Apple

CE 52 Green Buttonwood
SB 104 Silver Buttonwood
IC 21 Dahoon Holly

LI 17 Crape Myrtle

PD 83 Slash Pine

Qv 22 Live Oak

PALM TREES QTY COMMON NAME
SP2 120 Cabbage Palmetto
SHRUB AREAS QTY COMMON NAME
CLD 2,537 Cocoplum

CH 564 Horizontal Cocoplum
CES 990 Silver Buttonwood
v 1,670 Dwarf Schillings Holly
MC 344 Pink Muhly Grass
PM 67 Yew Pine

TDF 326 Dwarf Fakahatchee
ZP 6l Coontie Cycad
GROUND COVERS QTY COMMON NAME
FG 212 Green Island Ficus

BOTANICAL NAME

Clusia rosea

Conocarpus erectus
Conocarpus erectus sericeus
llex cassine

Lagerstroemia indica

Pinus elliotti densa

Quercus virginiana

BOTANICAL NAME

Sabal palmetto

BOTANICAL NAME

Chrysobalanus icaco

Chrysobalanus icaco "Horizontalis

Conocarpus erectus sericeus
llex vomitoria “Schillings Dwarf’
Muhlenbergia capillaris
Podocarpus macrophyllus
Tripsacum floridana

Zamia pumila

BOTANICAL NAME

Ficus microcarpa

NATIVE

REMARKS

YES
YES
YES
YES
NO
YES
YES

NATIVE

2" Ht. x 6 Sprd., 3" DBH.
2" Ht. x 6" Sprd., 3" DBH
10" Ht. x 6" Sprd.

12" Ht. x 4 Sprd., 3" DBH.

10" Ht. x 4° Sprd., 4 clearance

10" Ht. x 5° Sprd.
2" Ht. x 6 Sprd., 3" DBH.

REMARKS

YES

NATIVE

12°-16" C.T., Clean-cut

REMARKS

YES
NO
YES
YES
YES
NO
YES
YES

NATIVE

24" Ht. x 24" Sprd., 24" O.C.
18" Ht. x 18" Sprd., 18" O.C.
24" Ht. x 24" Sprd., 24" O.C.
18" Ht. x 18" Sprd., 18" O.C.
24" Ht. x 18" Sprd., 24" O.C.
24" Ht. x 24" Sprd., 24" O.C.
18" Ht. x 18" Sprd., 24" O.C.
18" Ht. x 18" Sprd., 18" O.C.

REMARKS

NO

12" Ht. x 12" Sprd., 12" O.C.

N.T.S.

AWwel

2035 Vista Parkway, West Palm Beach, FL 33411

www.wginc.com

Phone No. 866.909.2220

Cert No. 6091 - LB No. 7055

REVISIONS

BY
DN
DN

DATE |DESCRIPTION
02.08.21|RESUBMITTAL
03.17.21|RESUBMITTAL

NO.
1
2

CAD LP_2156.03.DWG

2156.03
DN
™

DRAWN BY
CHECK BY

JOB NO.

12-02-2020

DATE

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT OF RECORD
TIFFANY D MAY, PLA
FL # LA6667274

N IERZ2

Digitally signed by Tiffany Delynn May LA6667274 State
of Florida
DN: cn=Tiffany Delynn May LA6667274 State of Florida,
o=Printed copies of the document are not considered
signed and sealed and all SHA-1 authentication code
must be verified on any electronic copies., ou=The item
has been electronically signed and sealed using a SHA-1
authentication codes, email=Tiffany.May@wginc.com,
c=US

Date: 2021.03.17 11:55:14 -04'00'

GOLDEN ROAD APARTMENTS
LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA
LANDSCAPE PLAN

SHEET:

LP-1.03




Diliana Niagolova P: \2100\2156.03 Golden Rd Apartments Ent\LA\Drawings\Landscape\LP_2156.03.dwg ———— Plotted: 3/17/2021 11:26:39 AM Saved: 3/17/2021 11:25:04 AM

SMALL PALM STAKING PLAN

GROUNDCOVER DETAIL

TREE PROTECTION DETAIL

NOTE:

NTS.

FENCING WITH FLAGGING.
THE BARRICADE SHALL BE
PLACED SO AS TO ENCOMPASS
THE CRITICAL PROTECTION
ZONE (CPZ)

B MINIMUM* BOUNDARY
B BOUNDARY

A= INCHES OF DIAMETER
4.5' ABOVE
GRADE OF PROTECTED

B=CRITICAL PROTECTION
ZONE (CPZ)

(CPZ) THAT AREA
SURROUNDING A TREE
WITHIN A CIRCLE
DESCRIBED BY A RADIUS OF
ONE FOOT FOR EACH INCH
OF THE TREE'S DIAMETER
AT 4.5' ABOVE GRADE

*B MIN=75 % OF B AREA

NTS ) NTS NOTE: I. THIS DETAIL APPLIES TO ALL TREES THAT
|. APPLICABLE TO ALL PALMS WITH CALIPER SIZE OF LESS THAN SIX (6) INCHES. . I" OF SHREDDED MELALEUCA MULCH . WILL BE PRESERVED IN PLACE OR BE RELOCATED.
2. ALL TREE SUPPORTS MATERIALS ARE TO BE REMOVED FROM EACH TREE ONCE IT IS ESTABLISHED. TYPICALLY SIX PLACED BETWEEN PLANTS ABOVE EXISTING SOIL LEVEL.
MONTHS FOR SHADE TREES OR ONE YEAR FOR PALMS.
2" OF 1/4" MULCH PLACED ON TOP OF TILLED SOIL.
3" MAX. TILL MULCH 2" -4" INTO PREVIOUSLY TILLED SOIL.
(3) 2" X 4" WOOD BRACES. LEVEL TO FINISHED GRADE BY HAND RAKING.
STAKE OUTSIDE PLANTING HOLE ZONE. I“ “ ‘ ‘ Z (o ‘ n » n i i[ I r ~
OUTSIDE EDGE OF PLANTING SAUCER. T
K !limml 0 mmﬂim n
2" _ _| - _:
(3) WOOD BATTENS STRAPPED TO TRUNK WITH GALVANIZED METAL *— ] T '| | |' | T '| I | ] T T |_
BANDS. ATTACH WOOD BRACES TO BATTENS TO AVOID TRUNK —
DAMAGE.
WRAP TRUNK WITH 3 LAYERS OF NATURAL BURLAP FOR | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |_
PROTECTION AGAINST WOOD BATTENS AND STAKING BRACES.
TILL SOIL TO A MINIMUM DEPTH OF
PALM OR TREE TRUNK (SET VERTICAL AND PLUMB, TYP.). 4" BELOW THE EXISTING SOIL LEVEL.
* SEE PLAN IF SPECIAL SETTING/LEANING DIRECTIONS EXIST FOR PALMS.
EXISTING SOIL.
TREE
NOTE: NTS NTS
I. APPLICABLE TO ALL MULTI-TRUNK PALMS AND PALMS WITH CALIPER SIZE OF SIX (6) INCHES OR GREATER . .
2. ALL TREE SUPPORTS MATERIALS ARE TO BE REMOVED FROM EACH TREE ONCE IT IS ESTABLISHED. TYPICALLY SIX SPACING "D" ROW "A" PLANT SPACING CHART
MONTHS FOR SHADE TREES OR ONE YEAR FOR PALMS.
6" O.C. 52"
" " ° o o
m (4) 2" X 4" WOOD BRACES. 8" o.C. 6.93 %
/ STAKE OUTSIDE PLANTING HOLE ZONE. 10" O.C. 8.66" /
—1 12" O.C. 10.4" D" D" A"
— >~ OUTSIDE EDGE OF PLANTING SAUCER. . .
Y o7 7 NN 24" O.C. 20.8" D"
R N\ 30" 0.C 26.0" ° ° S ="
) \ .C. X
/790 \ ; ;
/ VA 36" O.C. 312
,/ N L\ (4) WOOD BATTENS STRAPPED TO TRUNK WITH METAL BANDS. 48" O.C. 416"

| ATTACH WOOD BRACES TO BATTENS TO AVOID TRUNK DAMAGE.

WRAP TRUNK WITH 3 LAYERS OF NATURAL BURLAP FOR
PROTECTION AGAINST WOOD BATTENS AND STAKING BRACES.

PALM OR TREE TRUNK (SET VERTICAL AND PLUMB, TYP.).
* SEE PLAN IF SPECIAL SETTING OR LEANING DIRECTIONS EXIST FOR PALMS.

PALM PLANTING DETAIL

NTS.

"HURRICANE CUT" OR "CANDLE CUT" SABAL PALM HEADS
AT INSTALLATION.

FOR CONTAINER GROWN, BARE ROOT, FIELD DUG OR BALL AND BURLAP
SPECIMEN PALMS: SHIPPING FROND TIES SHALL BE REMOVED UPON
INSTALLATION. TIES SHALL BE ORGANIC TWINE ONLY.

FOR BOOTED TRUNK PALMS, TRUNKS SHALL HAVE CLEAN INTACT
BOOTS FIRMLY ATTACHED TO THE PALM TRUNK.

FOR SLICK TRUNK PALMS, TRUNK SHALL BE CLEAR AND FREE
FROM DEFECTS AND SCARS.

BURLAP WRAP TRUNK WITH 3 LAYERS OF NATURAL BURLAP
UNDER BRACES, TO PROTECT TRUNK.

2" X 4" BATTEN BLOCKS WITH 2" X 4" WOOD STAKING BRACES.
USE STEEL BANDING TO WRAP BLOCKS AROUND PALM TRUNK.
USE 20D NAILS TO NAIL ANCHOR BLOCKS TO STAKING BRACES
(SEE STAKING DETAILS FOR NUMBER OF REQUIRED BRACES).
*NO NAILS SHALL PIERCE THE TREE TRUNK.

SET TOP OF ROOT BALL AT FINISHED GRADE.

CLEAR TRUNK
HEIGHT

PROVIDE A 3" BERMED SAUCER ABOVE THE FINISHED GRADE
WITH A 3" LAYER OF MELALEUCA MULCH (6" TOTAL HEIGHT).
EXTEND MULCH BEYOND BERM. PULL MULCH AWAY FROM
TRUNK A MINIMUM OF 3".

2" X 4" X MIN. 24" WOOD STAKES.
ANCHOR TREE BRACES WITH WOOD STAKES.
INSTALL STAKE BRACES OUTSIDE TEMPORARY SAUCER.

FINISHED GRADE

MIN. 5'

BACKFILL SHALL BE CLEAN, SALT FREE SAND
AND PEAT MOSS MIXTURE 3:1 RATIO.
ALL BACKFILL SHALL BE WATER-JETTED FOR FIRM COMPACTION.

DISTANCE AROUND THE ROOT BALL
SHALL BE 1/2 THE WIDTH OF THE ROOTBALL,
OR (12") MIN. CLEARANCE.

TAMP BOTTOM OF PLANTING HOLE TO MINIMIZE SETTLING.

TREE PLANTING DETAIL

NOTE:
I. ALL TREE SUPPORT MATERIALS ARE TO BE REMOVED FROM EACH TREE ONCE IT IS ESTABLISHED. TYPICALLY SIX MONTHS TO
ONE YEAR AFTER PLANTING FOR SHADE TREES.

NTS.

NEVER CUT TERMINAL LEADER.
THIN BRANCHES AND FOLIAGE AS DIRECTED
BY LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT OR CERTIFIED ARBORIST.

FLEXIBLE GUYING MATERIAL.

LOCATE ABOVE FIRST LATERAL BRANCH.
AVOID OVER TIGHTENED TIES AS THEY
PREVENT TREE'S NATURAL SWAY.

SAFETY FLAGGING

WOODEN STAKES.
SET STAKES OUTSIDE PLANTING SAUCER
AT A MINIMUM DEPTH OF 2 FEET.

TRUNK FLARE OR TOP ROOT VISIBLE ON SURFACE.
DO NOT BURY ROOT IN MULCH.

SET ROOT BALL SLIGHTLY ABOVE GRADE
(10% MAXIMUM, OR 2" ABOVE FINISHED GRADE).

3" SHREDDED MELALEUCA MULCH.

WITH 3" BERMED PLANTING SAUCER (6" TOTAL HEIGHT)
ABOVE THE FINISHED GRADE .

EXTEND MULCH BEYOND BERM.

PULL MULCH AWAY FROM TRUNK FLARE A MINIMUM OF 3".

BACKFILL HOLE WITH APPROVED SOIL MIX
(CHECK WITH LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT FOR MIX).
WATER JET ALL BACKFILL FOR FIRM COMPACTION.

TREE PLANTING SAUCER

/

REMOVE ROOT BALL COVERING.

CUT BACK WIRE BASKETS BELOW TOP HALF OF THE ROOT BALL.
FOLD BACK BURLAP COVERING MATERIALS BELOW

TOP HALF OF ROOT BALL.

COMPLETELY REMOVE SYNTHETIC BURLAP COVERING MATERIALS.

TAMP BOTTOM OF PLANTING HOLE TO MINIMIZE SETTLING.

PROVIDE A PLANTING HOLE WITH A MINIMUM OF 3 TIMES
THE DIAMETER OF THE ROOT BALL ON THE SURFACE AND
TWO TIMES THE ROOT BALL DIAMETER AT THE BASE.

STAKING PLAN DIAGRAM

SHRUB PLANTING DETAIL

&

FINISHED GRADE _ = TT[][1T111]

R
===
—|||TI||I'm| |m
TS,

IIIIIIIIIIIIIV' 4|||||||||||

IEllE=]] |—m|
I/2_
A

g

Wi’
.00 ' I:
_III_ —
== L
I=1hall=] =S

7T ||-
A A

3A /

ROOT BARRIER DETAIL

NTS.

PLANT ROOTBALL MINIMUM OF |" ABOVE FINISHED GRADE,
WITH A MAXIMUM OF 10% OF ROOTBALL EXPOSED ABOVE GRADE.

3" SHREDDED MELALEUCA MULCH.
PULL MULCH AWAY FROM TRUNK A MINIMUM OF 3".

PROVIDE 3" EARTH PLANTING SAUCER

REMOVE BURLAP FROM TOP 1/3 OF ROOTBALL.
COMPLETELY REMOVE ANY SYNTHETIC WRAPPING MATERIALS..

BACKFILL PLANTING HOLE WITH APPROVED PLANTING MIX.
SEE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT FOR PROPER MIX SPECIFICATIONS.

PROVIDE A PLANTING HOLE MINIMUM OF 3 TIMES THE DIAMETER
OF THE ROOT BALL ON THE SURFACE AND TWO TIMES THE
ROOT BALL DIAMETER AT THE BASE.

TAMP BOTTOM OF PLANTING HOLE TO MINIMIZE PLANT SETTLING.

NOTE:

I. TREES ARE TO BE INSTALLED WITH
A MINIMUM TEN FOOT (10"
SEPARATION FROM ANY PUBLIC
WATER OR PUBLIC SEWER MAIN
AND/OR SERVICE, HYDRANTS, AND
LIFT STATIONS. IF A TEN FOOT (10')
SEPARATION CANNOT BE ACHIEVED,
THE TREE SHALL BE INSTALLED WITH
A ROOT BARRIER SYSTEM.

2. ROOT BARRIERS SHALL COMPLY
WITH ALL REQUIREMENTS OF THE
MUNICIPALITY WITHIN WHICH THEY
ARE LOCATED AS WELL AS WITH
ANY REQUIREMENTS OF THE UTILITY
HOLDER OF THE AFFECTED UTILITIES.
IN THE EVENT THAT CONFLICTING
REQUIREMENTS EXIST BETWEEN THIS
ROOT BARRIER DETAIL AND THE
MUNTICPALITY/UTILITY HOLDER
REQUIREMENTS, THE MORE
STRINGENT OF THE REQUIREMENTS
SHALL BE APPLICABLE.

PLANTING SAUCER, TYP.

NTS.

WATER AND/OR SEWER FACILITIES

(.E. MAINS, SERVICES AND/OR LATERALS)
INCLUDING ALL WATER MAINS, FORCE MAINS,
RECLAIMED WATER MAINS, SEWER MAINS
AND ALL DRAINAGE STRUCTURES AND PIPING
APPLICABLE TO PALM BEACH COUNTY WATER
UTILITY STANDARDS.

MINIMUM 8" COVER OVER TOP OF BARRIER. A /4
SET BARRIER A MINIMUM OF 4"

N

BELOW THE FINISHED GRADE.
"BIO BARRIER" OR "DEEP ROOT"

36"
MIN. COVER

WATER AND/OR SEWER FACILITIES
(1.E. MAINS, SERVICES AND/OR LATERALS)
INCLUDING ALL WATER MAINS, FORCE MAINS,

TYPICAL PLANTING DIAGRAM

RECLAIMED WATER MAINS, SEWER MAINS
AND ALL DRAINAGE STRUCTURES AND PIPING
APPLICABLE TO PALM BEACH COUNTY WATER
UTILITY STANDARDS.

7' MIN. W/BARRIER
10" MIN. W/O BARRIER

FINISHED GRADE S

I5'
7.5 Y\ — 75

7' MIN. WITH BARRIER
10" MIN. WITHOUT BARRIER

OUTSIDE EDGE OF TREE OR PALM TRUNK

"BIO BARRIER" OR "DEEP ROOT" (ALTERNATIVE
ROOT BARRIER SYSTEM BY BE UTILIZED WITH
APPROVAL OF LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT.)

\

/ LARGE TREE MIN. 10'
7

EDGE OF BUILDING OR WALL
/_:V OVERHANG DRIP LINE

I SMALL TREE MIN. 8'
|
|

s

AV

1

OR SMALL ACCENT TREE
|

|
MEDIUM SHRUBS OR
FOUNEPATION HEDGE

| eV
/- MIN.30" ¥ %
| <

18 T

|
; MIN. 6 2
| LARGE SHRUB

LARGE CANOPY TREE

7' MIN.

TO WALK

SMALL SHRUBS

DISTANCES BETWEEN DIFFERENT
PLANT TYPES SHOULD ALLOW FOR

-

GROUND COVER

<

- L - e
;(@@Ja_ﬂ.
|.$ % s d
|
|

I" BELOW EDGE OF
18"

FUTURE GROWTH TO MATURE SIZE.

TOP OF MULCH SHOULD BE

SIDEWALK OR ANY PAVING.

NTS.

PALMS

Y/  5'MIN,

G e P

».43.‘~':'~'v..:...

TOP OF SIDEWALK OR PATH

‘,.‘...

PLANTING SOIL, FERTILIZER AND BACKFILL
AS REQUIRED PER SPECIFICATIONS AND

PLANTING DETAILS.

PREPARED BASE FOR WALK

OR PAVING.

EXISTING SUBGRADE

d\

TOP OF SOD SHOULD BE
EVEN WITH FINISHED
ELEVATION OF SIDEWALK
OR ANY PAVING.

SHRUB AND GROUNDCOVER PLANTlNG DETAIL
NTS.
A R )

\\!/
R ‘%A»/‘\q‘\\\\»%\\ (%Q@
s ""»524\"‘ R r’
DT 5 204
V/A\\\\D @@Q@ o e
e DO @@
S @ Q MNAAS

REMAINING SHRUBS FILLED
"IN BEHIND FRONT SHRUBS

-LAYOUT SHRUBS AT BED
. EDGE FIRST TO ESTABLISH
- CONTINUOUS LINE. BEST
“FACE OF SHRUB TO FACE
FRONT OF PLANTING BED.

MAINTAIN 12" AT PLANT BED EDGE

MAINTAIN 18" MIN.
BETWEEN SHRUB MASSES

LANDSCAPE NOTES:

I. STRUCTURAL ELEMENTS AND HARDSCAPE FEATURES INDICATED ON LANDSCAPE PLANS ARE FOR INFORMATIONAL
PURPOSES ONLY. LANDSCAPE PLANS ARE TO BE UTILIZED FOR LOCATION OF LIVING PLANT MATERIAL ONLY.
LANDSCAPE PLANS SHOULD NOT BE UTILIZED FOR STAKING AND LAYOUT OR LOCATION OF ANY STRUCTURAL SITE
FEATURES INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO: BUILDINGS, SIGNAGE, PATHWAYS, EASEMENTS, BERMS, WALL, FENCES,
UTILITIES OR ROADWAYS.

2. CONTRACTOR SHALL ACQUIRE ALL APPLICABLE FEDERAL, STATE, LOCAL, JURISDICTIONAL OR UTILITY COMPANY
PERMITS REQUIRED PRIOR TO REMOVAL, RELOCATION, AND/OR INSTALLATION OF LANDSCAPE MATERIALS INDICATED
WITHIN PLAN DOCUMENTS. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL HAVE PERMITS "IN HAND" PRIOR TO STARTING WORK.
LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT SHALL BEAR NO RESPONSIBILITY FOR WORK PERFORMED WITHOUT PERMITTED DRAWINGS.
THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL CHANGES TO THE WORK, AT NO ADDITIONAL COST TO THE
OWNER, AS A RESULT OF UNAUTHORIZED WORK PRIOR TO RECEIPT OF PERMIT.

3. TREES SHOWN ON THIS PLAN ARE FOR GRAPHIC REPRESENTATION ONLY. TREE SPACING IS BASED ON DESIGN
REQUIREMENTS AND THE TREES SHOWN ON THESE PLANS ATTEMPT TO ACCOMPLISH THAT SPACING WHILE
MAINTAINING THE REQUIRED SETBACKS FROM UTILITIES. IN THE EVENT OF A CONFLICT, AFFECTED PLANT MATERIAL
SHALL BE FIELD ADJUSTED WITH THE APPROVAL OF THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT TO AVOID CONFLICTS WITH THE
WITH EXISTING AND PROPOSED UTILITIES, LIGHT POLES, DRAINAGE STRUCTURES OR LINES, LAKE MAINTENANCE
EASEMENTS OR OTHER AFFECTED SITE FEATURES.

4. ANY PLANTING WITHIN THE SIGHT TRIANGLES SHALL PROVIDE UNOBSTRUCTED VIEWS AT A LEVEL BETWEEN 30"
AND 8' ABOVE THE PAVEMENT.

5. ALL UTILITY BOXES/ STRUCTURES TO BE SCREENED ON 3 SIDES W/ APPROVED PLANTING MATERIAL.

6. IRRIGATION IS REQUIRED PROVIDING 100% COVERAGE WITH A MAXIMUM OF 50% OVERLAP, AN AUTOMATIC RAIN
SENSOR MUST BE INCLUDED.

7. ALL PLANT MATERIAL TO BE INSTALLED SHALL CONFORM TO FLORIDA POWER AND LIGHT'S (FPL'S) RIGHT TREE
RIGHT PLACE GUIDELINES.

8. IN CASE OF DISCREPANCIES PLANS TAKE PRECEDENCE OVER PLANT LIST.

9. LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR RESPONSIBLE FOR VERIFICATION OF ALL QUANTITIES PRIOR TO BIDDING.

10. REMOVAL OF EXISTING VEGETATION IS RESPONSIBILITY OF LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR.

1. RELOCATION OF EXISTING VEGETATION IS RESPONSIBILITY OF LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR. REFER TO
SPECIFICATIONS FOR RELOCATION INSTRUCTIONS.

2. ALL PLANT MATERIAL TO BE FLORIDA GRADE #| AT TIME OF INSTALLATION UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.

www.wginc.com

@WG Inl
2035 Vista Parkway, West Palm Beach, FL 33411
Cert No. 6091 - LB No. 7055

Phone No. 866.909.2220

BY
DN
DN

REVISIONS

DATE |DESCRIPTION
02.08.21|RESUBMITTAL
2 103.17.21/RESUBMITTAL

NO.
1

2156.03
DN
™

12-02-2020

CAD LP_2156.03DWG
JOB NO.

DRAWN BY
CHECK BY

DATE

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT OF RECORD
TIFFANY D MAY, PLA
FL # LA6667274

Digitally signed by Tiffany Delynn May LA6667274
State of Florida

DN: cn=Tiffany Delynn May LA6667274 State of Florida,
o=Printed copies of the document are not considered
signed and sealed and all SHA-1 authentication code
must be verified on any electronic copies., ou=The ite
has been electronically signed and sealed using a
SHA-1 authentication codes,
email=Tiffany.May@wginc.com, c=US

Date: 2021.03.17 11:55:43 -04'00"

Know what's BELOW.
CALL before you dig

Call 811 two business
days
before digging

GOLDEN ROAD APARTMENTS
LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA
LANDSCAPE DETAILS

SHEET:
LP-2.01




Diliana Niagolova P:\2100\2156.03 Golden Rd Apartments Ent\LA\Drawings\Landscape\LP_2156.03.dwg ———— Plotted: 3/17,/2021 11:26:40 AM Saved: 3/17/2021 11:25:04 AM

Landscape Planting - Part I. General

|. Description of Work

A.Provide all exterior planting as shown on the drawings or inferable therefrom and/or as specified in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents. Landscape
plans provided indicate the proposed location of living plant material only. Structural elements and hardscape features indicated on the landscape plans are for information
purposes only. Landscape plans are not to be utilized for staking and layout or location of any structural site features including but not limited to, buildings, signage, pathways,
easements, utilities or roadways.

B. These specifications include standards necessary for and incidental to the execution and completion of planting as indicated on the prepared drawings and specified herein.

C. All applicable federal, state and local permits shall be attained prior to the removal, relocation, or installation of plant materials indicated within the plan documents.

D.Protection of existing features. During construction, protect all existing trees, shrubs, and other specified vegetation, site features and improvements, structures, and utilities
specified herein and/or on submitted drawings. Removal or destruction of existing plantings is prohibited unless specifically authorized by the owner, and with permit as
required by associated federal, state and local government agencies.

1. Applicable Standards

A. American National Standards for Tree Care Operations, ANSI A300. American National Standards Institute, 11 West 42nd Street, New York, N.Y. 10036.

B. American Standard for Nursery Stock, ANSI Z60.1. American Nursery and Landscape Association, 1250 Eye Street. NW, Suite 500, Washington, D.C. 20005.

C.Hortus Third, The Staff of the L.H. Bailey Hortorium. 1976. MacMillan Publishing Co., New York.

D.Florida Department of Agriculture "Grades and Standards for Nursery Plants”, most recent addition.

E.National Arborist Association- Pruning Standards for Shade Trees

F. All standards shall include the latest additions and amendments as of the date of advertisement for bids

IIl. Qualifications

A.Landscape planting and related work shall be performed by a firm with a minimum of five years experience specializing in this type of work. All contractors and their
sub-contractors who will be performing any landscape work included in this section of the specification shall be approved by the landscape architect.

B.Landscape Contractor shall be licensed and shall carry any necessary insurance and shall protect the Landscape Architect and Owner against all liabilities, claims or demands
for injuries or damage to any person or property growing out of the performance of the work under this contract. All workers shall be covered by Workman's Compensation
Insurance.

IV. Requirements of Regulatory Agencies

A. Certificates of inspection shall accompany the invoice for each shipment of plants as may be required by law for transportation. File certificates with the landscape architect prior

to acceptance of the material. Inspection by federal or state authorities at place of growth does not preclude rejection of the plants at the site.
V. Submittals

A.Manufacturer's Data: Submit copies of the manufacturer's and/or source data for all materials specified, including soils, soil amendments and fertilizer materials. Comply
with regulations applicable to landscape materials.

B. Samples: Submit samples of all topsoil, soil mixes, mulches, and organic materials. Samples shall weigh 1 kg (2 Ib) and be packaged in plastic bags. Samples shall be typical of
the lot of material to be delivered to the site and provide an accurate indication of color, texture, and organic makeup of the material. 11

C.Nursery Sources: Submit a list of all nurseries that will supply plants, along with a list of the plants they will provide and the location of the nursery.

D. Soil Test: Submit soil test analysis report for each sample of topsoil and planting mix from a soil testing laboratory approved by the landscape architect.

1. Provide a particle size analysis, including the following gradient of mineral content:

USDA Designation Size in mm
Gravel +2 mm

Very Course Sand 1-2 mm

Coarse Sand 0.5-1 mm

Medium Sand 0.25-0.5 mm

Fine Sand 0.1-0.25 mm

Very fine sand 0.05-0.1 mm

Silt 0.002-0.05 mm
Clay smaller than 0.002

2. Provide a chemical analysis, including the following:
a. pH and buffer pH
b. Percentage of organic content by oven-dried weight.
c. Nutrient levels by parts per million, including phosphorus, potassium magnesium, manganese, iron, zinc, and calcium. Nutrient test shall include the testing laboratory
recommendations for supplemental additions to the soil based on the requirements of horticultural plants.
d. Soluble salt by electrical conductivity of a 1:2, soil: water, sample measured in millimho per cm.
e. Cation exchange capacity (CEC).
E.Material Testing: Submit the manufacturers particle size analysis, and the pH analysis and provide a description and source location for the content material of all organic
materials.
F.Maintenance Instructions: Prior to the end of maintenance period, Landscape Contractor shall furnish three copies of written maintenance instructions to the Landscape
Architect for transmittal to the Owner for maintenance and care of installed plants through their full growing season.
VI. Utility Verification
A.The contractor shall contact the local utility companies for verification of the location of all underground utility lines in the area of the work. The contractor shall be responsible
for all damage resulting from neglect or failure to comply with this requirement.

Part 2. Materials V.

|. Plants
A.Plants shall be true to species and variety specified and nursery-grown in accordance with good horticultural practices under climatic conditions similar to those in the locality of
the project for at least two years. They shall have been freshly dug.
1. All plant names and descriptions shall be as defined in Hortus Third.
2. All plants shall be grown and harvested in accordance with the American Standard for Nursery Stock and Florida Department of Agriculture Grades and Standards for
Nursery Plants.
3. Unless approved by the landscape architect, plants shall have been grown at a latitude not more than 325 km (200 miles) north or south of the latitude of the project unless
the provenance of the plant can be documented to be compatible with the latitude and cold hardiness zone of the planting location.

B. Unless specifically noted, all plants shall be exceptionally heavy, symmetrical, and so trained or favored in development and appearance as to be unquestionably and
outstandingly superior in form, compactness, and symmetry. They shall be sound, healthy, vigorous, well branched, and densely foliated when in leaf; free of disease and
insects, eggs, or larvae; and shall have healthy, well-developed root systems. They shall be free from physical damage or other conditions that would prevent vigorous growth.

1. Trees with multiple leaders, unless specified, will be rejected. Trees with a damaged or crooked leader, bark abrasions, sunscald, disfiguring knots, insect damage, or cuts
of limbs over 20 mm (3/4 in.) in diameter that are not completely closed will be rejected.

C. Plants shall conform to the measurements specified, except that plants larger than those specified may be used if approved by the landscape architect. Use of larger plants
shall not increase the contract price. If larger plants are approved, the root ball shall be increased in proportion to the size of the plant.

1. Caliper measurements shall be taken on the trunk 150 mm (6 in.) above the natural ground line for trees up to and including 100 mm (4 in.) in caliper, and 300 mm (12 in.)
above the natural ground line for trees over 100 mm (4 in.) in caliper. Height and spread dimensions specified refer to the main body of the plant and not from branch tip to

Q. Mechanized Tree Spade Requirements
Trees may be moved and planted with an approved mechanical tree spade. The tree spade shall move trees limited to the maximum size allowed for a similar B&B
root-ball diameter according to the American Standard for Nursery Stock or the manufacturer's maximum size recommendation for the tree spade being used,
whichever is smaller. The machine shall be approved by the landscape architect prior to use. Trees shall be planted at the designated locations in the manner shown
in the plans and in accordance with applicable sections of the specifications.

Il Materials for Planting

A. Mulch: Except as otherwise specified, mulch shall be shredded Melaleuca mulch - grade "A". All Melaleuca mulch shall be made entirely from the wood and bark of
the
Melaleuca quinquinerva tree. It shall not contain more than 10% bark (by volume). Shreds and chips shall not be larger the %" diameter and 12" in length. Mulch
shall
be free of weeds, seeds, and any other organic or inorganic material other than Melaleuca wood and bark. It shall not contain stones or other foreign material that will
prevent its eventual decay. This shall be applied to all planted areas where indicated so that, after installation, the mulch thickness will not be less than 3". Submit
sample for approval.
B. Peat: Shall be horticultural peat composed of not less than 60% decomposed organic matter by weight, on an oven dried basis. Peat shall be delivered to the site in
a
workable condition free from lumps.
C. Gravel Mulch: Use only where specifically indicated on the plans of the size and type shown. Unless otherwise specified it shall be water-worn, hard durable gravel,
washed free of loam, sand, clay and other foreign substances. It shall be a minimum of 3" deep and shall be contained with edging or other approved
gravel stop as indicated on the plans. It shall be a maximum of 1 1/2", a minimum of 3/4" and of a readily-available natural gravel color range. Provide geotextile filter
fabric below aggregate rock.
Submit sample for approval.
D. Root Barrier: Where specified, root barriers shall be installed on all tree and palm material in accordance with the root barrier detail provided within the plan drawings.
Root barriers shall comply with all requirements of the municipality within which they are located as well as with any utility holder requirements of any affected utilities.
In the event that conflicting requirements exist between the root barrier detail provided within the plan documents and the municipality/utility holder requirements, the
more stringent of the requirements shall be applicable.
Planter Edging: Use only where specifically indicated on plans. Edging shall be the color black.
. Anti-desiccant: shall be an emulsion specifically manufactured for agricultural use, which provides a protective film over plant surfaces. Anti-desiccants shall be
delivered in containers of the manufacturer and shall be mixed according to the manufacturer's directions. Submit manufacturer literature for approval.

mm

. Materials for Soil Amendment

A. Pine Bark: Horticultural-grade milled pine bark, with 80 percent of the material by volume sized between 0.1 and 15.0 mm.
1. Pine bark shall be aged sufficiently to break down all woody material. Pine bark shall be screened.
2. pH shall range between 4 and 7.0.
3. Submit manufacturer literature for approval.
B. Organic Matter: Leaf matter and yard waste composted sufficiently to break down all woody fibers, seeds, and leaf structures, and free of toxic and nonorganic matter.
Organic matter shall be commercially prepared compost. Submit 0.5 kg (1 Ib) sample and suppliers literature for approval.
C. Course Sand: Course concrete sand, ASTM C-33 Fine Aggregate, with a Fines Modulus Index of 2.75 or greater.
1. Sands shall be clean, sharp, natural sands free of limestone, shale and slate particles.
2. Provide the following particle size distribution:
Sieve Percentage Passing
3/8in (9.5 mm) 100

No. 4 (4.75 mm) 95-100
No. 8 (2.36 mm) 80-100
No. 16 (1.18 mm) 50-85
No. 30 (0.60 mm) 25-60
No. 50 (0.30 mm) 10-30

No. 100 (0.15 mm) 2-10
D. Lime: shall be ground, palletized, or pulverized lime manufactured to meet agricultural standards and contain a maximum of 60 percent oxide (i.e. calcium oxide plus
magnesium oxide). Submit manufacturer literature for approval.
E. Sulfur: shall be flowers of sulfur, pelletized or granular sulfur, or iron sulfate. Submit manufacturer literature for approval.
Fertilizer: Agricultural fertilizer of a formula indicated by the soil test. Fertilizers shall be organic, slow-release compositions whenever applicable. Submit manufacturer
literature for approval.
Planting Mix
A. Planting Mix
1. Planting Mix for Trees, Shrubs, Groundcovers and vines: Check with landscape architect for appropriate mixture.
2. Planting Mix for Palms: Mixture of course sand and peat mixed to the following proportion:

Component Percent by Volume
Coarse Sand 75%
Peat 25%

B. Planting mix shall be thoroughly mixed, screened, and shredded.
C. Prior to beginning the mixing process, submit a 1-kg (2-Ib) sample of the proposed mix with soil test results that indicate the mix ratio and the results achieved.
D. During the mixing process but prior to installing the mix, submit a 1-kg (2-Ib) sample for each 200 cubic meters (250 cubic yards) of planting mix, taken randomly from
the finished soil mix, with soil test results for approval. In the event that the test results do not meet the required particle size distribution, remix and resubmit a revised
planting mix.
E. Make all amendments of lime/sulfur and fertilizer indicated by the soil test results at the time of mixing.
F. All mixing shall take place in the contractors yard, using commercial mixing equipment sufficient to thoroughly mix all components uniformly
G. Protect the planting mix from erosion prior to installation.
Part 3. Execution

branch tip. Plants shall be measured when branches are in their normal position. If a range of sizes is given, no plant shall be less than the minimum size, and no less than |- Excavation of Planted Areas

50 percent of the plants shall be as large as the maximum size specified. Measurements specified are minimum sizes acceptable after pruning, where pruning is required.
Plants that meet measurements but do not possess a standard relationship between height and spread, according to the Florida Department of Agriculture Grades and
Standards for Nursery Plants, shall be rejected.
D. Substitutions of plant materials will not be permitted unless authorized in writing by the landscape architect. If proof is submitted in writing that a plant specified is not obtainable,
consideration will be given to the nearest available size or similar variety, with a corresponding adjustment of the contract price.
E. The plant schedule provided at the end of this section, or on the drawing, is for the contractor's information only, and no guarantee is expressed or implied that quantities
therein are correct or that the list is complete. The contractor shall ensure that all plant materials shown on the drawings are included in his or her bid.
F. All plants shall be labeled by plant name. Labels shall be attached securely to all plants, bundles, and containers of plant materials when delivered. Plant labels shall be durable
and legible, with information given in weather-resistant ink or embossed process lettering.
G. Selection and Tagging

1. Plants shall be subject to inspection for conformity to specification requirements and approval by the landscape architect at their place of growth and upon delivery. Such
approval shall not impair the right of inspection and rejection during progress of the work.

2. A written request for the inspection of plant material at their place of growth shall be submitted to the landscape architect at least ten calendar days prior to digging. This
request shall state the place of growth and the quantity of plants to be inspected. The landscape architect may refuse inspection at this time if, in his or her judgment,
sufficient quantities of plants are not available for inspection or landscape architect deems inspection is not required.

3. All field grown deciduous trees shall be marked to indicate the trees north orientation in the nursery. Place a 1-in. diameter spot of white paint onto the north side of the tree
trunk within the bottom 12 inches of the trunk.

H. Anti-Desiccants

1. Anti-desiccants, if specified, are to be applied to plants in full leaf immediately before digging or as required by the landscape architect. Anti-desiccants are to be sprayed
so that all leaves and branches are covered with a continuous protective film.

|. Balled and Burlapped (B&B) Plant Materials

1. Trees designated B&B shall be properly dug with firm, natural balls of soil retaining as many fibrous roots as possible, in sizes and shapes as specified in the Florida
Department of Agriculture Grades and Standards for Nursery Plants. Balls shall be firmly wrapped with synthetic, natural, or treated burlap, and/or wire. All synthetic fabric
should be removed from the rootball prior to planting. True biodegradable burlap can be left around the root ball. The root collar shall be apparent at surface of ball. Trees
with loose, broken, processed, or manufactured root balls will not be accepted, except with special written approval before planting.

J. Container Plants

1. Plants grown in containers shall be of appropriate size for the container as specified in the most recent edition of the Florida Department of Agriculture Grades and
Standards for Nursery Plants and be free of circling roots on the exterior and interior of the root ball.

2. Container plants shall have been grown in the container long enough to have established roots throughout the growing medium.

K. Bareroot and Collected Plants

1. Plants designated as bareroot or collected plants shall conform to the American Standard for Nursery Stock.

2. Bareroot material shall not be dug or installed after bud break or before dormancy.

3. Collected plant material that has not been taken from active nursery operations shall be dug with a root ball spread at least 1/3 greater than nursery grown plants. When
specified or approved, shall be in good health, free from disease, insect or weed infestation and shall not be planted before inspection and acceptance at the site. Testing
may be required at the discretion of the Landscape Architect and/or the Owner and shall be provided at no additional cost.

L. Specimen Material: Plant material specified as specimens are to be approved by the Landscape Architect before being brought to the site. Unless otherwise noted on the
drawings, these plants shall be Florida Fancy.
M. Palms

1. Coconut Palms shall be grown from a certified seed.

2. All palm species except Sabal palmetto shall have roots adequately wrapped before transporting.

3. Sabal palms shall have a hurricane cut. Sabal palms shall be installed on site at the earliest opportunity in the construction process. All Sabal palms shall be from Palm
Beach County or other sandy soils. All Sabal palms shall be Florida Fancy.

4.For booted trunk palms, trunks shall have clean intact boots firmly attached to the palm trunk. For slick trunk palms, trunk shall be clear and free from defect and scars.

5. The Contractor shall treat all palms as required to prevent infestation by the palmetto weevil.

N. Sod

1. Sod shall be graded #1 or better. Sod shall be loam or muck grown with a firm, full texture and good root development. Sod shall be thick, healthy and free from defects

and debris including but not limited to dead thatch, insects, fungus, diseases and contamination by weeds, other grass varieties or objectionable plant material.

2. Sod shall be sufficiently thick to insure a dense stand of live grass. Sod shall be live, fresh, and uninjured at the time of planting. Plant sod within 48 hours after

harvesting.

3. Sod area shall be all areas not otherwise identified and shall include the area beyond the property line to the edge of pavement and/or edge of water.
O. Immediately after harvesting plants, protect from drying and damage until shipped and delivered to the planting site. Rootballs shall be checked regularly and
watered sufficiently to maintain root viability.
P. Transportation and Storage of Plant Material

1. Branches shall be tied with rope or twine only, and in such a manner that no damage will occur to the bark or branches.

2. During transportation of plant material, the contractor shall exercise care to prevent injury and drying out of the trees. Should the roots be dried out, large branches broken,
balls of earth broken or loosened, or areas of bark torn, the landscape architect may reject the injured tree(s) and order them replaced at no additional cost to the owner.
All loads of plants shall be covered at all times with tarpaulin or canvas. Loads that are not protected will be rejected.

3. All bareroot stock sent from the storage facility shall be adequately covered with wet soil, sawdust, woodchips, moss, peat, straw, hay, or other acceptable moisture-holding
medium, and shall be covered with a tarpaulin or canvas. Loads that are not protected in the above manner may be rejected.

4. Plants must be protected at all times from sun or drying winds. Those that cannot be planted immediately on delivery shall be kept in the shade, well protected with soil,
wet mulch, or other acceptable material, and kept well watered. Plants shall not remain unplanted any longer than three days after delivery. Plants shall not be bound with
wire or rope at any time so as to damage the bark or break branches. Plants shall be lifted and handled with suitable support of the soil ball to avoid damaging it.

be

A. Locations for plants and/or outlines of areas to be planted are to be staked out at the site. Locate and mark all subsurface utility lines. Approval of the stakeout by the
landscape architect is required before excavation begins.

B. Tree, shrub, and groundcover beds are to be excavated to the depth and widths indicated on the landscape plan detail drawings. If the planting area under any tree is
initially dug too deep, the soil added to bring it up to the correct level should be thoroughly tamped.

1. The sides of the excavation of all planting areas shall be sloped at a 45 degrees. The bottom of all beds shall slope parallel to the proposed grades or toward any
subsurface drain lines within the planting bed. The bottom of the planting bed directly under any tree shall be horizontal such that the tree sits plumb.

2. Maintain all required angles of repose of the adjacent materials as shown on the drawings. Do not excavate compacted subgrades of adjacent pavement or
structures.

3. Subgrade soils shall be separated from the topsoil, removed from the area, and not used as backfill in any planted or lawn area. Excavations shall not be left
uncovered or unprotected overnight.

C. For trees and shrubs planted in individual holes in areas of good soil that is to remain in place and/or to receive amendment in the top 150-mm (6 in.) layer, excavate
the
hole to the depth of the root ball and to widths shown on the drawing. Slope the sides of the excavation at a 45 degree angle up and away from the bottom of the
excavation.

1. In areas of slowly draining soils, the root ball may be set up to 75 mm (3 in.) or 1/8 of the depth of the root ball above the adjacent soil level.
2. Save the existing soil to be used as backfill around the tree.
3. On steep slopes, the depth of the excavation shall be measured at the center of the hole and the excavation dug as shown on the drawings.

D. Detrimental soil conditions: The landscape architect is to be notified, in writing, of soil conditions encountered, including poor drainage, that the contractor considers
detrimental to the growth of plant material. When detrimental conditions are uncovered, planting shall be discontinued until instructions to resolve the conditions are
received from the landscape architect.

E. Obstructions: If rock, underground construction work, utilities, tree roots, or other obstructions are encountered in the excavation of planting areas, alternate locations
for
any planting shall be determined by the landscape architect.

II. Installation of Planting Mix

A. Prior to the installation of the planting mix, install subsurface drains, irrigation main lines, lateral lines, and irrigation risers shown on the drawings.

B. The landscape architect shall review the preparation of subgrades prior to the installation of planting mix.

C. Do not proceed with the installation of planting mix until all utility work in the area has been installed.

D. Protect adjacent walls, walks, and utilities from damage or staining by the soil. Use 12-mm (1/2 in.) plywood and/or plastic sheeting as directed to cover existing
concrete,
metal, masonry work, and other items as directed during the progress of the work.

1. Clean up any soil or dirt spilled on any paved surface at the end of each working day.
2. Any damage to the paving or architectural work caused by the soils installation contractor shall be repaired by the general contractor at the soils installation
contractors expense.

E. Till the subsoil into the bottom layer of topsoil or planting mix.

1. Loosen the soil of the subgrade to a depth of 50 to 75 mm (2 to 3 in.) with a rototiller or other suitable device.

2. Spread a layer of the specified topsoil or planting mix 50 mm (2 in.) deep over the subgrade. Thoroughly till the planting mix and the subgrade together.

3. Immediately install the remaining topsoil or planting mix in accordance with the following specifications. Protect the tilled area from traffic. DO NOT allow the tilled
subgrade to become compacted.

4. In the event that the tilled area becomes compacted, till the area again prior to installing the planting mix.

F. Install the remaining topsoil or planting mix in 200- to 250-mm (8- to 10-in.) lifts to the depths and shown on the drawing details. The depths and grades shown on the
drawings are the final grades after soil settlement and shrinkage of the organic material. The contractor shall install the soil at a higher level to anticipate this
reduction of soil volume, depending on predicted settling properties for each type of soil.

1. Phase the installation of the soil such that equipment does not have to travel over already-installed topsoil or planting mixes.
2. Compact each lift sufficiently to reduce settling but not enough to prevent the movement of water and feeder roots through the soil. The soil in each lift should feel
firm to the foot in all areas and make only slight heel prints. Overcompaction shall be determined by the following field percolation test.
a. Dig a hole 250 mm (10 in.) in diameter and 250 mm (10 in.) deep.
b. Fill the hole with water and let it drain completely. Immediately refill the hole with water, and measure the rate of fall in the water level.
c. In the event that the water drains at a rate less than 25 mm (1 in.) per hour, till the soil to a depth required to break the overcompaction.
d. The landscape architect shall determine the need for, and the number and location of percolation tests based on observed field conditions of the soil.
3. Maintain moisture conditions within the soils during installation to allow for satisfactory compaction. Suspend installation operations if the soil becomes wet. Do not
place soils on wet subgrade.
4. Provide adequate equipment to achieve consistent and uniform compaction of the soils. Use the smallest equipment that can reasonably perform the task of
spreading and compaction.
5. Add lime, sulfur, fertilizer, and other amendments during soil installation. Spread the amendments over the top layer of soil and till into the top 100 mm (4 in.) of soil.
Soil amendments may be added at the same time that organic matter, when required, is added to the top layer of soil.
6. Protect soil from overcompaction after placement. An area that becomes overcompacted shall be tilled to a depth of 125 mm (6 in.). Uneven or settled areas shall
filled and regraded.

Ill. Fine Grading

A.It shall be the responsibility of the Contractor to finish grade (min. 6" below adjacent F.F.E.). Finish grades in planting areas shall be one inch lower than adjacent paving
and are to include 3" of mulching. New earthwork shall blend smoothly into the existing earthwork, and grades shall pitch evenly between spot grades. All planted areas
must pitch to drain at a minimum of 1/4" per foot. Any discrepancies not allowing this to occur shall be reported to the Landscape Architect prior to continuing work.

B. Fill all dips and remove any bumps in the overall plane of the slope.
1. The tolerance for dips and bumps in lawn areas shall be a 12-mm (1/2 in.) deviation from the plane in 3,000 mm (10 ft).
2. The tolerance for dips and bumps in shrub planting areas shall be a 25-mm (1 in.) deviation from the plane in 3,000 mm (10 ft).
3. All fine grading shall be inspected and approved by the landscape architect prior to planting, mulching, sodding, or seeding.

C.Berming shall not be placed within 10' of any existing tree nor will it be allowed to encroach upon any utility, drainage, or maintenance easement. Berming shall not impede
or obstruct any necessary swales needed to drain other areas for the property.

IV. Planting Operations

A.Plants shall be set on flat-tamped or unexcavated pads at the same relationship to finished grade as they were to the ground from which they were dug, unless otherwise
noted on the drawings. Plants must be set plumb and braced in position until topsoil or planting mix has been placed and tamped around the base of the root ball. Improper
compacting of the soil around the root ball may result in the tree settling or leaning. Plants shall be set so that they will be at the same depth and so that the root ball does
not shift or move laterally one year later.

1. Determine the elevation of the root flare and ensure that it is planted at grade. This may require that the tree be set higher than the grade in the nursery.

2. If the root flare is less than 50 mm (2 in.) below the soil level of the root ball, plant the tree the appropriate level above the grade to set the flare even with the grade. If the
flare is more than 50 mm (2 in) at the center of the root ball the tree shall be rejected.

B. Lift plants only from the bottom of the root balls or with belts or lifting harnesses of sufficient width not to damage the root balls. Do not lift trees by their trunk or use the
trunk as a lever in positioning or moving the tree in the planting area.

C.Remove plastic, paper, or fiber pots from containerized plant material. Pull roots out of the root mat. Loosen the potting medium and shake away from the root mat.
Immediately after removing the container, install the plant such that the roots do not dry out. Pack planting mix around the exposed roots while planting.

D. The roots of bare-root trees shall be pruned at the time of planting to remove damaged or undesirable roots (those likely to become a detriment to future growth of the root
system). Bare-root trees shall have the roots spread to approximate the natural position of the roots and shall be centered in the planting pit. The planting-soil backfill shall
be worked firmly into and around the roots, with care taken to fill in completely with no air pockets.

E. Cut ropes or strings from the top of shrub root balls and trees smaller than 3 in. caliper after plant has been set. Remove burlap or cloth wrapping and any wire baskets
from around top half of balls. Do not turn under and bury portions of burlap at top of ball.

1. Do not immediately remove the ropes and burlap from trees larger than 3 in. caliper. Return to each tree three months after planting and cut all ropes around the trunks
and tops of the root balls of these trees.

2. Completely remove any waterproof or water-repellant strings or wrappings from the root ball and trunk before backfilling.
F. Set balled and burlapped trees in the hole with the north marker facing north unless otherwise approved by the landscape architect.
G.Place native soil, topsoil, or planting mix into the area around the tree, tamping lightly to reduce settlement.

1. For plants planted in individual holes in existing soil, add any required soil amendments to the soils, as the material is being backfilled around the plant. Ensure that the
amendments are thoroughly mixed into the backfill.

2. For plants planted in large beds of prepared soil, add soil amendments during the soil installation process.
3. Ensure that the backfill immediately around the base of the root ball is tamped with foot pressure sufficient to prevent the root ball from shifting or leaning.

H.Solid sod shall be laid with closely abutting joints with a tamped or rolled, even surface. Stagger strips to offset joints in adjacent courses. Bring the sod edge in a neat,
clean manner to the edge of all paving and shrub areas. Sod along slopes shall be pegged to hold sod in place along slopes or banks a wood peg acceptable to the
Landscape Architect shall be used at no additional cost to the Owner. If, in the opinion of the Landscape Architect, top-dressing is necessary after rolling, clean sand will
be evenly applied over the entire surface and thoroughly washed in without additional charge.

I. Thoroughly water all plants immediately after planting. Apply water by hose directly to the root ball and the adjacent soil.
J. Remove all tags, labels, strings, etc. from all plants.
K.Remove any excess soil, debris, and planting material from the job site at the end of each workday.
L. Form watering saucers 100 mm (4 in.) high immediately outside the area of the root ball of each tree as indicated on the drawings.
V. Relocation of Existing Material:
A. Landscape Contractor shall root prune trees which are to be relocated in accordance with approved horticultural practices and the following procedures.
1. Select a healthy tree
2. Selectively trim the canopy removing dead limbs, cross branching over crowned areas, and lower undesirable limbs. Fertilize and water trees before pruning.

3. Root prune 50% of the root system approximately 18"-2' deep (depending upon species and size). This is done by hand with sharp hand tools or a root pruning saw. The
diameter of the root ball to be pruned is 8-12 inches per every one inch of diameter at breast height of the tree.

. Back fill the existing soil with peat moss to stimulate new root growth of the pruned roots.

. Water in thoroughly and treat with a mycorrhizae and a low nitrogen fertilizer (so not to burn the pruned roots). Brace trees if deemed necessary.

. The root pruned tree should be watered every day (especially during warm months of the season), the equivalent of 5 gallons for every DBH of tree per day.

. Root pruned trees should be let to stand for a minimum of 6 weeks for trees less than 8" DBH and as long as 3 months for larger specimens prior to transplanting.

© N o O b

. For best results and survivorship, new root growth should be evident on root pruned trees prior to transplanting.
9. Upon transplanting, water should be applied every day as outlined in step 6 for at least one year.
VI. Staking and Guying

A.The Contractor shall stake all trees and palms in accordance with the tree and palm staking details provided within the plan drawings. Alternate methods of guying or
staking may be employed with the prior approval of the Landscape Architect.

B. The Contractor shall be responsible for the replacement or adjustment of all trees, palms or shrubs that fall or lean during the guarantee period. The Contractor shall be
responsible for any damage caused by the falling or leaning of trees.

C.Stakes and guys shall be installed immediately upon approval or planting, and shall be removed in accordance with the staking details provide within the plan drawings.
Any tree that is not stable at the end of the warranty period shall be rejected.

VII. Pruning

A.Plants shall not be heavily pruned at the time of planting. Pruning is required at planting time to correct defects in the tree structure, including removal of injured branches,
waterspouts, suckers, and interfering branches. Healthy lower branches and interior small twigs should not be removed except as necessary to clear walks and roads. In no
case should more than one-quarter of the branching structure be removed. Retain the normal or natural shape of the plant.

B. All pruning shall be completed using clean, sharp tools. All cuts shall be clean and smooth, with the bark intact with no rough edges or tears.
C.Pruning of large trees shall be done from a hydraulic man-lift such that it is not necessary to climb the tree.
VIII. Mulching

A.All trees, palms, shrubs, and other plantings will be mulched with mulch previously approved by the landscape architect. The mulch shall be a minimum 3" thick layer over
all tree, shrub and ground cover planting areas, unless otherwise specified. All mulch layers shall be of the specified thickness at the time of the final acceptance of the
work. Mulch must not be placed within 3 inches of the trunks of trees, palms or shrubs.

B. Place mulch at least 3" in depth in a circle around all trees located in lawn areas. The diameter of the circle shall be 18" in diameter larger than the ball of the plant
provided. Mulch must not be placed within 3 inches of the trunks of trees, palms or shrubs.

IX. Maintenance of Trees, Shrubs, and Vines

A.Maintenance shall begin immediately after each plant is planted and continue until its acceptance has been confirmed by the landscape architect.

B. Maintenance shall consist of pruning, watering, cultivating, weeding, mulching, fertilizing, tightening and repairing guys and stakes, resetting plants to proper grades or
upright position, restoring of the planting saucer, and furnishing and applying such sprays or other materials as necessary to keep plantings free of insects and diseases
and in vigorous condition.

C.Planting areas and plants shall be protected at all times against trespassing and damage of all kinds for the duration of the maintenance period. If a plant becomes
damaged or injured, it shall be treated or replaced as directed by the landscape architect at no additional cost.

D. Watering: Contractor shall irrigate as required to maintain vigorous and healthy tree growth. Overwatering or flooding shall not be allowed. The contractor shall monitor,
adjust, and use existing irrigation facilities, if available, and furnish any additional material, equipment, or water to ensure adequate irrigation. Root balls of all trees and
large shrubs shall be spot watered using handheld hoses during the first four months after planting, as required to ensure adequate water within the root ball.

E. During periods of restricted water usage, all governmental regulations (permanent and temporary) shall be followed. The contractor may have to transport water from ponds
or other sources, at no additional expense to the owner when irrigation systems are unavailable.

F. Remove soil ridges from around watering basins prior to end of maintenance period, as directed by Landscape Architect
X. Acceptance

A.The landscape architect shall inspect all work for acceptance upon written request of the contractor. The request shall be received at least ten calendar days before the
anticipated date of inspection.

B. Acceptance of plant material shall be for general conformance to specified size, character, and quality and shall not relieve the contractor of responsibility for full
conformance to the contract documents, including correct species.

C.Upon completion and re-inspection of all repairs or renewals necessary in the judgment of the landscape architect, the landscape architect shall certify in writing that the
work has been accepted.

Xl. Acceptance in Part

A.Work may be accepted in parts when the landscape architect and contractor deem that practice to be in their mutual interest. Approval must be given in writing by the
landscape architect to the contractor verifying that the work is to be completed in parts. Acceptance of work in parts shall not waive any other provision of this contract.

Xll. Guarantee Period and Replacements
A.The guarantee period for trees and shrubs shall begin at the date of acceptance.
B. The contractor shall guarantee all plant material to be in healthy and flourishing condition for a period of one year from the date of acceptance.

C.When work is accepted in parts, the guarantee periods extend from each of the partial acceptances to the terminal date of the guarantee of the last acceptance. Thus, all
guarantee periods terminate at one time.

D. The contractor shall replace, without cost, as soon as weather conditions permit, and within a specified planting period, all plants determined by the landscape architect to
be dead or in an unacceptable condition during and at the end of the guarantee period. To be considered acceptable, plants shall be free of dead or dying branches and
branch tips and shall bear foliage of normal density, size, and color. Replacements shall closely match adjacent specimens of the same species. Replacements shall be
subject to all requirements stated in this specification.

E. The guarantee of all replacement plants shall extend for an additional period of one year from the date of their acceptance after replacement. In the event that a
replacement plant is not acceptable during or at the end of said extended guarantee period, the landscape architect may elect subsequent replacement or credit for that
item.

F. At the end of the guarantee, the contractor shall reset grades that have settled below the proposed grades on the drawings.

G.The contractor shall make periodic inspections, at no extra cost, during the guarantee period to determine what changes, if any, should be made in the maintenance
program. If changes are recommended, they shall be submitted in writing to the landscape architect. Claims by the contractor that the owners maintenance practices or lack
of maintenance resulted in dead or dying plants will not be considered if such claims have not been documented by the contractor during the guarantee period.

XIIlI. Final Inspection and Final Acceptance

At the end of the guarantee period and upon written request of the contractor, the landscape architect will inspect all guaranteed work for final acceptance. The request shall be
received at least ten calendar days before the anticipated date for final inspection. Upon completion and re-inspection of all repairs or renewals necessary in the judgment of the
landscape architect at that time, the landscape architect shall certify, in writing, that the project has received final acceptance.

www.wginc.com

@WG Inl
2035 Vista Parkway, West Palm Beach, FL 33411
Cert No. 6091 - LB No. 7055

Phone No. 866.909.2220

BY
DN
DN

REVISIONS

DATE |DESCRIPTION
02.08.21|RESUBMITTAL
03.17.21|RESUBMITTAL

NO.
1
2

2156.03
DN
™

12-02-2020

CAD LP_2156.03.DWG
JOB NO.

DRAWN BY
CHECK BY

DATE

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT OF RECORD
TIFFANY D MAY, PLA
FL # LA6667274

174

Digitally signed by Tiffany Delynn May LA6667274 State
of Florida

DN: cn=Tiffany Delynn May LA6667274 State of Florida,
o=Printed copies of the document are not considered
signed and sealed and all SHA-1 authentication code
must be verified on any electronic copies., ou=The item
has been electronically signed and sealed using a SHA-1
authentication codes, email=Tiffany.May@wginc.com,
c=US

Date: 2021.03.17 11:56:06 -04'00'

GOLDEN ROAD APARTMENTS
LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA
LANDSCAPE SPECIFICATIONS

SHEET:
LP-3.01




LIGHTING SYMBOLS SCHEDULE

ELECTRICAL ABBREVIATIONS

ALL SYMBOLS DO NOT NECESSARILY APPEAR ON THESE DRAWINGS

NOTES:
IF WALL MOUNTED FIXTURE PROJECTS 4" OR MORE FROM FINISHED WALL THERE SHALL BE 80"
VERTICAL CLEARANCE A.F.F.

2. PROVIDE A SEPARATE REFERENCE CONDUCTOR FOR THE FIXTURES BATTERY PACK, FED FROM THE

1.

SAME CIRC

UIT AS THE FIXTURE. THIS REFERENCE CONDUCTOR SHALL NOT ROUTE THROUGH ANY

LOCAL SWITCH OR LIGHTING CONTROL RELAY. ALL FIXTURES WITH EMERGENCY BATTERY PACKS
SHALL BE SWITCHED AS SHOWN ON PLANS, UNO. ALL FIXTURES WITH EMERGENCY BATTERY PACKS
SHALL BE PROVIDED WITH INTEGRAL RED TEST BUTTON, UNO.

SYMBOL DESCRIPTION REMARKS
IEN 2' x 4' LIGHT FIXTURE
[o] 2' x 2' LIGHT FIXTURE
o 1'x 4' LIGHT FIXTURE
— LINEAR STRIP LIGHTING FIXTURE NOTE 1
. ® DOWNLIGHT
Calculation Summary - FOOT CANDLE WAL WASHADIUS TABLE DOVNLIGHT - ARROW
o INDICATED DIRECTION OF BEAM
o) LINEAR LIGHT WALL MOUNTED FIXTURE NOTE 1
Calculation Summary O WALL SCONCE NOTE 1
Label CalcType Units Avg Max Min Avg/Min L TRACK HEAD
PARKING LOT A [lluminance Fc 1.08 2.4 0.2 5.40 O PENDANT
PARKING LOT B ”lum?nance Fc 0.93 2.2 0.2 4.65 ® EXIT SIGN - SINGLE FACE NOTE 1
PARKING LOT 5 fluminance . 07 121 oz 3% & | emsion oo race
uminance c : : : : 4P DUAL HEAD EMERGENCY LIGHT WITH INTEGRAL NOTE 1
BATTERY PACK
B SINGLE HEAD SITE AREA LUMINAIRE
el DUAL HEAD SITE AREA LUMINAIRE
o EXISTING SINGLE HEAD SITE AREA LUMINAIRE
. ol ) EXISTING DUAL HEAD SITE AREA LUMINAIRE
Calculation Summary - LUX o BOLLARD
Units J Avg J Max J Min o] LANDSCAPE LUMINAIRE
PROPERTY LINE lluminance Lux iae 337 | 0.0 WHERE SHOWN, INDICATES PANEL AND CIRCUIT SERVING
<HG-1 > ALL FIXTURES IN THE SAME ROOM.
TYPICAL FIXTURE EQUIPPED WITH EMERGENCY BATTERY NOTE 2
BALLAST.
__— WHERE SHOWN, INDICATES NIGHT LIGHT.
INDICATES FIXTURE TYPE ——=A  NL: 24HR OPERATION
NDICATES PANEL HG_Q« TYPICAL LIGHTING FIXTURE
AND CIRCUIT - CONTROL SWITCH LEG
SERVING FIXTURE
LAMPS FIXTURE
TYPE MANUFACTURER FIXTURE CATALOG NO. LAMP # ‘ LAMP TYPE WATTS MOUNTING REMARKS
X LITHONIA RSX1 LED-P1-40K-R3-MVOLT-HS LED, 4000K, 51W POLE SINGLE HEAD POLE FIXTURE.
7096 LUMENS
S2 LITHONIA RSX1 LED-P1-40K-R4-MVOLT-HS LED, 4000K, 51W POLE SINGLE HEAD POLE FIXTURE.
7189 LUMENS

Sec. 23.4-3. - Exterior lighting.

P S
e =

a) Purpose. The purpose of this section is to provide for regulations for outdoor lighting that will permit reasonable uses of lighting for nighttime safety, utility, security, productivity, enjoyment and

commerce. Further, this section shall strive to:

1. Conserve energy and resources to the greatest extent possible;
2. Minimize adverse off-site impacts, including light trespass and obtrusive light;
3. Curtail light pollution and preserve the nighttime environment; and

4. Help protect the natural environment from the adverse effects of nighttime lighting from electric sources.

b) Conformance with all appli
building code.

SN anda iacation.

1. All outdoor lighting in all zoning districts used to light the general area of a specific site shall be shielded to reduce glare and shall be so located and arranged so as to reflect lights away from all

adjacent residential districts, adjacent residences or public thoroughfares.

2. All outdoor lighting in all zoning districts shall be directed toward the ground or the facade of a building.

w

pedestrians.

4. High intensity lighting may be used to illuminate parking areas and to promote security, where needed. However, such lighting shall be shielded and located so as not to allow light trespass upon

neighboring residential properties or districts in excess of 12.57 lumens when measured on that property.

un

when in use.

6. Lighting shall be arranged to eliminate conflicts with safe traffic and pedestrian movements.

night than in the day.

8. Lighting following the form of the building or part of the building will not be allowed if the overall effect will be detrimental to the environment or contrary to the architectural style of the building.

9. Lighting on a building shall be compatible with the architectural style of the building. Any lighting proposed for decorative or artistic purposes shall be appropriate to both the use and function of

the building as well as its architectural style.

(Ord. No. 2016-13, § 7(Exh. F), 5-17-16)

All lighting used for the external illumination of buildings, so as to feature said buildings. shall be placed and shielded so as not to interfere with the vision of motor vehicle operators or

cable codes. All outdoor lighting shall be installed in conformance with the provisions of this chapter, applicable electrical and energy codes, and applicable sections of the

Mo illuminated signs or any other outdoor feature shall be of a flashing, moving, or intermittent type. Artificial light shall be maintained stationary and constant in intensity and color at all times

Lighting is not to be used as a form of advertising in a manner that is not compatible to the neighborhood er in a manner that draws considerably more attention to the building or grounds at

CITY OF LAKEWORTH ORDIANCE NO. 2016-13, § 7(Exh. F), 5-17-16)

BASIS OF DESIGN

Topic # 625-000-015

Manual of Uniform Minimum Standards

for Design, Construction and Maintenance
for Streets and Highways

April 2016

TABLE 6 — 1 Level of lllumination for Streets and Highways

ABV
AIC
ACT
AFF
AF
AFG
AL
ARCH
ASB
ASC
ASD
AUTO
AUX
ATS
AWG

BFF
BLDG
BFG

C/B
CCTV
CCT
CLG
COL
COMB
CONC
CONST

DFC
DIA
DN
DWG

EA

EC

EF
ELEC
EMER
EMT
EPO
EQUIP
EWC
EX
EXT

FA
FACP
FLR
FXTR

GC
GD
GEN
GFlI

HD
HP
HT
HVAC

HW

ID
IG
IMT

KVA
KW
KCMIL

AMPERES LTG LIGHTING

ABOVE

AIR CONDITIONING MAX MAXIMUM

ABOVE COUNTER TOP MC MECHANICAL CONTRACTOR
ABOVE FINISHED FLOOR MCB MAIN CIRCUIT BREAKER
AMP FUSED MCC MOTOR CONTROL CENTER
ABOVE FINISHED GRADE MCM THOUSAND CIRCULAR MILS
ALUMINUM MDP MAIN DISTRIBUTION PANEL
ARCHITECT MECH MECHANICAL

ABOVE SPLASH BLOCK MH MANHOLE

ABOVE SUSPENDED CEILING MIN MINIMUM

ADJUSTABLE SPEED DRIVE MISC MISCELLANEOUS
AUTOMATIC MLO MAIN LUG ONLY

AUXILIARY MSB MAIN SWITCHBOARD
AUTOMATIC TRANSFER SWITCH MTD MOUNTED

AMERICAN WIRE GAUGE
NEC NATIONAL ELECTRICAL CODE

BELOW FINISH FLOOR NEMA NATIONAL ELECTRICAL
BUILDING MANUFACTURERS ASSOCIATION
BELOW FINISHED GRADE NEUT NEUTRAL

NF NON FUSED
CONDUIT NIC NOT IN CONTRACT
CIRCUIT BREAKER NL NIGHT LIGHT
CLOSED CIRCUIT TELEVISION N.O. NORMALLY OPEN
CIRCUIT N.C. NORMALLY CLOSED
CEILING NO. NUMBER
COLUMN NTS NOT TO SCALE
COMBINATION
CONCRETE oC OVER COUNTERTOP
CONSTRUCTION oD OUTSIDE DIAMETER

OFCI OWNER FURNISHED CONTRACTOR
DOWN FROM CEILING INSTALLED
DIAMETER OH OVERHEAD
DOWN
DRAWING P POLE

PC PLUMBING CONTRACTOR
EACH PF POWER FACTOR
ELECTRICAL CONTRACTOR PH PHASE
EXHAUST FAN PL PROPERTY LINE
ELECTRIC / ELECTRICAL PNL PANEL
EMERGENCY PVC POLYVINYL CHLORIDE
ELECTRICAL METALLIC TUBING
EMERGENCY POWER OFF RECPT RECEPTACLE
EQUIPMENT RE: REFERENCE/REFER TO
ELECTRIC WATER COOLER REQD REQUIRED
EXISTING RGS RIGID GALVANIZED STEEL
EXTERIOR RM ROOM
FIRE ALARM SCH SCHEDULE
FIRE ALARM CONTROL PANEL SPEC SPECIFICATIONS
FLOOR/FLOORING SVC SERVICE
FIXTURE

TEL TELEPHONE
GROUND TR TAMPER RESISTANT
GENERAL CONTRACTOR TS TRANSFER SWITCH
GENERAL DUTY TYP TYPICAL
GENERATOR TTB TELEPHONE TERMINAL BOARD
GROUND FAULT INTERRUPT

uG UNDERGROUND
HEAVY DUTY UL UNDERWRITER'S LABORATORIES

HORSEPOWER UNO UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE
HEIGHT
HEATING/VENTILATING/AIR Vv VOLTS
CONDITIONING VA VOLT - AMPERES
HOT WATER VSD VARIABLE SPEED DRIVE
INSIDE DIAMETER W WATTS
ISOLATED GROUND W/ WITH
INTERMEDIATE METAL W/O WITHOUT

WP WEATHER PROOF
JUNCTION BOX WR WEATHER RESISTANT
KILOVOLT-AMPERES w% xVV/E'TGEHRT
KILOWATTS WW WASTE WATER
THOUSAND CIRCULAR MILS

XFMR  TRANSFORMER

Additional
Hluminance Mathad Luminance Mathod Valuas
(both Methods)
Off-Roadway
Roadway Light Sources Average ﬂﬁ';ﬁ'ﬁ;:{.lummam lluminance Average Maintained Luminance Veiling
and Walkway LJnlfnrrnlty Lumln?n::e
Classification R1 RZ R3 R4 Ratio Lavg Unifarmity Ratio
(foot (foot- (foot- (foot- . dim2 L ILmi . -
General avg/min caim, avg/Lmin | |max/Lmin | LvimaxyLavg
-candles) candles) | candles) | candles) (raln i 1 T
Land Use {rmin) {rmin) (i) (min) (max) (6) i el (max) imax)
Principal Commaercial 1.1 1.6 18 14 3 1.2 n a1 0.3:1
Arterials - - - - -
(partial or no Intermediate 0.8 1.2 1.2 1.0 an 0.9 3 a1 0.3:1
control of Residential 0.6 0.8 0.6 0.6 3 0.6 351 61 0.3:1
ACCass)
. Commaercial 09 1.4 1.4 1.0 4.1 1.2 31 51 0.3:1
Minor
Arterials Intermediate 0.8 1.0 1.0 0.9 4:1 0.9 31 51 0.3:1
Residential 0.5 07 0.7 07 4:1 0.6 361 621 0.3:1
Commercial 0.8 11 1.1 0.2 4:1 0.8 31 51 0.4:1
Collect
eCE I intermediate 06 08 0.8 08 T 06 351 6.1 04
Residential 0.4 0.6 0.6 0.5 41 0.4 4.1 a:1 0.4:1
Commercial 0.6 0.8 0.8 0.8 6:1 0.6 6:1 10:1 0.4:1
Local
o Intermediate 05 o7 07 06 &1 05 &1 01 04
Eesndentlal 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.4 &1 0.3 61 101 0.4:1
Commercial 04 0.6 0.6 0.5 61 0.4 6:1 1001 0.4:1
All
ays Intermediate 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.4 [ 3] 0.3 [:5] 10:1 0.4:1
Residential 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.3 61 0.2 6:1 10:1 0.4:1
Cantinued an nexlt page
Lighting 6-7

IES LIGHT LEVELS

ELECTRICAL SHEET LIST

SHEET
NUMBER SHEET NAME
E0.01 ELECTRICAL SYMBOLS
E1.00 ELECTRICAL SITE PLAN
E2.00 SITE LIGHTING PHOTOMETRIC A

E2.01 SITE LIGHTING PHOTOMETRIC B

;E
E &g
[ TR
-
(@]
S £8
o O
f3°
o
£ zZ
©
0'89
SN~
=58
c%’go'
g2
Loot-
[
o o8
-
wn
S
o
N
P
0
%)
Z
o
]
>
w
4
z
o
|_
o
4
[®)
03]
L
=)
L
|_
<
o
O
Z
(s2]
Q
O
Y]
N
> | >
sl z =
x
Z | 2 0O | w
22 5 £k
5 8 ' a|o| a

ENGINEER OF RECORD

E2.02 SITE LIGHTING PHOTOMETRIC C
E6.00 LIGHTING DIAGRAMS
E6.01 LIGHTING DIAGRAMS

W,

THIS ITEM HAS BEEN DIGITALLY SIGNED
AND SEALD BY:

.........

Date:
Marc Remmert 2021.03.17
13:01:17-05'00"

20 L LoRION ™ ON THE DATE ADJACENT TO THE SEAL

O

\\\\\\ PRINTED COPIES OF THIS DOCUMENT ARE
NOT CONSIDERED SIGNED AND SEALED.
THE SIGNATURE MUST BE VERIFIED IN THE
ELECTRONIC DOCUMENTS.

e

WG, INC.

2035 VISTA PARKWAY

WEST PALM BEACH, FL 33411

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORIZATION NO. 33574
MARC REMMERT, PE NO. 86716

GOLDEN ROAD
ELECTRICAL SYMBOLS

SHEET:
EO0.01




(
|
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
|
!
!
!
!
|
|
!
!
|
!
\

S2
3
S2 S2
T 7 S1
(-
{/— ——————— CGEEEEED ¢ 0 GEEED 0 -0 GEED O O GEIND O O GEIED O O GEND O 0 G —
|
| S
: St
]
|
|
| S2
| &
|
|
|
|
| s2
| te
|
|
| S2 §§
| O
|
l St
&y
|
: S1
L
[
|
' s1
| ol
| S2
| o]
: s1
3
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
| S1
S2
' o S1 S1 o=
: : A sﬁz
|

GEEEED ¢ ¢ GEIND ¢ O GEIND © O GEIID © 0O GEIID © O GEIID © O GEEID © © GEED © © GZIEEED

|

| S2
|

| bl 7
|

| S1
| o
| s1

| -

|

|

|

|

|

|

| s1
| B
|

|

|

| S1

| L]

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

| S2

| o

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

\

—_——_——— - e ——e— e —_ e e e — —

E2.02

&)

—_— —————- - - - ——-_—-_—_-——_-——- —_—-_——- —_—_ —-—_—_—_e—_e—_ee—_e—_Eee—— e —_—

E2.01

&)

D

S S S S ———

1 OVERALL SITE PLAN

1ll = 501_0"

.........

= *
'E//,% STATE OF
2, LoRIOR
7, RY /ON \_Y,

TN

THIS ITEM HAS BEEN DIGITALLY SIGNED
AND SEALD BY:

Date:
Marc Remmert 2021.03.17
13:01:27-05'00"

ON THE DATE ADJACENT TO THE SEAL

PRINTED COPIES OF THIS DOCUMENT ARE
NOT CONSIDERED SIGNED AND SEALED.
THE SIGNATURE MUST BE VERIFIED IN THE
ELECTRONIC DOCUMENTS.

WG, INC.

2035 VISTA PARKWAY

WEST PALM BEACH, FL 33411

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORIZATION NO. 33574
MARC REMMERT, PE NO. 86716

;E
™
® 8
= s
L =
. £
S £8
o O
gEr\
o
§§Z
(T
0'89
U) 1
° N 5
=28
?80'
S 82
_ECXD-:
m'ﬂ)
o S8
-
wn
S
o
N
>
m
%)
Z
o
]
>
W
nd
pd
o
|—
o
nd
(@]
%)
w
a
L
|_
<
la)
O
4
(s2]
S
O
Y]
N
>—
o &
O Z e
Z | 2| 0| w
282 £k
5 8 ' a|o| a

ENGINEER OF RECORD

GOLDEN ROAD
ELECTRICAL SITE PLAN

SHEET:
E1.00




1/ E2.01

1 SITE PHOTOMETRICS A

1" = 20"0"

+

+ +

+ +
0.7 1.2 1.5 1.7 2.

+

+ +
1.9 2.2 2.1

+ +
0.6 0.9 1.2 1.

+ +
1.3 1.8 1.9 1.

+

1.

4

9

9

+

1.

+ + + +
0.6 1.0 1.3 1.5 1.

.

+ + + +
0.8 1.4 1.7 1.8 2.

+ + + +
1.0 1.6 1.8 1.9 2.

+

2.

+ + + +
1.6 2.0 2.0 /1.9 2.

n

+ + +
+0.6 +0.9 +1.1 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.

1

+ +
.6 1.3 0.

+ + +
+0.41 +0.4 +0.4 0.4 0.4 0.3
+ + +
+0.5 +0.5 +0.5 0.5 0.5 0.4
o o e

+ + +
+0.6 +0.6 +0.6 0.7 0.7 0.6

+ + +
0.7 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.7

+ +
0.9 1.0
+ + +

+ + + + + + + + 5 +O 5 +O N
+0.4 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.3 0. . .

0.3
+ + +
+0.3 +0.4 +0.4 0.5 0.5 0.5
+ + + +
+O 5 +0.5 +0.6 +0.7 +0.7 0.8 0.8 0.9 0.8 0.8
® o e © aEmm» e
+O 5 +0.6 0.7 0.8 +0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 89“8
+ + + + +
+O 6 +0.7 +0.9 +1.0 +l.2 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.0 0.9
+ + + + + + + + 5 +l )
0.9 1.0 1.3 1.6 1.9 1.8 1.5 1. .
+ + + + + + + + +l 0
0.9 1.1 1.4 1.8 2.0 1.9 1.6 1.3 .
+ + + +
+O 7 +0.9 +l.l +1.3 +1l—j{|4 1.3-1.17 0.8 0.5
S2
-0 0.0 0.0 0.0

I

. GG O O GEED O O GEEEEEEED

\\\\\\llllllllll

\ RE ",
R0 M,Vf /, THIS ITEM HAS BEEN DIGITALLY SIGNED
NP SAx",  ANDSEALDBY:
S \CENs &l 2
Sk No.86716 =y = Marc Remmert D2t¢: 2021.03.17
= i * = 13:01:38-05'00"
Z o STATE OF o=
B PR
2, oL LORIDI S ON THE DATE ADJACENT TO THE SEAL
eSS ol
G AL Bl PRINTED COPIES OF THIS DOCUMENT ARE

NOT CONSIDERED SIGNED AND SEALED.
THE SIGNATURE MUST BE VERIFIED IN THE
ELECTRONIC DOCUMENTS.

WG, INC.

2035 VISTA PARKWAY

WEST PALM BEACH, FL 33411
CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORIZATION NO. 3357
MARC REMMERT, PE NO. 86716

2035 Vista Parkway, West Palm Beach, FL 33411

Phone No. 866.909.2220 www.wginc.com
Cert No. 6091 - LB No. 7055

BY

REVISIONS

DATE |DESCRIPTION

NO.

2156.03

D
JOB NO.
DRAWN BY

CHECK BY

DATE

ENGINEER OF RECORD

GOLDEN ROAD
SITE LIGHTING PHOTOMETRIC A




awig,

SN U MM;”// THIS ITEM HAS BEEN
\\ ''''' //
R O o pr, RS TEMEAS DIGITALLY SIGNED
$ NNVENS gl
Swi No.86716 %z Date:
g * ; Marc Remmert2021.03.17
;// ’%. STATE OF .$§ 13:01:48-05'00'
BN RS
2%, LORIDT g§ S ON THE DATE ADJACENT TO THE SEAL

PRINTED COPIES OF THIS DOCUMEN

T
NOT CONSIDERED SIGNED AND SEALE’IA)\BE
THE SIGNATURE MUST BE VERIFIED IN THE
ELECTRONIC DOCUMENTS.

1/E2.02
WG, INC.
N . 2035 VISTA PARKWAY
WEST PALM BEACH, FL 33411

® O GElED ¢ 0 G D D D GED D
. . CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORIZA
TION N
.. .. .o MARC REMMERT, PE NO. 86716 O Sso74

..—..F..—.._’.—

0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

+ + + i t }
1.0 1.2 1.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0

2035 Vista Parkway, West Palm Beach, FL 33411
Phone No. 866.909.2220 www.wginc.com
Cert No. 6091 - LB No. 7055

. R . 0.3
0.9 1.0 1.0
.
0.8
0.2
0.8 0.1 0.1 0
.
0.8 N .
0.3 0.2
R S
0.9 + + + + +
0.4 0.4 0.5 0.7 049
.
0.9 + + + + +
0.7 0.8 1.0 1.2[1}5
.
0.8 + + + + +
0.8 1.0 1.1 1.2 1[4 E
.
0.9 + + + + + + + +
050607080.9101011
+ + + + + + + +
101213141618201915 N . N R N . N .
0.506080809090910
+ + + + + + + & +
10121313151618171.4 . N . . . . . N
0.5 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0
+ + + + + + + + +
101111121314151.412 N . . . . . . 4
O.5070.708070707C
+ + + + +
1.3 1.4 1.5-.1.4 1.1 . . . N N N . 4
0.6 0.7 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6
+ + + + + +
0.8 1.2 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.1 ] . . . N . N N i
0.3 0.7 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 ()
+ + + + + + %
8 0.7 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.4 1.0 5 . . N . N . . | ©)
030.91009080706063 n
+ + + + + + + + + >
8060607091013151511 . R . . . . . . | i
0.5121211090706040 14
+ + + + + + + + =
7 05070911141.81912 " 4 . N . . o)
0.7 1.6 1.6 1.3 1.0 0 =
+ + + + + + + + o
7 050709111.620211.2 N . . . . . =
ke 0.9 1.9 1.9 1.5 1.1 0
+ + + + + * + +82 S2C>=D 8
6 0507101216212112 N N N . . . . . N o
0.9201915110806040 a
+ + + + +
0.5 0.7 0.9 1.1 1.5 . . . N N N N . .
09181.714100806040 ||-|_J
+ + + + + <
0.6 07 0.9 1.1 1.4 1.6 . + N ; . + . . . a
3 1.1 0.8 0.7 0.5 0.4 0
+ + + + + + + +
06080911131413C6 N . . . . . N . N N N N |
0.9 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.3 0.2 7 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.1 O
+ + + + + + + + Z
0.6 6.8 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.3 1.2 6 N . N N N . . . . N .
0.7 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.3
+ + + + + + 0.1
1.0 1.1 1.3 1.4 1.2 0.6 . . . . . . . . . .
0.5 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.6 0.5 0.5-0.4 0.3 -
+ + + + + + + + o
1-0.9 0.8 1.0 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.3 [.8 N N . . . . . b .1 o
0.4 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.3 ©
+ + + + + + + N
6 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.5 1.4 [1.0 R N . . . . N
0.5 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.3
E3 + + + + + 0.2
4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.4 ¥=5 1.6 N . N . . . .
0.7 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.4 > >
+ + + + + + + + . oM o
12121212131414161.8 . ; ‘ + ; . N 0.2 @) z >
0.9 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.6 0.5 0.4 A =z = S w
+ + + + + + + + 81 < g é % =
101010111314141720[)% 4 N N . . . N o 9 a 5 <
12 1.3 1.1 0.9 0.7 0.6 0.4 0.2 m)
+ + + + + + + +
0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.4 " i . N . . . ENGINEER OF RECORD
1.6 1.6 1.4 1.0 0.8 0.6 0.4
+ + + + + + 02
0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 1.0°1.1 T. . . N N N N . .
s 1.9 1.9 1.6 1.2 0.9 0.7 0.4
+ + + + + + + 23=D
ns 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.9 1.0 1 . N N . N .
1.9 2.0 1.7 1.2 0 0.7 0.4 0.2
f + + + + +
0.6 1.8 1.8 1.5 1.1 0.9
+ + + + + + + + 0.2
1.4 1.2 1.1 [L.0 1.0 1.1-1.1 1.1 0.9 A N N . . . . . I
5 1.3 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.5 D.3
+ + + + + + + + 4 + + + +
1.3 l.2 1.1 1010100907050.607081 + + + + . | 0.2
1.1 0.9 0.8 0.6 0.5 (0.3
+ + + + * + + + + + + + +
1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 09090.80806050708101 i + 4 . ; . ¥ .
0410121.109080605 —
+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + 0.2
0909090908080707060505070.911161818 i = . + . . 4 .
0409111109080605
+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +
0707070707060606050505070.912172019 . . . N . + + + 0.2 m
0410111009080605
+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +
05050505050505050405070.911151818 + + ; + . N 4 + | O
0511111109080605 0.2
+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + —
040404040404030404 0.8 1.0 1.3 1.5 1.5 N N + N + + + . m
0612121109080604
+ + + + + + + + + + + + + +
030303030404020505 0.7 0.8 1.0 1.1 1.1 + + n N . N . + 0.2 I
0815141209080604 |||
+ + + + +
0.6 0.7 0.9 1.0 0.9 . . N N N . . .
s1 1.0 1.8 1.7 1.4 1.0 0.8 0.6 0.4 0.2 ') =
+ + + + + +
070606070.809% i . . N . . N .
S2, g1 2.0 2.0 1.5 1.0 0.8 0.6 0.4
+ + + + + + 0.2 O I—
1.4 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.7 1.9 1 . . . . . . .
1.1 2.0 1.9 1.5 1.0 0.8 0.6 0.4 m O
+ + + + + +
6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.8 s . N N N . - .
1.0 1.7 1.6 1.3 0.9 0.7 0.6 0.4 0.2 Z I
+ + + + + + + &
31415151.5141415 . . N . . Lu
0’ O O
+ + + + + + +
5 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.2
+ + + + + + + Z
o 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.2 O —
0.0 + + + + + + + @ I
0.6 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.4 . . . . .7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 + + + + + + + 1 + + + + + + I
0.5 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.2
.. + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + ) w
___ O na4a n a4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.5 Q.5 0.5 0.4 + + + . + + - s + + + - - -
O O GEED O O GEIED 0 O GEED o © 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.5 ——
GEED 0 O G o oG o o 0.1
1/E200 G O O G o O & + + + + + + + + + + + + + + ¥ + + + + . —I
. ..—..ﬁ“".nﬂﬂﬁ ns ols 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8
G 0 O G ¢ © a LLl
O O Gl ¢ © a
SITE O O GEED ¢ © G |_
PHOTOMETRICS B ® o ammp ¢ ¢ ammn —
1“=20|_0||

E2.01




1 SITE PHOTOMETRICS C

1|| = 20!_0u

0.0 0.0
0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 q 0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
+ + + + + + + + + + +
0.2 0.2 0.3 0 3 0.3 0.3 0.3°0.2 0 2-0.2 0.2 S2
° 0.0
+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +&£+ + + + + +
0.3 0.4 0.4 0 4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0 3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.4 0 4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.3 O 0.9 1.1 1% 1.2 1.1 0.8 O 5 0.4 0.3
+ + + + + i + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + 0.2
0.6 0.6 0.6 0 6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0 5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0 4 0.6 0.6 0.6 0 6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.6 0 1.4 1.7 2.0 1.9 1.7 1.3 1.0 0.7 0.5
+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +
0.8 0.8 0.8 0 7 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 O s 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0 8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.6 0.5 0.6 0 8 1.3 1.6 1.9 1 g 1.5 1.2 0.9 0.8 0.6 0.3
+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +
0 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 O 9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0 g 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0 9 1.0 1.1 1.0 0.7 0.5 0.6 O 7 0.9 1.0 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.2 1 0o 0.8 0.7 0.5 0.4
+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + 0.2
5 1.5 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 1.0 1 0 1.0 1.1 2 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.8 0.9 0 9 1.1 1.2 1.2 0.9 0.5 0.6 O 6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.5 0 4
+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +
1.9 1.7 1.4 1 2 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.7 1.9 1.7 1 4 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 09 6 0.6,0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0 7 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.2
82 + + +
+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + 1.3 1.5 1.6 + + + + + + + + +
2 OEEi 8 1.4 1.2 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.1 1 3 1.9 ASZl 1.9 1.5 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.8 O 8 0.9 0.5 0.5 0.5 O 5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 O
+ + +
I—I| + + + + + + + 1.3 1.7 1.8 + + + + + + + + + + + 0.1
1.4 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.6 U 7—0.9 4046420 3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0 3 0.3 0
+ + +
1.3 1.7 1 )
E& 0.1
+ + + 81
® o ® 1.2 1.6 1.8
G O GEEED © O GEED © 0 G o I
o GEEED © © GEEED © o G 0.1
O GEEED-0 O GEIED © O GEED o
. ‘ ) . O GEEED O © G © GEEEEEEED
+ + + 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 - ; + ) iR
1.0 1.2 1.2 . 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0
. 0.3
0.9 1.0 1.0
+ + +
0.8 0.9 0.8 0.2
1 K : .
0 0.1 0.2 0.0 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0

\\\\\\\‘\H ! ”“”/////
Q§Q »3&? ...... &Mﬁquo
S <\ O ENS;-..

THIS ITEM HAS BEEN DIG
AD SEA RS, ITALLY SIGNED

Date: 2021.03.17

Marc R
emmert ;3.04.58-0500

ON THE DATE ADJACENT TO THE SEAL

PRINTED COPIES OF THIS DOCUMEN

T
NOT CONSIDERED SIGNED AND SEALEADBE
THE SIGNATURE MUST BE VERIFIED IN THE
ELECTRONIC DOCUMENTS.

WG, INC.
2035 VISTA PARKWAY
\(/:VERS_;IE?:IAM BEACH, FL 33411
TE OF AUTHORIZATIO
MARC REMMERT, PE NO. 86716 N NO 33574

2035 Vista Parkway, West Palm Beach, FL 33411

Phone No. 866.909.2220 www.wginc.com
Cert No. 6091 - LB No. 7055

BY

REVISIONS

DATE |DESCRIPTION

NO.

2156.03

D
JOB NO.
DRAWN BY
CHECK BY

DATE

ENGINEER OF RECORD

GOLDEN ROAD
SITE LIGHTING PHOTOMETRIC C




RSX1 LED

Area Luminaire

@ﬂ

Gatalog
Number

S

1

™ FIXTURE MOUNTED
- 250" AFG

To see complete photometric reports or download .ies files for this product, visit Lithonia Lighting’s

Luminaire Weight by Mounting Type

Note: RPA — Round Pole mount can also be
used to mount on square poles by omitting
the round pole adapter plate shown here.

7/16" locking thru bolt/nut provided

vﬂ/ 7/8" KO -fits 1/2" NPT water- tight fitting

One Lithonia Way  Conyers, Georgia 30012  Phone: 1-800-705-SERV (7378) »
©2018-2019 Acuity Brands Lighting, Inc. All rights reserved.

1?:?»
H i
Y

Wall Bracket (WBA) Mounting Detail

Surface Conduit Box (SCB) Mounting Detail

Lithonia RSX1 Area LED
Rev. 11/30/20
Page 6 0f 9

TS;LE@E us NI Isofootcandle plots for the RSX1 LED P4 40K. Distances are in units of mounting height (20),
LEGEND 4 3 2 o1 2 3 4 2 1 0 1 2 3 4 32 1 0 1 2 3 4 & 3 2 1 0 1 2 3 4
Mo * ! SPA 221bs
. s RPA 241bs
Introduction M ose X WA 221bs
. . . 1.0 f WBA 25b:
The new RSX LED Area family delivers maximum W oo ! = s
- I X 0 o BASC 281bs
value by providing significant energy savings, long 4 i s 251bs
. ; . ANSP 251bs
life and outstanding photometric performance at an : 2 ARP s
o I . . E s
Specifications i = affordable price. The RSX1 delivers 7,000 to 17,000 . AAWE 281bs
. R 4 AAWSC 311bs
EPA _ = lumens allowing it to replace 70W to 400W HID
S0l 0.57 ft?(0.05m?) [ T w - .
(fr’@0°): . 11— luminaires. P o 1 3 s 21 0o (] s [ s e RSX1 with Round Pole Adapter (RPA)
| . B .
Length: 21.8"(55.4 cm) H — The RSX features an integral universal mounting s s s
(SPA mount) — ) . L ) ) ) [
L mechanism that allows the luminaire to be mounted === ,’/
A % .. i . . 1 1 p = ~ 1
Width: 13.3"(338cm) | on most existing drill hole patterns. This “no-drill” . L Ct ‘ , L
Fivigfe 3.0" (7.6 cm) Main Body solution provides significant labor savings. An . . IF .
7.2"(18.4 cm) Arm easy-access door on the bottom of mounting arm : : :
i . i . . . E A
gsfht. o 22.01bs (10.0 kg) allows for wiring without opening the electrical . AFRL90 . o AFRR0 \
mount): : \
compartment. A mast arm adaptor, adjustable |
integral slipfitter and other mounting configurations
aresavailable Length: 22.8" (57.9 cm)
. Width: 13.3” (33.8 cm)
Height: 3.0” (7.6 cm) Main Body
7.2" (18.4 cm) Arm
EXAMPLE: RSX1 LED P4 40K R3 MVOLT SPA DDBXD
RSX1LED
RSX1 with Mast Arm Adapter (MA)
RSX1LED 30K 3000K R2 Type 2 Wide MVOLT _ (120V-277V)? SPA Square pole mounting (3.0" min. SQ pole for 1t 90°, 3.5" min. SQ pole for 2, 3, 4 at 90°)
40K 4000K R3 Type 3 Wide HVOLT  (347V-480V)°* RPA Round pole mounting (3.2" min. dia. RND pole for 2, 3, 4 at 90°, 3.0" min. dia. RND pole
SOK SO00K | R3S Type 3 Short XVOLT  (277V-480V)* for 1at90°, 2at 180°, 3t 120°)
R4 Type 4 Wide (use specific voltage for MA Mast arm adaptor (fits 2-3/8" OD horizontal tenon)
R4S Type 4 Short options as noted) I Adjustable slipfitter (fits 2-3/8" 0D tenon) ®
1 120° 27° WBA  Wall bracket " : .
RS Type 5 Wide B 3 ) Lumen Ambient Temperature Electrical Load
R5S Type 5 Short! WBASC  Wall bracket with surface conduit box L
ARR A Front R 240° 480° AASP Adjustable tilt arm square pole mounting ® (LAT) Multipliers
utomotive Front Row : . s Use these factors to determine relative lumen output for
AFRR90  Automotive Front Row AARP Adjustable tilt arm round pole mounting average ambient temperatures from 0-50°C (32-122°F) Performance Package | System Weatts (W) 120v 208V 240V 27V 34V 180V Length: 23.2" (59.1 cm)
Right Rotated AAWB  Adjustable tilt arm with wall bracket ® [l sw 042 025 0.1 019 o on Width: 13.3” (33.8 cm)
AFRL90  Automotive Front Row AAWSC  Adjustable tilt arm wall bracket and surface conduit box ® L 720 0:60 035 030 026 on 015 Height: 3.0" (7.6 cm) Main Body
Left Rotated 0°C 32°F 1.05 & 109W 0.91 0.52 0.45 0.39 031 0.3 i
3.5" (8.9 cm) Arm
59C NF 1.04 P4 133W m 0.64 0.55 0.48 038 027
10°C 50°F 1.03
15 9% 102 . . RSX1 with Adjustable Slipfitter (IS)
20 68 101 Projected LED Lumen Maintenance
2 77°F 1.00
30°C 86°F 0.99 50,000 75,000 100,000
Shipped Installed Shipped Installed DDBXD Dark Bronze 35°C 95°F 0.98 =097 =095 =092
HS House-side shield *Standalone and Networked Sensors/Controls (factory default settings, see table page 9) DBLXD Black 40°C 104°F 097 Values calculated according to IESNA TM-21-11 methodology and valid up to 40°C.
PE Photocontrol, button style * NLTAIR2  night AIR generation 2 14 DNAXD Natural Aluminum 45¢ 3% 096
PEX Phatocontrol external threaded, adjustable *** PIRHN Networked, Bi-Level motion/ambient sensor (for use with NLTAIR2) ¢ DWHXD White ¢ Lo 2%
PER7 Seven-wire twist-lock receptacle only (no controls A DDBTXD  Textured Dark Bronze
(E34 Conduit entry 3/4"NPT (Qty 2) *Note: RIRHN with nLight Air‘ca|‘1 bg u;ed as a standalone or networked solution. Sensor coverage DBLBXD Textured Black
S Single fuse (120,277, 347) patten i affected when luminaire is ilted. DNATXD  Textured Natural Aluminumn
DF Double fuse (208, 240, 480) * DWHGXD  Textured White L h: 20.7" (52.7
7 " th: 20.7" :
SPD20KV 20KV Surge pack (10K standard) Shipped Separately (requires some field assembly) eng B ( cm)
) EGS External glare shield Width: 13.3” (33.8 cm)
FAO Field adjustable output > g ight: 3.0 in Bod
EGRV  Bxtemal glareullvisor (360° around light aperture)” Height: 3.0 (7.6 cm) Main,Bodly
DMG 0-10V dimming extend out back of housing for external ternal glare full visor (360° around light aperture 7.6" (19.3 cm) Arm
o B
control (control ordered separate) BS Bird spikes LITHONIA One Lithonia Way » Conyers, Georgia 30012 » Phone: 1-800-705-SERV (7378) * Lithonia, R%ﬁﬁ’fgéfz%
LIGHTING. ©2018-2019 Acuity Brands Lighting, Inc. Al rights reserved. Page 30f9 ’ LITHONIA
~
COMMERCIAL OUTDOOR Al LIGHTING.
LITHONIA One Lithonia Way s Conyers, Georgia 30012 s Phone: 1-800-705-SERV (7378) o Hithonia RS@’?’%&% COMMERCIAL OUTDOOR
LIGHTING. ©2018-2019 Acuity Brands Lighting, Inc. All rights reserved. Page 10f9
~—
COMMERCIAL OUTDOOR
= NOTES
Accessories 1 Any Type 5 distribution, is not available with WBA. 11 Twistlock photocell ordered and shipped as a separate line item from
Ordered and shipped separately. 2 MVOLT driver operates on any line voltage from 120-277V (50/60 Hz). Acuity Brands Controls. See accessories. Shorting Cap included.
3 HVOLT driver operates on any line voltage from 347-480V (50/60 Hz). Dimming leads capped for future use. .
Ro1HS RSXT House side shild (ncludes 1 sield) 4 XVOLT driver not available with P1 or P2. XVOLT driver operates on 12 For units with option PER7, the mounting must be restricted to +/-
RSXTHSAFRRU RSXT House side shield for AFR rotated optics (includes 1 shield) any line voltage from 277V-480V (50/60 Hz). XVOLT not available with 45° from horizontal aim per ANSI C136.70-2010.
RSVIEGS (INISH)U  Btemalglares e (specy st fusing (SF or DF) and not available with PE or PEX. 13 Two or more of the following options cannot be combined including
9 P 5 Single fuse (SF) requires 120V, 277V or 347V. Double fuse (DF) DMG, PER7, FAQ and PIRHN. L Output
RSXTEGFV (FINISH) U~ External glare ful visor (specify finish) requires 208V, 240V or 480V. 14 Must be ordered with PIRHN. umen Outpu RSX1 with Wall Bracket (WBA
RSXRPA (FINISH) U RSX Universl round pole adaptor plate (specy insh) 6 Maximum tilt is 90° above horizontal. 15 Requires MVOLT or HVOLT. o , Lumen values are from photometric tests performed in accordance with IESNA LM-79-08. Data is considered to be representative of the configurations shown, within the tolerances allowed by Lighting with Wall Bracket ( )
RSKVWBA (FINISH) U RSKWBA wall bracke speciy fnih) g gequ :sel:\r;ﬂéﬁd;ss i;;ccessow 16 ysukst be f”dered with NLTAIR2. For additional information on PIRHN Facts. Contact factory for performance data on any configurations not shown here.
RSXSCB (FINISH) U RSX Surface conduit box (specify finish, for use with WBA, WBA not included) 9 Not available in combination with other light sensing control options 17 Must be ordered with fixture for factory pre-diling.
DLLIZTF1510 Photocel-SSL twist-lock (120-277V) {llowing optins cant b combinec: PE, PEX, PERT, FAO, DMC, 18 Reauee E\:r:!\:;; obe specied x“ﬁ!ﬁ% option Orcerd and
DLL347F1.5 CULJU Photocel-SSL twist-lock (347) 10 Requires 120V, 208, 240V or 277V,
DLL48OF1.5CULJU  Photocell-SSL twist-lock (480V) * to
e Shortingap” R2 6482 i o1 [ 1 7121 1o [ [ 712 T lo [ 1] 3 W
R 6459 1o 2w 7,0% [HEREREE 7.0% 1o [ 2] 1 5
R3S 6631 [HEEERE 7,286 1 lo 2] m 7,286 1ol 2] w ;
R4 6543 1o 2| s 7,189 1ol 2] m 7,189 1ol 2] m |
i i [ 6313 [HENERE 6936 1o [ 1] 13 6936 1o [ 1] 1e |1\ i
RS 6631 3ol 2] m 7,286 3ol 2] m 7,86 302 |
RSS 6807 3 o1 7479 3 o[ 1 [ w 7419 3o [0 [ w
AR 6473 1o [ m 7112 RN A 1o [ [ 3
AFRR90 6535 2 o2 [ w 7179 2 [0 [ 2] w 7179 2 (o[ 2] m
AFRL9O 6,562 2 o[ 1] s 7,210 2 o [ 2] w 7,210 2 (o[ 2] m
R2 8991 2 o[ 1] 94878 2 o [ 1] 135 9878 2 (o[ 1] s
R3 8,959 2 o2 124 9,843 20| [EomN2 137 9883 20012 137 Length: 23.6" (59.9 cm)
R3S 9,198 2 0 7 126 10,106 2 0 2 139 10,106 2 0 2 139 Width: 13.3” (33.8 cm)
R4 9,077 2 0 2 126 9972 2 0 2 139 9,972 2 0 2 139 Height: 3.0” (7.6 cm) Main Body
House Side Shield External Glare Shield External 360 Full Visor 2} 2 o g | 0 L0 E | Gy e L6 8 e A L2l a 8.9 (22:6 e} Arm
[5 9198 4 o[ 2] 18 006 | 4 | 0|2 [ % 006 | 4 | 0| 2 |
RSS 9,443 3 o1 [ m 10374 | 3 [0 |1 [ . 0374 | 3 [ 0 |1 | 4
AR 8979 2 o[ 1] 15 9,865 2 (o [ 1| w 9,865 2 (o [ 1] w
AFRR90 9,064 30 [ 2] 9,959 3 02| 9959 3 (o[ 2] w
AFRL9O 9,102 3 o2 s 10,001 3 o2 w 10,001 3 (o2 ] w
é‘ccis;ories including bullhorns, cross arms and other adpaters are available under the accessories tab at Lithonia's Outdoor Poles and Arms product page. ™~ 808 | 2 | o | 1| m W | 2 |0 | 2| w won | 2 |0 | 2| 1w
ick here to visit Ac w 276 | 2 | 0 | 2 | W | w3 | 2 | o | 2| w9 | wes | 2|0 | 2| 9 s .
- = i S = e TS = i T = RSX1 with Wall Bracket with Surface Conduit Box (WBASC)
Round Tenon Mount - Pole Top Slipfitters R 290 | 2 | 0 | 2| 19 106 | 2 | 0 | 2 | 130 6 | 2 | 0 | 2 | 130
OLEO o W _— RéS 45 | 2 [0 [ 2 [ 14 B707 [ 2 [0 | 2| 126 B707 | 2 | 0 | 2 | 1%
HANDHOLE ORIENTATION 2-38" RPA, AARP A53-5190 4535280 A53-5290 A53-5320 £53-5390 £53-5490 L] B 141002 ] 10 Magr 410121 Ugr {41012 (1%
C 278" AP, AARP AST25-190 AST25-280 AST25-290 AST25320 AST25-390 AST25-490 fo5 B2 |3 1012 |8 Wi | 3 1012 | ue um 13 1042 | 1
i AFR 12,791 2 o[ 1 [ m o3 [ 2 [0 |2 [ 19 o3 | 2 [0 | 2 | 1
T & RPA, AARP AST35-190 AST35-280 AST35-290 AST35-320 AST35-390 AST35-490 AFRR90 93 | 3 | o | 3 | 18 ww | 3 | 0 | 3 | 1o ww | 3 | 0 | 3 | 1m0
) < AFRL9O 2% | 3 | 0 | 2| 18 a1 | 3 [0 | 3] 130 a4 | 3 [ 0 | 3| 130
il Ay Drill/Side Location by Configuration Type R2 uM | 2 [0 [ 2 [ m 647 [ 2 [0 [ 2 | 3 647 | 2 |0 [ 2 | 3
DA - B [ usn | 2 [0 [ 3] m 6360 | 2 |0 | 3 [ 13 6360 | 2 | 0 |3 [
| i R3S 15,287 2 0] 2 115 16,796 2|0 2 126 16,79 2 0 2 126 3/4" NPT taps with plugs - Qty (4) provided
Y .
Y R4 1508 | 2 | 0 | 3] m 654 | 2 | 0 | 3 | 15 657 | 2 | 0 [ 3 [ 15
i il RaS sse | 2 | 0 | 2 | 109 15991 2 (o[ 2] m 15,991 2 o[ 2] m
A Head Location Side B Side B&D Side B& C Round Pole Only |  SideB, (&D Side A, B, C&D RS 15,287 4 0 2 15 16,796 4 0 2 126 16,796 4 0 2 126
Handhole #8 Drill DM19AS DM28AS DM29AS DM32AS DM39AS DM49AS RSS 15,693 410 2 18 17,42 410 | 2 | 130 17,242 40 |2 1%
AR s |2 [0 2] m 1635 | 2 [0 | 2 | 1B 395 | 2 | 0 | 2 | 3
L. AFRR90 15,065 3 0 3 113 16,551 3 0 3 124 16,551 3 0|3 124 Length: 25.3" (64.3 cm)
RSX POLE DRILLING RSX1 - Luminaire EPA ARRL90 B8 | 3 | 0 | 3| m 660 | 3 | 0 | 3 | 15 w660 | 3 | 0 | 3] s Width: 13.3" (33.8 cm)
Template #8  Top of Pole *Includes luminaire and integral mounting arm. Other tenons, arms, brackets or other accessories are not included in this EPA data. Height: 3.0” (7.6 cm) Main Body
9.2” (23.4 cm) Arm
0.563"
= A" T L oL gl D T T 7
. ¥
2650 BPes SPA - Square Pole Adaptor 057 | 103 105 152 136 203 131 17 226
RPA - Round Pole Adaptor 0° | 062 | 108 115 162 146 213 136 18 236
MA - Mast Arm Adaptor 049 | 09 089 136 12 187 123 154 21
RSX STANDARD ARM & ADJUSTABLE ARM 0° | 057 | 183 1.05 152 136 203 131 17 226
10° | 068 | 134 133 2 174 264 135 203 N
w0 | 087 | N 173 256 226 30 175 262 349
30° 124 219 23 3 287 436 249 373 497
15~ Integral Slipfitter w0 | 181 | 268 298 385 368 530 362 5.43 724
ARSP/AARP - Adjustable g a1 | 344 42 408 577 42 633 8.44
Am Square/Round Pole s | 231 | 3w 3 45 444 626 462 694 925
60° | 271 | 366 438 521 5.15 724 543 8.14 10.86
70° | 278 | 3% 454 567 547 791 552 8.7 1.03
80° | 276 | 418 462 597 576 831 551 8.7 .03
90° | 273 | 425 464 61 591 847 545 8.18 1097
Li
o ) horia Kol Area LED LITHONIA One Lithonia Way » Conyers, Georgia 30012 * Phone: 1-800-705-SERV (7378) »
LITHON/IA One Lithonia Way » Conyers, Georgia 30012 * Phone: 1-800-705-SERV (7378) » ’ ’
Rev. 11/30/20 LIGHTING, ©2018-2019 Acuity Brands Lighting, Inc. All rights reserved, ) ) )
LIGHTING. ©2018:2019 Acuity Brands Lighting, Inc. Al ights reserved. bagez 09 i LITHONIA One Lithonia Way * Conyers, Georgia 30012 » Phone: 1-800-705-SERV (7378) »
~ COMMERCIAL OUTDOOR LIGHTING. ©2018-2019 Acuity Brands Lighting, Inc. All rights reserved
COMMERCIAL OUTDOOR ~
COMMERCIAL OUTDOOR

Lithonia RSX1 Area LED
Rev. 11/30/20
Page 5 of 9

RSX1 with Adjustable Tilt Arm - Square or Round Pole (AASP or AARP)

Length: 25.3” (65.3 cm) AASP
26.3" (66.8 cm) AARP

Width: 13.3" (33.8 cm)

Height: 3.0” (7.6 cm) Main Body
7.2" (18.2 cm) Arm

Notes

> L -

7/8" KO - fits 1/2" NPT water- tight fitting

NOTE:

RPA - Round Pole mount can also be used
to mount on square poles by omitting the
round pole adapter plate shown here.

AASP: Requires 3.0" min. square pole for 1 at 90°. Requires 3.5" min. square pole for mounting 2, 3, 4 at 90°.

AARP: Requires 3.2" min. dia. round pole for 2, 3, 4 at 90°. Requires 3.0" min. dia. round pole for mounting 1 at 90°, 2 at 180°, 3 at 120°.

RSX1 with Adjustable Tilt Arm with Wall Bracket (AAWB)

M f
Y = "
i: =

\

= L

Length: 27.1" (68.8 cm)

Width: 13.3" (33.8 cm)

Height: 3.0” (7.6 cm) Main Body
8.9” (22.6 cm) Arm

7/8" KO - fits 1/2" NPT water- tight fitting

Wall Bracket (WBA) Mounting Detail

2035 Vista Parkway, West Palm Beach, FL 33411

Phone No. 866.909.2220 www.wginc.com

Cert No. 6091 - LB No. 7055

Lithonia RSX1 Area LED

LITHON/IA One Lithonia Way ¢ Conyers, Georgia 30012 * Phone: 1-800-705-SERV (7378) Rev. 11/30/20
LIGKHTING. ©2018-2019 Acuity Brands Lighting, Inc. All rights reserved Page 7 of 9
~—
COMMERCIAL OUTDOOR

RSX1 with Adjustable Tilt Arm with Wall Bracket and Surface Conduit Box (AAWSC)

‘ L

N

.0/

3/4" NPT taps
with plugs - Qty (4)
provide

Length: 28.8" (73.2 cm)
Width: 13.3” (33.8 cm)

Height: 3.0" (7.6 cm) Main Body

9.2" (23.4 cm) Arm

Additional Reference Drawings

36—

Option CE34 Reference Dimensions

Automotive Front Row - Rotated Optics (AFRL90/R90)

AFRR90

AFRL90

[BE==\

(Example: 2@180 - arrows indicate direction of light exiting the luminaire)

"’ LITHONIA
B L /GHTING
COMMERCIAL OUTDOOR

One Lithonia Way ® Conyers, Georgia 30012 * Phone: 1-800-705-SERV (7378)
© 2018-2019 Acuity Brands Lighting, Inc. All rights reserved

7/8" KO - fits 1/2" NPT water- tight fitting

Lithonia RSX1 Area LED
Rev. 11/30/20
Page 8 of 9

nLight Sensor Coverage Pattern

Top

BY

REVISIONS

DATE |DESCRIPTION

NO.

| Dimmed State High Level Photocell Dwell Time Ramp-up Time Ramp-down Time
Option | (unoccupied) (when occupied) | Operation | (occupancy time delay) | (from unoccupied to occupied) | (from occupied to unoccupied)
NLTAIR2PIRHN | Approx. 30% Output | 100% Output | Enabled @ 1.5FC | 7.5 minutes | 3 seconds 5 minutes

*Note: NLTAIR2 PIRHN default settings including photocell set-point, high/low dim rates, and occupancy sensor time delay are all configurable using the Clairity Pro App.

Sensor coverage pattern shown with luminaire at 0°. Sensor coverage pattern is affected when luminaire is titled.

FEATURES & SPECIFICATIONS

INTENDED USE

The RSX LED area family is designed to provide a long-lasting, energy-efficient solution for the one-
for-one replacement of existing metal halide or high pressure sodium lighting. The RSX1 delivers 7,000
10 17,000 lumens and is ideal for replacing 70W to 400W HID pole-mounted luminaires in parking lots
and other area lighting applications.

CONSTRUCTION

The RSX LED area luminaire features a rugged die-cast aluminum main body that uses heat-
dissipating fins and flow-through venting to provide optimal thermal management that both
enhances LED performance and extends component life. Integral “no drill” mounting arm allows
the luminaire to be mounted on existing pole drillings, greatly reducing installation labor. The
light engines and housing are sealed against moisture and environmental contaminants to IP66
The low-profile design results in a low EPA, allowing pole optimization. All mountings are rated for
minimum 1.5 G vibration load per ANSI C136.31. 3G Mountings: Include SPA, RPA, MA, IS, AASP,
and AARP rated for 3G vibration. 1.5G Mountings: Include WBA, WBASC, AAWB and AAWSC
rated for 1.5G vibration.

FINISH

Exterior parts are protected by a zinc-infused Super Durable TGIC thermoset powder coat finish
that provides superior resistance to corrosion and weathering. A tightly controlled multi-stage
process ensures superior adhesion as well as a minimum finish thickness of 3 mils. The result is a
high-quality finish that is warrantied not to crack or peel.

OPTICS

Precision acrylic refractive lenses are engineered for superior application efficiency, distributing
the light to where it is needed most. Available in short and wide pattern distributions including
Type 2, Type 3, Type 35, Type 4, Type 4S, Type 5, Type 55, AFR (Automotive Front Row), and AFR
rotated AFRR90 and ARFLS0.

ELECTRICAL

Light engine(s) configurations consist of high-efficacy LEDs mounted on metal-core circuit boards
and aluminum heat sinks to maximize heat dissipation. Light engines are IP66 rated. LED lumen
maintenance is >L92/100,000 hours. CCTs of 3000K, 4000K and 5000K (minimum 70 CRI) are
available. Class 1 electronic drivers ensure system power factor >90% and THD <20%. Easily
senviceable 10kV surge protection device meets a minimum Category C Low operation (per ANSI/
IEEE C62.41.2)

STANDARD CONTROLS
The RSX LED area luminaire has a wide assortment of control options. Dusk to dawn controls
include MVOLT and 347V button-type photocells and NEMA twist-lock photocell receptacles.

nLIGHT AIR CONTROLS

information about nLight Air can be found

INSTALLATION

LISTINGS

qualified. Please check the DLC Qualified Products List at
which versions are qualified

'WARRANTY
S-year limited warranty. Complete warranty terms located at

Specifications subject to change without notice.

LITHON/IA One Lithonia Way » Conyers, Georgia 30012 » Phone: 1-800-705-SERV (7378) »
LIGHTING. ©2018-2019 Acuity Brands Lighting, Inc. Allrights reserved.
COMMERCIAL OUTDOOR

g,

\\\\\Q\i;?\(}' ..R..EMMZE;;}/{’/

N o Z
SEDERNMCLLE SN
Sxi No.86716 = 4
= *
Z g% STATE OF ‘ac
20" RNV
7 RS
$)

SZOTTIERIRAN

The RSX LED area luminaire is also available with nLight® AIR for the ultimate in wireless
control. This powerful controls platform provides out-of-the-box basic motion sensing

with photocontrol functionality and is suitable for mounting heights up to 40 feet. No
commissioning is required when using factory default settings that provide basic stand-alone
motion occupancy dimming that is switched on and off with a built-in photocell. See chart
above for motion sensor default out-of-box settings. For more advanced wireless functionality,
such as group dimming, nLight AIR can be commissioned using a smartphone and the easy-to-
use CLAIRITY app. nLight AIR equipped luminaries can be grouped, resulting in motion sensor
and photocell group response without the need for additional equipment. Scheduled dimming
with motion sensor over-ride can be achieved when used with the nlight Eclypse. Additional

Integral “no-drill” mounting arm allows for fast, easy mounting using existing pole drillings.
Select the “SPA” option for square poles and the “RPA" option to mount to round poles. Note,
the RPA mount can also be used for mounting to square poles by omitting the RPA adapter
plate. Select the “MA" option to attach the luminaire to a 2 3/8" horizontal mast arm or the
“IS" option for an adjustable slipfitter that mounts on a 2 3/8" OD tenon. The adjustable
slipfitter has an integral junction box and offers easy installation. Can be tilted up to 90° above
horizontal. Additional mountings are available including a wall bracket, adjustable tilt arm for
direct-to-pole and wall and a surface conduit box for wall mount applications.

CSA Certified to meet U.S. and Canadian standards. Suitable for wet locations. Rated for
-40°C minimum ambient. DesignLights Consortium® (DLC) Premium qualified product and
DLC qualified product. Not all versions of this product may be DLC Premium qualified or DLC

to confirm

Note: Actual performance may differ as a result of end-user environment and application.
Allvalues are design or typical values, measured under laboratory conditions at 25 °C.

Lithonia RSX1 Area LED
Rev. 11/30/20
Page 9 of 9

THIS ITEM HAS BEEN DIGITALLY SIGNED
AND SEALD BY:

Date: 2021.03.17

E Marc Remmert 3.5 05.0500'

ON THE DATE ADJACENT TO THE SEAL

PRINTED COPIES OF THIS DOCUMENT ARE
NOT CONSIDERED SIGNED AND SEALED.
THE SIGNATURE MUST BE VERIFIED IN THE
ELECTRONIC DOCUMENTS.

WGI, INC.

2035 VISTA PARKWAY

WEST PALM BEACH, FL 33411

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORIZATION NO. 33574
MARC REMMERT, PE NO. 86716

(s2]
Q
O
Te]
N
&z
O | Z2 | ¥
Z | 2| 0O
2 2 5 E
5199163

DATE

ENGINEER OF RECORD

GOLDEN ROAD
LIGHTING DIAGRAMS

SHEET:
E6.00




Specifications

(itPZA@0°)~ 0.57 ft2(0.05m?) F
. 21.8" (55.4 cm)

Length: (SPA mount)

Width: 13.3"(33.8cm) |

Height: 3.0" (7.6 cm) Main Body

7.2"(18.4 cm) Arm

Weight: 22.0Ibs (10.0 kg)

(SPA mount):

RSX1 LED

Area Luminaire

US Iy

DLC

NIGHTTIME
FRIENDLY

= 82
™ FIXTURE MOUNTED
250" AFG

Introduction

The new RSX LED Area family delivers maximum
value by providing significant energy savings, long
life and outstanding photometric performance at an
affordable price. The RSX1 delivers 7,000 to 17,000
lumens allowing it to replace 70W to 400W HID
luminaires.

The RSX features an integral universal mounting
mechanism that allows the luminaire to be mounted
on most existing drill hole patterns. This “no-drill”
solution provides significant labor savings. An
easy-access door on the bottom of mounting arm
allows for wiring without opening the electrical
compartment. A mast arm adaptor, adjustable
integral slipfitter and other mounting configurations
are available.

EXAMPLE: RSX1 LED P4 40K R3 MVOLT SPA DDBXD

RSX1LED
RSX1LED 30K 3000k R2 Type 2 Wide SPA Square pole mounting (3.0" min. SQ pole for 1t 90°, 3.5" min. SQ pole for 2, 3, 4 at 90°)
R3 Type 3 Wide HVOLT  (347V-480V)°* RPA Round pole mounting (3.2" min. dia. RND pole for 2, 3, 4 at 90°, 3.0" min. dia. RND pole
50K 5000K R3S Type 3 Short XVOLT  (277V-480V)* for 12t90°, 2at 180°, 3 at 120°)
m (use specific voltage for MA Mastarm adaptor (fits 2-3/8" OD horizontal tenon)

R4S Type 4 Short options as noted) I Adjustable slipfitter (fits 2-3/8" 0D tenon) ®

RS Type 5 Wide ! 0 277¢ WBA  Wall bracket"

RS Type 5 Short ! 208° 347° WBASC  Wall bracket with surface conduit box

ARR Automotive Front Row 240° 480° AASP Adjustable tilt arm square pole mounting ®

AFRR90  Automotive Front Row AARP Adjustable tilt arm round pole mounting

Right Rotated AAWB  Adjustable tilt arm with wall bracket ®
AFRL90  Automotive Front Row AAWSC  Adjustable tilt arm wall bracket and surface conduit box ®
Left Rotated
Shipped Installed Shipped Installed DDBXD Dark Bronze
HS House-side shiel *Standalone and Networked Sensors/Controls (factory default settings, see table page 9) DBLXD Black
PE Photocontrol, button style ** NLTAIR2  nLight AIR generation 2 45 DNAXD Natural Aluminum
PEX Phatocontrol external threaded, adjustable *** PIRHN Networked, Bi-Level motion/ambient sensor (for use with NLTAIR2) ¢ DWHXD White
PER7 Seven-wire twist-lock receptacle only (no controls) ' DDBTXD  Textured Dark Bronze
(E34 Conduit entry 3/4"NPT (Qty 2) *Note: PIRHN with nLight Air can be used as a standalone or networked solution. Sensor coverage DBLBXD Textured Black
S Single fuse (120,277, 347) patten i affected when luminaire is ilted. DNATXD  Textured Natural Aluminumn
DF Double fuse (208, 240, 480) * DWHGXD  Textured White
SPD20KV 20KV Surge pack (10K standard) Shipped Separately (requires some field assembly)
FAO Field adjustable output®* EGS External glare shield”
DMG 0-10V dimming extend out back of housing for external EGFY Exteral gare fullvisor (360" around light aperture)
control (control ordered separate) BS Bird spikes 7

"' LITHONIA
LIGHTING.

One Lithonia Way * Conyers, Georgia 30012 » Phone: 1-800-705-SERV (7378)
©2018-2019 Acuity Brands Lighting, Inc. All rights reserved.

Lithonia RSX1 Area LED

Rev. 11/30/20
Page 1 of9

COMMERCIAL OUTDOOR

Accessories
Ordered and shipped separately.

RSXTHS
RSXTHSAFRR U
RSXTEGS (FINISH) U

RSXT House side shild (ncludes 1 shield)
RSXT House side shild for AFR otated aptics (incudes 1 shield)
External gareshield (speify finsh)

NOTES

1 Any Type 5 distribution, is not available with WBA.

2 MVOLT driver operates on any line voltage from 120-277V (50/60 Ha).

3 HVOLT driver operates on any line voltage from 347-480V (50/60 Hz).

4 XVOLT driver not available with P1 or P2. XVOLT driver operates on
any line voltage from 277V-480V (50/60 Hz). XVOLT not available with
fiang (5F of DF) and not avaiable with PE or PEX.

Twistlock photocell ordered and shipped as a separate line item from
Acuity Brands Controls. See accessories. Shorting Cap included.
Dimming leads capped for future use.

For units with option PER?, the mounting must be restricted to +/-
45° from horizontal aim per ANS| C136.10-2010.

Two or more of the following options cannot be combined including

To see complete photometric reports or download .ies files for this product, visit Lithonia Lighting’s

Isofootcandle plots for the RSX1 LED P4 40K. Distances are in units of mounting height (20')

LEGEND & 3

0.1 fc
0.5fc

10fc 4

AFRL9O

Lumen Ambient Temperature

(LAT) Multipliers

Use these factors to determine relative lumen output for
average ambient temperatures from 0-50°C (32-122°F).

0°C 32°F 1.05
5°C NF 1.04
10°C 50°F 1.03
15°C 59F 1.02
20°C 68°F 1.01
25°C 77°F 1.00
30°C 86°F 0.99
35°C 95°F 0.98
40°C 104°F 0.97
45°C 1% 0.96
50°C 122F 0.95

COMMERCIAL OUTDOOR

LITHONIA
LIGHTING.

Luminaire Weight by Mounting Type

RSX1 with Adjustable Tilt Arm - Square or Round Pole (AASP or AARP)

Length: 25.3" (65.3 cm) AASP
26.3" (66.8 cm) AARP

Width: 13.3" (33.8 cm)

Height: 3.0” (7.6 cm) Main Body
7.2" (18.2 cm) Arm

Notes

> L -

7/8" KO - fits 1/2" NPT water- tight fitting

NOTE:
RPA - Round Pole mount can also be used
to mount on square poles by omitting the
round pole adapter plate shown here.

AASP: Requires 3.0" min. square pole for 1 at 90°. Requires 3.5" min. square pole for mounting 2, 3, 4 at 90°.

1z s s 2 01 0 12 3 4 432 1 01 o2 3
SPA 221bs
RPA 241bs
MA 221bs
WeA 25Ibs
WBASC 281bs
s 251bs
Ansp 251bs
AARP 271bs
AAWB 281bs
AWSC 31lbs
I s 0o 12 o3 e RSX1 with Round Pole Adapter (RPA) [ L -
4
R T
2
3
4 W
2
3
AFR * AFRRSD
| Note: RPA — Round Pole mount can also be
used to mount on square poles by omitting
Length: 22.8” (57.9 cm) the round pole adapter plate shown here.
Width: 13.3" (33.8 cm)
Height: 3.0" (7.6 cm) Main Body
7.2" (18.4 cm) Arm
RSX1 with Mast Arm Adapter (MA) e L -
7/16" locking thru bolt/nut provided
Electrical Load
Performance Package | System Watts (W) 120 208V 240 271 3 480V Length: 23.2" (59.1 cm)
. o e = T T em [0 I Widh: 133 (338 )
4] 109w 091 0.52 0.45 039 031 03 Height: 3‘0"” (7.6 em) Main Body
P 133w m 0.64 055 0.48 038 027 3.5" (8.9 cm) Arm
. ) RSX1 with Adjustable Slipfitter (IS) L L 0
Projected LED Lumen Maintenance
T
50,000 75,000 100,000 OJ ;E ; "ﬁ\
>097 >095 >092

Values calculated according to IESNA TM-21-11 methodology and valid up to 40°C.

One Lithonia Way » Conyers, Georgia 30012 » Phone: 1-800-705-SERV (7378)
© 2018-2019 Acuity Brands Lighting, Inc. All rights reserved.

RXIEGFV (FINISH)U ~Extemna gare fullvisor (speify inish) S N by ey 21T or 47V Double fuse (O 10, Pt ol RN, Lumen Output
RSXRPA (FINISH) U RSK Universal round pole acaptor plate specfy fish) 6 Maximum ttt s 90° above horizonta. 15 Requires MVOLT or HVOLT. o Lumen values are from photometric tests performed in accordance with [ESNA LM-79-08. Data is considered to be representative of the configurations shown, ithin the tolerances allowed by Lighting
ROXWBA(FINISH)U. RSXWBA vallbrace specy i) 7 Itmay be ordered as an accessory 16, Mustbeorcere with NLTAR?. For addiinal nformatin on PIRHN Facts, Contast fackoryfor perfortance daca o sy confuestions gt showi here.
8 Requires MVOLT or 347V.
RSXSCB(FINISH) U RSX Surface conduit box (specify finish, for use with WBA, WBA not included) 9 Not available in combination with other light sensing control options 17 Must be ordered with fixture for factory pre-diling.
DLUZZFTSI Photocell-SL twistlock (120-277V) {ellowing opions omr be combine P, PEX, PR, FAO, MG, 10 Reautes e o e seciid il PER7 cpto, Ordreand
DLL3ATF15CULIU  Photocel-SSL wist-lock (347V) * 10 Requires 120, 208V, 280 or 277V.
DLLASOF 1.5CULJU  Photocel-SSL wist-lock (480V) *
RHORSKD Shohan® R2 6482 1o 1] e 7121 1o [0 [ 712 T lo [
[ 6459 "o 2w 7,0% 1o [ 2 [ w 7,0% 1o [ 2 [ w
R3S 6631 o[ w 7,286 1o 2] m 7,286 Tlo 2] m
R4 6543 1o 2] s 7,189 1o [ 2 [ m 7,189 1o [ 2 [ m
5 i R4S 6313 1o [0 6,936 1[0 [ 1 [ 136 6,936 1o [ 1] 136
RS 6631 3 o2 [ w 7,286 3 [0 [ 2 [ s 7,286 3 (o[ 2|
RSS 6807 3 (o [0 [ 0w 7479 3 (o [ 1 [ w 7479 3 [0 [ 1 [ w
AR 6473 HENERE 7 1o [ [ w A 1o [ [
AFRR90 6535 202w 7179 2 [0 [ 2] w 7179 20 2| m
AFRLSO 6,562 2 [0 [ 1 [ m 7210 2 [0 [ 2| w 7,210 2 02| m
R2 8991 2 o[ 1 [ m 9478 2 [ o [ 1 [ w5 94878 2 o[ 1] w5
R 8959 2 [0 [ 2| m 9843 2 [0 |2 | w 9843 2 [0 |2 | w
R3S 9,198 2 o[ 2] 1 0006 | 2 [ o [ 2 [ 1 006 | 2 | 0 | 2 | 139
[ 9077 2 [ o[ 2] m 9972 2 [0 [ 2| w 9972 2 [0 [ 2| 19
. " ’ . R4S 8757 1o 2] m 962 2 [ o[ 2] 1 9622 2 (o[ 2] 1
House Side Shield External Glare Shield External 360 Full Visor P2 2 = S e ST L e R
RSS 9443 3 o[ 1 [ m 0374 | 3| 0 [ 1| 0374 | 3 [0 [ 1| w
AR 8979 2 [ o [ 1 [ w5 9,865 2 [0 |1 [ m 9,865 2 [0 [ 1| w
AFRR90 9,064 302 [ m 9,959 B0 0 9959 3 02| w
o _ . . o AFRLSO 9,102 3 o 2| ws 10001 3 [0 [ 2| w oo | 3 [0 [ 2| w
Accessories including bullhorns, cross arms and other adpaters are available under the accessories tab at Lithonia's Outdoor Poles and Arms product page. R 12,808 2 1o | 1 7 14072 2 o | 2 19 14072 210 | 2 19
Click here to visit A w 76 | 2 |0 | 2 | 1 | wes | 2 | o | 2| m | e | 2|0 | 2| w
R3S B4 | 2 [0 [ 2| m 37 | 2 |0 | 2| m w3 | 2 [0 [ 2| m
Round Tenon Mount - Pole Top Slipfitters R4 12,930 2 | o0 | 2 19 14,206 2 | 0 | 2 130 14,206 2|0 | 2 130
HANDHOLE ORIENTATION W - R4S 245 | 2 [0 | 2| ma B7 | 2 |0 [ 2 | 16 B07 | 2 [0 [ 2|
2.3 RPA, AARP AS3-5190 £53-5280 £53-5290 2535320 535390 2535490 RS 13104 | 4 ] 0|2 | 20 14397 41012 @ M7 | 4]0 ]2 | 1
C 278" AP, AARP AST25-190 AST25-280 AST25-290 AST25320 AST25-390 AST25-490 L B2 L3 012 B um_| 3 10 12| 1 My |3 1012 | W
. AFR 9 [ 2 [ o [ 1 [ w o3 | 2 | 0 [ 2 | m o3 | 2 [0 [ 2 | w
T - P, AARP AST35-190 AST35-280 AST35-290 AST35-320 AST35-390 AST35-490 AFRROD e | 3 | o | 3| s ww |3 | o0 | 3| 1% wiw | 3 |0 | 3 | m
) < AFRLSO 297 [ 3 [ o[ 2| m war |3 [0 [ 3] mo w7 [ 3 [0 [ 3] w0
. A A 8 Drill/Side Location by Configuration Type R2 uM | 2 [0 [ 2 [ m 647 | 2 [0 |2 | 647 | 2 |0 [ 2 | 3
ae it [ 80 | 2 [0 |3 | m 6360 | 2 | 0 [ 3 [ 6360 | 2 | 0 |3 [
N 9 - -— -i Y ! -_I_- R3S 1587 | 2 | 0 | 2 | 15 67% | 2 | 0 | 2 | 16 679 | 2 | 0 [ 2 | 16
w2 R4 05 | 2 |0 | 3| m 654 | 2 |0 |3 | s 657 | 2 | 0 [ 3 [ 15
< - — RS 54 | 2 | o [ 2 | 109 1 | 2 [0 [ 2 | m 59 | 2 |0 [ 2| m
A Head Location Side B Side B&D Side B&C Round Pole Only |  SideB, C&D Side A, B, C&D RS 15,287 i 0 2 15 16,796 4 0 2 126 16,796 4 0 2 126
Handhole #8 Drill DM19AS DM28AS DM29AS DM32AS DM39AS DM49AS RSS 15,693 4 10 ]2 118 1724 4 10 ]2 ] 10 17,242 4 10 2] 1
AFR “m | 2 [0 [ 2| m 635 | 2 |0 | 2 | 3 635 | 2 | 0 | 2| 3
L. AFRR9 065 | 3 |0 | 3| m 6551 | 3 | 0 |3 | m 6551 | 3 | o [ 3|
RSX POLE DRILLING RSX1 - Luminaire EPA AFRL90 15,128 3 | 0| 3 | ma 16,621 3 0|3 | w5 16,621 3 | o |3 | 15
Template #8 Top of Pole *Includes luminaire and integral mounting arm. Other tenons, arms, brackets or other accessories are not included in this EPA data.
0.563"
— e Ll PR g S T 7
0.400"
@PLCS)
SPA - Square Pole Adaptor 057 | 103 105 15 136 203 131 17 226
RPA-RoundPoleAdaptor  0° | 062 | 108 115 162 146 213 136 18 236
MA - Mast Arm Adaptor 049 | 095 089 136 12 187 13 154 21
RSX STANDARD ARM & ADJUSTABLE ARM 0° | 057 | 1m 1.05 152 136 203 131 17 226
10° | 068 | 134 13 2 174 264 135 203 wn
w0 | 08 | n 13 256 226 | 34 175 262 349
300 | 124 | 219 23 321 287 436 249 373 497
1S- Integral Stpfitter 400 181 | 268 298 385 368 530 362 543 724
ARSP/AARP - Adjustable | an | 2w 344 42 408 577 42 633 8.4
Arm Square/Round Pole 50 | 231 | 307 30 452 o 626 46 694 925
6° | 271 | 366 438 521 515 724 58 8.14 10.86
700 | 278 | 39 454 567 547 791 552 827 11.03
8° | 276 | 418 462 597 576 | 831 551 827 1.03
90° | 213 | 425 464 611 591 847 545 8.18 10.97
One Lithonia Way » Conyers, Georgia 30012  Phone: 1-800-705-SERV (7378) »
LITHONIA One Lithonia Way * Conyers, Georgia 30012 » Phone: 1-800-705-SERV (7378) Hionta ot drea e ’ Z;ngg ° zms,zoWAcu.é Brands ilghlmg, e, Al tights reserved e
LIGHTING. © 20182019 Acuity Brands Lighting, Inc. All rights reserved. Page 209 ~
~ COMMERCIAL OUTDOOR
COMMERCIAL OUTDOOR

Li

RSX1 with Adjustable Tilt Arm with Wall Bracket (AAWB)

M f
M= T "
t] .

\‘

\\; L

ﬂ 7/8" KO - fits 1/2" NPT water- tight fitting

F’E

Length: 20.7" (52.7 cm)
Width: 13.3" (33.8 cm)
Height: 3.0” (7.6 ¢cm) Main Body

7.6" (19.3 cm) Arm
Lithonia RSX1 Area LED

Rev. 11/30/20
Page 30f9 LITHONIA One Lithonia Way  Conyers, Georgia 30012 * Phone: 1-800-705-SERV (7378) *
LIGHTING. ©2018-2019 Acuity Brands Lighting, Inc. All rights reserved.
~—
COMMERCIAL OUTDOOR

RSX1 with Wall Bracket (WBA)

Wall Bracket (WBA) Mounting Detail

Length: 23.6" (59.9 cm)

Width: 13.3" (33.8 cm)

Height: 3.0” (7.6 cm) Main Body
8.9 (22.6 cm) Arm

RSX1 with Wall Bracket with Surface Conduit Box (WBASC)

3/4" NPT taps with plugs - Qty (4) provided

Surface Conduit Box (SCB) Mounting Detail

Length: 25.3" (64.3 cm) o
Width: 13.3" (33.8 cm) o

Height: 3.0” (7.6 cm) Main Body
9.2” (23.4 cm) Arm

Lithonia RSX1 Area LED

LITHON/A One Lithonia Way e Conyers, Georgia 30012 * Phone: 1-800-705-SERV (7378) Rev. 11/30/20
LIGHTING. ©2018-2019 Acuity Brands Lighting, Inc. All rights reserved. Page b of 9
COMMERCIAL OUTDOOR

Length: 27.1" (68.8 cm)

Width: 13.3" (33.8 cm)

Height: 3.0” (7.6 cm) Main Body
8.9” (22.6 cm) Arm

Lithonia RSX1 Area LED

AARP: Requires 3.2" min. dia. round pole for 2, 3, 4 at 90°. Requires 3.0" min. dia. round pole for mounting 1 at 90°, 2 at 180°, 3 at 120°.

7/8" KO - fits 1/2" NPT water- tight fitting

Wall Bracket (WBA) Mounting Detail

Rev. 11/30/20
Page 5 of 9

Lithonia RSX1 Area LED
Rev. 11/30/20
Page 7 of 9

One Lithonia Way * Conyers, Georgia 30012 * Phone: 1-800-705-SERV (7378) *
©2018-2019 Acuity Brands Lighting, Inc. All rights reserved!

"' LITHONIA
LIGHTING.

COMMERCIAL OUTDOOR

RSX1 with Adjustable Tilt Arm with Wall Bracket and Surface Conduit Box (AAWSC)
L

@2@_\“

3/4" NPT taps
with plugs - Qty (4)
provide

Length: 28.8" (73.2 cm)

Width: 13.3” (33.8 cm)

Height: 3.0" (7.6 cm) Main Body
9.2" (23.4 cm) Arm

Additional Reference Drawings

N
i
b — Option CE34 Reference Dimensions
A ive Front Row - R d Optics (AFRL90/R90)

AFRR90

AFRL90

(Example: 2@180 - arrows indicate direction of light exiting the luminaire)

One Lithonia Way ® Conyers, Georgia 30012 * Phone: 1-800-705-SERV (7378)
© 2018-2019 Acuity Brands Lighting, Inc. All rights reserved

"’ LITHONIA
B L /GHTING

COMMERCIAL OUTDOOR

7/8" KO - fits 1/2" NPT water- tight fitting

Lithonia RSX1 Area LED
Rev. 11/30/20
Page 8 of 9

nLight Sensor Coverage Pattern

Side
Top
| Dimmed State High Level Photocell Dwell Time R: Time Ramp-down Time
Option | (unoccupied) (when occupied) | Operation | (occupancy time delay) | (from unoccupied to occupied) | (from occupied to unoccupied)
NLTAIR2PIRHN | Approx. 30% Output | 100% Output | Enabled @ 1.5FC | 7.5 minutes | 3 seconds 5 minutes

*Note: NLTAIR2 PIRHN default settings including photocell set-point, high/low dim rates, and accupancy sensor time delay are all configurable using the Clairity Pro App.

Sensor coverage pattern shown with luminaire at 0°. Sensor coverage pattern is affected when luminaire is titled.

FEATURES & SPECIFICATIONS

INTENDED USE

The RSX LED area family is designed to provide a long-lasting, energy-efficient solution for the one-
for-one replacement of existing metal halide or high pressure sodium lighting. The RSX1 delivers 7,000
10 17,000 lumens and is ideal for replacing 70W to 400W HID pole-mounted luminaires in parking lots
and other area lighting applications.

CONSTRUCTION

The RSX LED area luminaire features a rugged die-cast aluminum main body that uses heat-
dissipating fins and flow-through venting to provide optimal thermal management that both
enhances LED performance and extends component life. Integral “no drill” mounting arm allows
the luminaire to be mounted on existing pole drillings, greatly reducing installation labor. The
light engines and housing are sealed against moisture and environmental contaminants to IP66
The low-profile design results in a low EPA, allowing pole optimization. All mountings are rated for
minimum 1.5 G vibration load per ANSI C136.31. 3G Mountings: Include SPA, RPA, MA, IS, AASP,
and AARP rated for 3G vibration. 1.5G Mountings: Include WBA, WBASC, AAWB and AAWSC
rated for 1.5G vibration.

FINISH

Exterior parts are protected by a zinc-infused Super Durable TGIC thermoset powder coat finish
that provides superior resistance to corrosion and weathering. A tightly controlled multi-stage
process ensures superior adhesion as well as a minimum finish thickness of 3 mils. The result is a
high-quality finish that is warrantied not to crack or peel.

OPTICS

Precision acrylic refractive lenses are engineered for superior application efficiency, distributing
the light to where it is needed most. Available in short and wide pattern distributions including
Type 2, Type 3, Type 3, Type 4, Type 4S, Type 5, Type 55, AFR (Automotive Front Row), and AFR
rotated AFRR90 and ARFLS0.

ELECTRICAL

Light engine(s) configurations consist of high-efficacy LEDs mounted on metal-core circuit boards
and aluminum heat sinks to maximize heat dissipation. Light engines are IP66 rated. LED lumen
maintenance is >L92/100,000 hours. CCT's of 3000K, 4000K and 5000K (minimum 70 CRI) are
available. Class 1 electronic drivers ensure system power factor >90% and THD <20%. Easily
serviceable 10kV surge protection device meets a minimum Category C Low operation (per ANSI/
IEEE C62.41.2).

STANDARD CONTROLS

The RSX LED area luminaire has a wide assortment of control options. Dusk to dawn controls
include MVOLT and 347V button-type photocells and NEMA twist-lock photocell receptacles.

"' LITHONIA
LIGHTING.

COMMERCIAL OUTDOOR

One Lithonia Way » Conyers, Georgia 30012 » Phone: 1-800-705-SERV (7378)
©2018-2019 Acuity Brands Lighting, Inc. Allrights reserved!

i

nLIGHT AIR CONTROLS

The RSX LED area luminaire is also available with nLight® AIR for the ultimate in wireless
control. This powerful controls platform provides out-of-the-box basic motion sensing

with photocontrol functionality and is suitable for mounting heights up to 40 feet. No
commissioning is required when using factory default settings that provide basic stand-alone
motion occupancy dimming that is switched on and off with a built-in photocell. See chart
above for motion sensor default out-of-box settings. For more advanced wireless functionality,
such as group dimming, nLight AIR can be commissioned using a smartphone and the easy-to-
use CLAIRITY app. nLight AIR equipped luminaries can be grouped, resulting in motion sensor
and photocell group response without the need for additional equipment. Scheduled dimming
with motion sensor over-ride can be achieved when used with the nlight Eclypse. Additional
information about nLight Air can be found

INSTALLATION

Integral “no-drill” mounting arm allows for fast, easy mounting using existing pole drillings.
Select the “SPA” option for square poles and the “RPA" option to mount to round poles. Note,
the RPA mount can also be used for mounting to square poles by omitting the RPA adapter
plate. Select the “MA" option to attach the luminaire to a 2 3/8" horizontal mast arm or the
“IS" option for an adjustable slipfitter that mounts on a 2 3/8" OD tenon. The adjustable
slipfitter has an integral junction box and offers easy installation. Can be tilted up to 90° above
horizontal. Additional mountings are available including a wall bracket, adjustable tilt arm for
direct-to-pole and wall and a surface conduit box for wall mount applications.

LISTINGS

CSA Certified to meet U.S. and Canadian standards. Suitable for wet locations. Rated for

-40°C minimum ambient. DesignLights Consortium® (DLC) Premium qualified product and
DLC qualified product. Not all versions of this product may be DLC Premium qualified or DLC
qualified. Please check the DLC Qualified Products List at to confirm
which versions are qualified

'WARRANTY
S-year limited warranty. Complete warranty terms located at

Note: Actual performance may differ as a result of end-user environment and application.
Allvalues are design or typical values, measured under laboratory conditions at 25 °C.
Specifications subject to change without notice.

Lithonia RSX1 Area LED
Rev. 11/30/20
Page 9 of 9

1y,

2035 Vista Parkway, West Palm Beach, FL 33411

Phone No. 866.909.2220 www.wginc.com

Cert No. 6091 - LB No. 7055

BY

REVISIONS

DATE |DESCRIPTION

NO.

(s2]
Q
O
Te]
N
&z
O | Z2 | ¥
Z | 2| 0O
2 2 5 E
5199163

DATE

ENGINEER OF RECORD

THIS ITEM HAS BEEN DIGITALLY SIGNED

N s . 7, AND SEALD BY:
S T\CE Ngé:-. ~
Sui No.B6716 = 42 Date:
= : = Marc Remmert2021.03.17
ER STATE OF i 13:02:14-05'00'
% S
2O S
’/,/ \\\\ ON THE DATE ADJACENT TO THE SEAL

SZOTTIERIRAN

PRINTED COPIES OF THIS DOCUMENT ARE
NOT CONSIDERED SIGNED AND SEALED.
THE SIGNATURE MUST BE VERIFIED IN THE
ELECTRONIC DOCUMENTS.

WGI, INC.

2035 VISTA PARKWAY

WEST PALM BEACH, FL 33411

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORIZATION NO. 33574
MARC REMMERT, PE NO. 86716

GOLDEN ROAD
LIGHTING DIAGRAMS

SHEET:
E6.01




Plotted: 3/17/2021 11:04:59 AM Saved: 3/17/2021 9:59:55 AM

Christian Bryant P:\210012156.03 Golden Rd Apartments Ent\PLAN\CAD\215601-PLAN-SITE.dwg ----

©9.0' X 18' STANDARD 90 DEGREE PARKING DETAIL
NOTES:

- ALL DIMENSIONS AND NOTES ARE TYPICAL.

SCALE: |" = 16'0"

CURB CUT TO "
HANDICAP RAMP COMPLY WITH ADA r—
WI/ 12:1 SLOPE \ /— AND LOCAL CODEs | SIPEWALK
"PARKING BY DISABLED ~_ 5 ;
T an® S
CONCRETE WHEELSTOP 30 a4 TYPE "D"
I | CURB
4" BLUE STRIPE 20" O.C. 8
4" WHITE STRIPE /. T:\ , TYP.
4" BLUE STRIPE _/JZ C I "
“ * \—7—/
12' TYP. 9.0 -alh 9.0 Hs’ MIN.
, TYP. TYP.
5'TYP.
20" AISLE WIDTH
:>j :>j TRAFFIC FLOW

QTYPICAL TRASH COMPACTOR SCREENING DETAIL
NOTES:

- ALL DIMENSIONS AND NOTES ARE TYPICAL.

H H N
5& g /IIIIIIIIIIIIIII: | || ///
/ :
: : :
it
18
| v |
: T T T T :J 3(
I
p 3 23' ¥
O R |
N |
A :
H H / H
= H | H
e ] ] T =
.
L H
S AN
_— ~~b

CHAIN LINK FENCE DETAIL

ELEVATION

SCALE: 1" = 16'0"

\
NLCLLLL LT T UL LTV LT

~
N
\

|

I_ L L L L L L LT LT _I

SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

1— 10' MAX. ”
P 1
6'
HEIGHT p
MAX. rd

/y
-
. ./

ZAN

/>\//\\\\ ~ N\

Y /.

Ql‘

a
. 9
5|
@
a

VINYL CHAIN
LINK FENCE

CONCRETE
FOOTER

@8.0' X 16' COMPACT 90 DEGREE PARKING DETAIL
NOTES:

- ALL DIMENSIONS AND NOTES ARE TYPICAL.

SCALE: " = 16'0"

©

4l
SIDEWALK
2.5' OVERHANG TYP.
~§
CONCRETE WHEELSTOP i TYPE "D"
[
4" BLUE STRIPE 20" O.C. — 16' CURS
4" WHITE STRIPE /. RN
4" BLUE STRIPE *L l o
4 L
80 b kemn
TYP.
20' AISLE WIDTH
:>1 :>1 TRAFFIC FLOW
*
™~
N
\/
E : l_ JULCUCUC UL L L L LT LT
£ | //' z |
)IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIE _— _/// E \\

/ £ £ £ .

! s s
IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIITIIII IRERRRRRARRRRRRRA RN RRnnnnnn _J E |

|_= TULULULLULLLLLL LD LU ] ; JIRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRNTTTY

\

\\

=

TYPICAL ENTRANCE SIGN DETAIL

NOTE:
- MAXIMUM | SIGNS PER ENTRANCE
- MAXIMUM 120 S.F. SIGN AREA PER SIGN
- MAXIMUM 8' SIGN HEIGHT
- SIGN ARCHITECTURE TO BE CONSISTENT WITH PROPOSED ARCHITECTURE

SCALE: 3/16" = |'-0"

N
@ XXXXXXXXX @
Comememon] 8'MAX.
\_| Oy
| \

!
S IO
{ . I ,

N g\- . AN
\\f\ RO, .-
o N KGR I ' o
| %f" e Ko Lt NN\ e
SRS ASNK AR - VN ‘0\ X e/ \ﬁ ¥
9 m‘,\iﬁr‘s"\,ikY ‘Ks( (DA i A“lk’}r‘.’l“:‘k'h.!'} k%R h‘:/fuﬁ\ J&r)v‘(:
W \ I\ ) ANE D TR N YA DRI N T IR a8,
s ] ) L L w L L e e M R g My w » ey
ot [ N ot [ (N ot N ot N N o Y O o N N o N N ot N O vt [ N ot N N ot N o N N o O N v N
=l = = =l = = = = = = =l = = = = = = L
J— J— J— J— J— J— J— J— J— J— J— J— J— J— J—
=l=l=l====I==T=I=T= === =SS
-

-------

AmA

e

L | U=

@REIECTED SU-30 TURNING MANEUVER

\
= \
=>

r—

’gw j

oF |
i k—J ’l

\TI ’1

1N\ ,

iy ’l

, | /im |

I

[

| |

| | |

VL ’ '

‘|| I ‘!

T |

S [
e

SCALE: ["=100'

Awel

2035 Vista Parkway, West Palm Beach, FL 33411

Phone No. 866.909.2220 www.wginc.com

Cert No. 6091 - LB No. 7055

>|m|m

m(O|O
%)
Z
o
2]

|
a2 1=<
2 |2

z|S|Z

Qcmi:

=(D|=

o=

|-|m

ol

2ER

QZ(Z

O\_

N

SIS

35e

— N

—|o
O|ls|@a|=|w

ol s | =

= | 8 ¢
H |~ N
g I
o >
Blgl2|2
e ¥
N[ Z | 2| O | w
2138 |2|5|k
S|28|al|o|a
O >
1 <
2 o
L L
o =
3

SHEET:

RP-1



AutoCAD SHX Text
SU-30

AutoCAD SHX Text
AASHTO 2018 (US)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(c) 2021 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SU-30

AutoCAD SHX Text
AASHTO 2018 (US)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(c) 2021 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.


PREPARED BY:

GOLDEN ROAD APARTMENTS Awwel
PRELIMINARY CIVIL ENGINEERING PLANS

CONSULTANTS:

PREPARED FOR:
LANDMARK RESIDENTIAL MANAGEMENT, LLC
4890 W. KENNEDY BOULEVARD, SUITE 240

TAMPA, FL 33609 PROJECT TITLE:

LOCATION MAP SHEET INDEX

GOLDEN ROAD
APARTMENTS

10TH AVE N. & BOUTWELL ROAD
CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FL

CIVIL ENGINEERING PLANS
C-1 COVER SHEET
D e C-2 PRELIMINARY CIVIL ENGINEERING PLANS
PENSACOLA I I . .
}::'.'rf-'ﬁ ' d ENGINEER OF RECORD
al BRIAN P. ARNOLD
‘. / PE# 81294
e L 3/17/2021
KEYWES o ~ e ﬁ::
AN .i;
AN 2
=
. 27
PROJECT LOCATED IN
PERMIT TRACKING SECTION 17 / TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH / RANGE 43 EAST
PERMITTING AGENCY PERMIT NAME PERMIT NUMBER EXPIRATION DATE oo |oae. | oEscriTion:
DRAWN DATE: 3/17/2021
DRAWN BY: GWK
CHECKED BY: BPA
PROJECT #: 2156.03

VERTICAL DATUM: NATIONAL GEODETIC ||

VERTICAL DATUM OF 1929 (NGVD 29) PRELIMINARY CIVIL

ENGINEERING PLANS

HORIZONTAL DATUM: NORTH AMERICAN
DATUM OF 1983, FLORIDA STATE
Know what's helow.

PLANES, EAST ZONE, U.S. FEET (NAD83) Call before you dig. SHEET #: TOTAL SHEETS

C-1 2



AutoCAD SHX Text
O/H

AutoCAD SHX Text
O/H

AutoCAD SHX Text
O/H

AutoCAD SHX Text
O/H

AutoCAD SHX Text
O/H

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAKE CITY


-- Plotted: 3/17/2021 10:58:02 AM Saved: 3/17/2021 10:57:28 AM

Garrett Kiesel P:1210012156.03 Golden Rd Apartments Ent\CIVIL\Design\Drawings\2156.03-CV-BASE.dwg --

v e = |
= | 1006.39’ | N
‘ -~
, \ N <
£
, | | m 83
| | LEGEND e
l:§ | = Dw
NN | = 8 Z 8
20 | | PAVERS BEERS
— . ‘ .
N oS | £ 32
,\5 ~+ | l - 44 - © o
PROPERTY B | CONCRETE PAVEMENT St o o3
LINE (TYP) | | 8 N~
= T I — g. 8 %
. . | STABILIZED SURFACE f@ﬁﬁﬁﬁ 0 25 50 100 > 87
BENCH 17 — , 2 Q=
AREA MNem . - | 195,29 | __d 3%
> 000 . - - — — i
N e oe— A = 4| .,290.00 ASPHALT PAVEMENT SCALE: 1" = 50' 20
/ / G e =t S sl NES08'0TW  220.00° | 3 o
RUCTURE [/ o APARTMENT %ﬂ = -
STRUCTURE / 000G ’ PARTMEN APARTMENT | PROPOSED WATER MAIN w Qe
/ / BUILDING gk | &
/ N PARKx FFE=15.50 FFE=15.50 1
RIP RAP / NGVD ' NGVD =il Ol PROPOSED GRAVITY SEWER S
/ Al
,Jfr' i \T |
RUBBLE\ / / | 1. l Hi, EXFILTRATION | PROPOSED DRAINAGE PIPE s )
R e e I R T e o e s A v o T TS SR aatiS saarre e il | = PROPOSED FORCE MAIN FM
y — ‘ vay| o 1. l\‘
OUTFALL / / / u U *\ ) | EXISTING WATER MAIN —_ — — W —
Vi
7 &l
RCP PIPE 1/ / / f s —— , ol | I EXISTING GRAVITY SEWER —_ — — S —
,f NN AN i 18
/! , 1023 PPN IN Y, NN EXISTING DRAINAGE PIPE — — —D—
CLEAR AND FILL PER LWDD / EhEECgsE) N e e e N W— — — W
E-4 CANAL DESIGN SECTION / y l \ p - - »g | ‘,’; ] EX_FENCE EXISTING FORCE MAIN —_ — —FM —
SOIL EROSION CONTROL ’ Sl FH (TYP) A — XX J &
STABILIZATION ALONG / At o uE I 1 GRAVITY SEWER YARD DRAIN STRUCTURE ®
CANAL BANK (BY EITHER AL = ELECTRIC L NIAN (TYP.) KEAST LANE
SEEDING, OR PEG AND SOD) Vs ] 7 TRANSFORMER 1l @ X ——X——x—— = SANITARY MANHOLE / STORM MANHOLE o O
gl [ (TYP) X — |
- e —l -.\ — )
PROPEogl\E/:ID \ > Y/ 1 *II_' - Ej SANITARY SERVICE /#JF £ \\ \]l? I FIRE HYDRANT / FDC e o
O.W. - Y 15' U-E. ; )
/ /. \ e IO UE (TYP.) : { | , 1 v
/ B a _ : | 1l UNDERGROUND GATE VALVE
. / | B3l aparTmENT : ) 1500 g sToRaeE(V)
Qo W / R D BUILDING i ] by | EXISTING GROUND ELEVATION +17.45
D / ‘ : = |
(ke V0D y | FFE=15.50 il
R Sligs S / It = |
Lar R o Cap, / B i NGVD i FLOW DIRECTION . %
Bk 5 4/\//40 A / | = | 3 | &‘\ Z
76 5 / N SN ELECTRIC I 1L saniTARY EDGE OF WATER E.O.W S
i I g ﬁl T LINE (TYP) ; | _______J /’)k MANHOLE (TYP.) =
/ / M U ’ ; | — _@*?a x | TOP OF BANK TOB 0
/ [ X o
/ : : g I POOL R 5>\\ | Z
PROPOSED / ek SIDEWALK : ) ] il 3
: = ERINS (TYP) // ey P’ \ &J‘ X
3 g [—
- B ' 3 I &
: s i e 18 1 5| GENERAL NOTES ?
SN i Wy Bl o N
! A ; g FDC‘ ) I ill| 1. SIDEWALK MAX SLOPES L
A (TYP) SRS iy }1 EXISTING 2" PVC CROSS SLOPE: 2% MAX ke
1 opev | Eﬂ FORCE MAIN LONGITUDINAL SLOPE: 5% MAX Q
s I IGGINN e N '
L e y ; | il 2. WATER AND SEWER MAINS AND SERVICES TO CLEAR DRAINAGE MANHOLES AND INLETS o
At : 7| APARTMENT : N ' =
el 1 | CLUBHOUSE | BUILDING % E | S ﬁ BY A MINIMUM OF 5'.
| | FFE=15.50 e - SlrEl A
NGVD B I FFEGQ/%‘E’O ] | bl 3. FIRE HYDRANTS SHALL BE A MAXIMUM OF 12 FEET FROM ROAD ACCESS.
: b EXISTING 8" PVC _
: ' H WATER —/ =i Il :‘; Al o WATER MAIN 4. MAINTAIN A 6' CLEAR AREA AROUND ALL FIRE DEPARTMENT CONNECTIONS. o | 82|58
“JMETER&RPZ [, b « ’ | =~ PROPOSED Z|lg|3|® S
(TYP) T | s ><|\‘ 6' FENCE 5. FIRE LINES SHALL BE CERTIFIED IN ACCORDANCE WITH F.S. 633. g(,J N =
i 2Xil) 2
=20 y |y, Nestipl 6. HORIZONTAL PIPE SEPARATION DIMENSIONS ARE FROM WALL TO WALL OF PIPES AND 3
— ' l | STRUCTURES UNLESS NOTED OR EXPLICITLY SHOWN. § > | >
S5 il Blolz|v
,‘g&%; \ | 7. UNLESS CALLED FOR IN THE PLANS, ALL WATER MAINS AND FORCE MAINS SHALL HAVE 36" N1z |20 w
- b ? ok  [ol4—PRIVATE LIFT MIN. COVER. 2| 82|55
- T I — R : -
M D —=r STATION Z
TRASH 3 4%§:{§ ¥ N 8. ALL HANDICAP ACCESSIBLE RAMPS SHALL MEET ALL APPLICABLE LOCAL, STATE, AND ENGINEER OF RECORD
COMPACTOR I I 828 g S WATER SERVICE W— — — w— FEDERAL ACCESSIBILITY GUIDELINES AND REGULATIONS. ANY MODIFICATIONS SHALL BE BRIAN P. ARNOLD
e plelecieslal ol j - 4 TP APPROVED BY THE ENGINEER OF RECORD. HANDICAP PARKING SIGNS SHALL BE PLACED o4 81204
| <.<;‘ ) o — ja= A) BEHIND THE SIDEWALK OR B) ATTACHED TO BUILDING WALLS IN AREAS WHERE A
I {2858 i\ e SIDEWALK AND/OR BUILDING ABUTS THE STALL OR C) OUTSIDE THE TWO (2') FEET
| §I8%8 : STORM (s OVERHANG AREA WHERE WHEEL STOPS ARE NOT PROVIDED.
X— L[ meerave) A e
il T =]
: T —
e = =i
E‘:Qﬂg‘z\ ALL ELEVATIONS REFERENCED HEREIN
I8 % ARE BASED IN THE NATIONAL GEODETIC
SIDEWALK !ﬁ%fm VERTICAL DATUM OF 1929 (NGVD29)
(TYP) ]
= 9 NGVD - 1.52' = NAVD 88
— 1= Pq
APARTMENT ] %
BUILDING St -
FFE=15.50 M TS 10' SEPERATION —— — — FM i
| NGVD ] s
EXISTING | o E
BURIED \ | s . 2
UTILITY | | ﬁ\’zﬁg‘ 4" FORCE MAIN @ n "
| | =l (TYP) - <Zt
| il =
PROPERTY | 1= 20' FIRE ACCESS T T
LINE (TYP) S I, 1 (TYP.) = o
EX. LIFT BUS SHELTER 1 - =
STATION i LANDSCAPE BOUTWELL ROAD 14 5
g BUFFER :
4" X 4" WET I (TYP) (50' R/W) E %
TAP & GV 2 <
- T — — W -2 HEn= I > (ZD
o 7 s EM EM *H—1—15'UE. o) w
— -
6" 4" E R25' \; ' n n >
- 10(2'3,’;\//\5)“' REDUGER  o3* Z R25 DROP CURB l O X EE g >
- — I SAWCUT CLEAN AND FORFIRE | | | "GV(N) O
— /+ 3z MATCHEX. GRADE AcCESs | = | g" SIYU((E)(E) 14 E
| T Z
DIRECTIONAL || J _—— DIRECTIONAL o - Ll <zr"
- —_— =W — — :JNQWQ_W l DRILL " , DRILL D =
- __W———W —_— |\ =" e ' J :
T Y VIS Y o B
= O o
8" X 8" WET b
EXISTING 8" CIP TAP & GV | )
WATER MAIN EXISTING 4" DIP
| 8" X 8" WET FORCE MAIN
[ TAP & GV



AutoCAD SHX Text
O/H

AutoCAD SHX Text
O/H

AutoCAD SHX Text
O/H

AutoCAD SHX Text
O/H

AutoCAD SHX Text
O/H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S01°21'54"W  168.85' (C)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N22°59'34"E  569.27' (C)

AutoCAD SHX Text
S01°21'54"W   488.73' 

AutoCAD SHX Text
1006.39' 

AutoCAD SHX Text
N88°08'01"W  220.00' 

AutoCAD SHX Text
168.00' (D)

AutoCAD SHX Text
278.00' (D)

AutoCAD SHX Text
200.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
17 20

AutoCAD SHX Text
198.29'


BOUNDARY SURVEY

OLDEN ROAD APARTMENTS

SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH, RANGE 43 EAST

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

PARCEL NO. 1: (See Warranty Deed recorded in Official Records Book 8448, Page 874):

That part of Tract 26 and Tract 27, lying North of the 10th Avenue Right-of-Way, Model Land Company's Subdivision, according to the Plat
thereof, as recorded in Plat Book 5, Page 79, of the Public Records of Palm Beach County, Florida.

LESS the East 220 feet of said Tract 27.
AND LESS a parcel of land out of said Tract 26, described as follows:

Commence at the Southeast corner of Tract 27 of said Subdivision and go in a Westerly direction along the South line of said Tract 27 and
Tract 26, a distance of 450.0 feet to a point; thence turn an angle of 90° from East to North and going a distance of 15.0 feet to a point in
the North Right-of-Way of 10th Avenue North, said point being the POINT OF BEGINNING; thence continue along the same line a
distance of 300.0 feet to a point; thence turning an angle of 90° South to West and going a distance of 278.0 feet to a point in the Easterly
Right-of-Way line of Canal E-4 (Keller Canal); thence turn an angle of 111° 11' 07" from East to South and proceed along said Canal E-4
Right-of-Way, a distance of 321.74 feet to a point in the North Right-of-Way line of 10th Avenue North, a distance of 394.26 feet to the
POINT OF BEGINNING.

AND LESS AND EXCEPT those portions of Tracts 26 and 27 lying within 10th Avenue North described in Official Records Book 367, Page
619 and in Official Records Book 1269, Page 272, both of the Public Records of Palm Beach County, Florida.

PARCEL NO. 2: (See Statutory Warranty Deed recorded in Official Records Book 8750, Page 1450):

A parcel of land located in Tract 4 of the Model Land Company's Subdivision of Section 20, Township 44 South, Range 43 East, as
recorded in Plat Book 5, Page 79, of the Public Records of Palm Beach County, Florida, described as follows:

Begin at the Southeast corner of Tract 4; thence run Westerly along the South line of said Tract, a distance of 470 feet to a point; thence
run North parallel with the East line of said Tract 4, a distance of 100 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING and the Southeast corner of the
Tract herein conveyed; thence continue North, a distance of 88.62 feet, more or less, to a point; thence run West on a line parallel with the
North line of said Tract 4 to the intersection of the East Right-of-Way line of Lake Worth Drainage District Canal (also known as the Keller
Canal); thence run in a Southwesterly direction along the Easterly Right-of-Way of said canal to a point, said point being the Northwest
corner of a tract of land heretofore deeded to Max M. Foster and wife, from K.R. Barker and wife, as recorded in Deed Book 1076, Page
171, of the Public Records of Palm Beach County, Florida, dated December 8, 1954; thence run East along the North property line of the
above described tract to the POINT OF BEGINNING of the tract herein conveyed.

TOGETHER WITH the West 20 feet of the East 490 feet of the South 100 feet of Tract 4, LESS the South 20 feet thereof.
PARCEL NO. 3: (See Statutory Warranty Deed recorded in Official Records Book 8750, Page 1450):

Beginning at a point 20 feet North of the South line of Tract 4 and 395 feet West of the East line of Tract 4, Section 20, Township 44 South,
Range 43 East, for a POINT OF BEGINNING; thence run North on a line parallel to the East line of said Tract 4, a distance of 168 feet to a
point; thence run West on a line parallel to the South line of said Tract 4, a distance of 75 feet to a point; thence run South on a line parallel
to the East line of said Tract 4, a distance of 168 feet to a point; thence run East on a line parallel to the South line of said Tract 4, a
distance of 75 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING.

PARCEL NO. 4: (See Statutory Warranty Deed recorded in Official Records Book 8750, Page 1450):

BEGINNING at a point in the South line of Tract 4, Section 20, Township 44 South, Range 43 East, Palm Beach County, Florida, which
point is 490 feet Westerly from the Southeast corner of said Tract 4; thence running Northerly parallel to the East line of said Tract 4, a
distance of 100 feet to a point; thence Westerly parallel to the South line of Tract 4 to the East Right-of-Way line of Keller's Canal; thence
Southwesterly along the said Easterly Right-of-Way line of said canal to an iron pipe in the South line of Tract 4; thence Easterly, a
distance of 100.64 feet along said South line of Tract 4, to the POINT OF BEGINNING.

PARCEL NO. 5: (See Statutory Warranty Deed recorded in Official Records Book 8750, Page 1450):

The South 20 feet of the West 170 feet of the East 490 feet of Tract 4, of Model Land Company's Subdivision of Section 20, Township 44
South, Range 43 East, as recorded in Plat Book 5, Page 79, of the Public Records of Palm Beach County, Florida, being a portion of what
is commonly known as Keast Lane.

PARCEL NO. 6: (See Statutory Warranty Deed recorded in Official Records Book 8750, Page 1450):

TOGETHER WITH a Right-of-Way easement over the South 20 feet of the remaining portion of Tract 4 to the County Road, along the East
side of said Tract 4, said 20 foot roadway along the South side of Tract 4 being commonly known as Keast Lane.

PARCEL NO. 7: (See Warranty Deed recorded in Official Records Book 9493, Page 24):

A portion of Tract 4 of Model Land Company's Subdivision of Section 20, Township 44 South, Range 43 East, according to the Plat
thereof, as recorded in Plat Book 5, Page 79, of the Public Records of Palm Beach County, Florida, and being more particularly described
as follows:

BEGINNING at a point 20 feet North of the South line of said Tract 4, and distant 313 feet West of the East line of said Tract 4, running
thence North, a distance of 168 feet to a point; running West on a line parallel to the South line of said Tract 4, a distance of 84 feet to a
point; thence running South on a line parallel to the East line of said Tract 4, a distance of 168 feet to a point in the North line of a 20 foot
roadway; thence East along the North line of said roadway, a distance of 84 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING.

PARCEL NO. 8:

All that part of Tract 4 MODEL LAND CO. SUBDIVISION OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH, RANGE 43 EAST, recorded in Plat
Book 5, Page 79, as described as follows:

Beginning at a point 20 feet North of the South line of said Tract 4 and 220 feet West of the East line of said Tract 4, said point being the
Southwest corner of the property conveyed to J. Floyd Pollock and wife, and running thence North a distance of 168 feet along the West
line of the land so conveyed to Pollock and the West line of the land conveyed to Clinton Noble and wife by Deed recorded in Deed Book
821, Page 1, Palm Beach County, Florida records, to the Northwest corner of the land so conveyed to said Noble; thence running West on
a line parallel to the South line of said Tract 4, a distance of 100 feet; thence running South on a line parallel to the East line of said Tract
4, a distance of 168 feet to the North line of roadway; thence East along the North line of said roadway, a distance of 100 feet to the Point
of Beginning, less and excepting the West 9 feet thereof, using the East 9 feet of the property conveyed to Joseph Kanfoush and Rita M.
Kanfoush, his wife by Deed recorded in Official Record Book 2857, Page 1123, together with an easement over the 20 foot roadway
running along the South line of Tract 4 to the county road.

LOCATION MAP

PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA

SURVEYOR NOTES:

1. The last date of field survey was September 9, 2020.

2. This survey was prepared in accordance with the “Standards of Practice”, as set forth by the Florida Board of Professional
Surveyors and Mappers in rule 5j-17.050 through 5j-17.053, of the Florida Administrative Code.

3. This survey map and/or report or the copies thereof are not valid without the signature and the original raised seal or digital
signature of a Florida licensed surveyor and mapper.

4. Additions or deletions to survey maps or reports by other than the signing party or parties is prohibited without written
consent of the signing party or parties.

5. The bearings shown hereon are based on grid north, and are referenced to the Florida state plane coordinate system, east

zone, North American Datum of 1983 (2007 adjustment). The basis of bearing for this survey is the North line of Section
20, Township 44 South, Range 43 East having a bearing of N88°08'52"W.

6. All distances shown hereon are in U.S. Survey Feet.

7. Aerial imagery shown hereon was obtained from FDOT, and is shown for informational purposes. The imagery was
acquired in 2019.

8. This survey delineates the boundary location according to the legal description, but does not determine ownership or

property rights.

12.  This survey has the benefit of a Commitment by Chicago Title Insurance Company with an effective date of 08/21/2020 at
8:00 AM.

13. Interior improvements, if any, were not located.

14.  Symbols shown hereon are not to scale.

15.  The features shown hereon were acquired using RTK GPS, Trigonometric methods and were verified through a
redundancy of measurements for accuracy.

16.  Copyright © 2020 by WGI, Inc.

SURVEYORS DESCRIPTION:

SHEET INDEX

—

COVER SHEET
2 BOUNDARY SURVEY

LEGEND:

C = Calculated from Field Measurements
% = Center Line

—— x — x —— =Fence

Fnd. = Found

LB = Licensed Surveying Business
LWDD = Lake Worth Drainage District
NAD = North American Datum

ORB = Official Records Book

P = Plat

Pg. = Page

PBCR = Palm Beach County Records
PSM = Professional Surveyor & Mapper
PB = Plat Book

R/W = Right-of-Way

W/ = With

A PARCEL OF LAND LYING WITHIN A PORTION OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH, RANGE 43 EAST, AND BEING A
PORTION OF TRACTS 26 AND 27 ACCORDING TO THE PLAT MODEL LAND CO., AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 5, AT PAGE
79, OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA, AND BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS
FOLLOWS:

COMMENCE AT NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID SECTION 20; THENCE NORTH 88°08'52" WEST ALONG THE NORTH LINE
OF SAID SECTION, A DISTANCE OF 1,006.39 FEET TO THE INTERSECTION OF THE EXTENDED EAST LINE OF TRACT 4 TO
THE NORTH LINE OF SECTION 20; THENCE SOUTH 01°21'54" WEST ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID TRACT 4 EXTENDED,
A DISTANCE OF 488.73 FEET; THENCE NORTH 88°08'01" WEST, FOR 220.00 FEET TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF
PARCEL 8 AND THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE SOUTH 01°21'54" WEST ALONG THE EAST LINE OF PARCEL 8, A
DISTANCE OF 168.85 FEET TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF PARCEL 8 AND THE NORTH LINE PARCEL 6; THENCE
NORTH 87°57'52" WEST ALONG THE NORTH LINE PARCEL 6, A DISTANCE OF 100.00 FEET TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER
OF PARCEL 6; THENCE SOUTH 01°21'54" WEST ALONG THE WEST LINE OF PARCEL 6, A DISTANCE OF 20.00 FEET TO
THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF PARCEL 6 AND THE WEST LINE OF TRACT 27; THENCE SOUTH 87°57'52" EAST ALONG
THE SOUTH LINE OF PARCEL 6 AND THE NORTH LINE OF TRACT 27, A DISTANCE OF 100.00 FEET TO THE NORTHEAST
CORNER OF TRACT 27 (LESS THE EAST 220 FEET); THENCE SOUTH 01°21'54" WEST ALONG THE EAST LINE OF TRACT
27 (LESS THE EAST 220 FEET), A DISTANCE OF 632.23 FEET TO THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF 10TH AVENUE
NORTH; THENCE NORTH 88°07'39" WEST ALONG THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF 10TH AVENUE NORTH, A
DISTANCE OF 230.00 FEET; THENCE NORTH 01°21'54" EAST DEPARTING NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE, A DISTANCE OF
290.00 FEET; THENCE NORTH 88°07'39" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 277.81 FEET TO THE EASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF
THE LAKE WORTH DRAINAGE DISTRICT E-4 CANAL; THENCE NORTH 22°59'34" EAST ALONG THE EASTERLY
RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF SAID E-4 CANAL, A DISTANCE OF 569.27 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 88°08'01" EAST DEPARTING
SAID EASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE, A DISTANCE OF 297.98 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.

SUBJECT TO EXISTING EASEMENTS, RIGHTS-OF-WAY, COVENANTS, RESERVATIONS AND RESTRICTIONS OF RECORD,
IF ANY.

SAID LANDS CONTAIN 278,644 SQUARE FEET OR 6.397 ACRES, MORE OR LESS.

PREPARED BY:

Wwel

2035 Vista Parkway, West Palm Beach, FL 33411

Phone No. 866.909.2220 www.wginc.com
Cert No. 6091 - LB No. 7055

CONSULTANTS:

PROJECT TITLE:

BOUNDARY S<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>